
 

1 of 4 
 

NOTICE OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND 
COUNTY, TEXAS, WILL MEET IN REGULAR SESSION OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS FOLLOWS: 

 
DATE:   Tuesday, April 07, 2015 

 
TIME:   7:00 p.m.  

 
PLACE:  Rosenberg City Hall 

City Hall Council Chamber 
2110 4th Street 
Rosenberg, Texas  77471 
 

PURPOSE:  Regular City Council Meeting, agenda as follows: 
 

The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss 
any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas Government Code. 
 
Call to order:  City Hall Council Chamber 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. (Pastor Rodrick Perkins, The Place Church, Rosenberg) 
 
Presentation of the Willie D. McQueen, Jr., Employee of the Quarter Award. (Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor) 
 
Presentation of Certificate of Appreciation to Randy Weisheimer for His Service as a Police Explorer Advisor from 2008-
2015.  (Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor) 
 
Presentation of Certificates of Appreciation to City of Rosenberg Committee Members. (Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor) 
 
Presentation of Rosenberg Image Committee Beautification and Renovation Awards. (William Benton, Councilor) 
 
Presentation of Proclamation Proclaiming April 10, 2015, American Cancer Society Relay for Life Day in the City of 
Rosenberg. (Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor) 
 
GENERAL COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments of a general nature will be received at this time.  Each 
speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, the City Council is restricted 
from discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves 
by providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE FOR CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to matters on the Consent Agenda or Regular Agenda will be 
received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  Comments or discussion by the 
City Council Members will only be made at the time the agenda item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy to 
have all speakers identify themselves by providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. Review of Consent Agenda. 
All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the City Council and may be enacted by one 
(1) motion.  There will be no separate discussion of Consent Agenda items unless a City Council Member has 
requested that the item be discussed, in which case the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and 
considered in its normal sequence on the Regular Agenda. 
 

 A. Consideration of and action on Regular Meeting Minutes for March 17, 2015, and Workshop Meeting 
Minutes for March 24, 2015. (Linda Cernosek, City Secretary) 
 

 B. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1949, a Resolution in support of Texas Senate Bill No. 
581 relating to the creation of a campus of the Texas State Technical College System in Fort Bend 
County. (Randall Malik, Economic Development Director) 
 

 C. Consideration of and action on the City of Rosenberg FY2015 Street Overlay and Reconstruction Project 
List. (John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services) 
 



 

2 of 4 
 

 D. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1953, a Resolution acknowledging the acquisition, by 
General Warranty Deed, of a 20-foot wide strip of land in the Robert E. Handy Survey, Abstract 187, City 
of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, being out of and a part of that certain called 0.998 acre tract 
recorded in Volume 2725, Page 4, Official Records, Fort Bend County, Texas, and generally located at 
5187 Bryan Road, Rosenberg, Texas, and associated with the Bryan Road Improvement Project. (John 
Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services) 
 

 E. Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of The Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Four, being 
27.6398 acre tract of land being a partial replat of Reserve “H”, Block 4, The Villages at Rosenberg (Slide 
No. 1945 A&B; F.B.C.P.R.) conveyed to Figure Four Partners, Ltd. (F.B.C.C.F. No. 2013159055) in the Jane 
H. Long League, Abstract No. 55, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas; 4 reserves, 104 lots, 3 
blocks.  (Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community Development) 
 

 F. Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of The Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Five, a 22.1380 
acre tract of land in the Robert Handy Survey, Abstract No. 187, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, 
Texas; 3 reserves, 73 lots, 2 blocks  (Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community Development) 
 

 G. Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of The Townhomes at Brazos Town Center, a 20.0427 acre 
tract of land being a replat of restricted Reserve “A”, Brazos Town Center, Section Two (Plat No. 
20050239; F.B.C.P.R.) in the Jane H. Long League, Abstract No. 55, and in the Simon Jones Survey, 
Abstract No. 271, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas; 5 reserves, 139 lots, 3 blocks.  (Travis Tanner, 
Executive Director Community Development) 
 

 H. Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1954, a Resolution acknowledging the acceptance, 
by Right-of-Way Deed, of a 0.3030 tract of land situated in the James Lowery 1/3 League, Abstract 
Number 275 in Fort Bend County, Texas, and being out of and a part of the tract of land described in 
deed to Trinity Lutheran Church of Rosenberg, Texas, as recorded in Volume 388, Page 184 of the Fort 
Bend County Deed Records, and generally located at Louise Street and Avenue N, and associated 
with Trinity Lutheran Church expansion project. (Travis Tanner, Executive Director Community 
Development) 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 

2.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1948, a Resolution in opposition to a revenue cap and 
legislative interference with local services. (Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor) 
 

3.  Review and discuss overview regarding Municipal Utility District operations and dissolutions, and take 
action as necessary. (Jeanne H. McDonald, Attorney) 
 

4.  Review and discuss proposed support for legislation creating Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District 
No. 218, and take action as necessary. (Jeanne H. McDonald, Attorney) 
 

5.  Consideration of and action on a second reading of Ordinance No. 2015-10, an Ordinance granting to 
SiEnergy, L.P., a franchise to furnish and supply gas to the general public in the City of Rosenberg, Fort 
Bend County, Texas, for the transporting, delivery, sale, and distribution of gas in, out of, and through 
said Municipality for all purposes; providing for the payment of a fee or charge for the use of the streets, 
alleys, and public ways; requiring compliance with all regulatory ordinances of the City; and providing 
for all other provisions related to the subject matter hereof. (John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services) 
 

6.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1945, a Resolution awarding Bid No. 2015-08 for Tree 
Trimming Services; and authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of 
the City, a General Services Contract related thereto and/or all necessary documentation regarding 
same. (John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services) 
 

7.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1946, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the City, an Amended and Restated Agreement Relating 
to the Temporary Assignment of Rights and Obligations under Water Supply Contract, by and between 
the City and the Gulf Coast Water Authority.  (John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services) 
 

8.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1947, a Resolution relating to the Water Supply 
Agreement, by and between the City and Brazosport Water Authority. (John Maresh, Assistant City 
Manager of Public Services) 
 

9.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1951, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, an Engineering Services Proposal for engineering related to 
Water Plant No. 8, by and between the City and Jones and Carter, Inc., in an amount not to exceed 
$586,000.00. (John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services) 



 

3 of 4 
 

[EXECUTION PAGE TO FOLLOW] 

 
10.  Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1952, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 

execute, for and on behalf of the City, an Engineering Services Proposal for chloramine conversions at 
Water Plant Nos. 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7, by and between the City and Jones and Carter, Inc., in an amount 
not to exceed $300,000.00. (John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services) 
 

11.  Hold Executive Session to consult with City Attorney regarding pending litigation, namely Imperial Arts 
v. Rosenberg, pursuant to Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code. 
 

12.  Adjourn Executive Session, reconvene into Regular Session, and take action as necessary as a result of 
Executive Session. 
 

13.  Announcements. 
 

14.  Adjournment. 
 



 

4 of 4 
 

 
 

DATED AND POSTED this the ___________ day of ____________________ 2015, at _______________m.,  
 
 
by ____________________________________. 

 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Attest:       

     Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  
 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Approved for Posting:   
John Maresh, Acting City Manager 

 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
Approved:   
Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 

 
Reasonable accommodation for the disabled attending this meeting will be available; persons with disabilities in need of special 
assistance at the meeting should contact the City Secretary at (832) 595-3340.   

 
Executive Sessions: The City Council may retire to executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, any 
time between the meeting’s opening and adjournment for the purposes of: 

 consultation with legal counsel (Section 551.071); 
 deliberation regarding real property (Section 551.072); 
 deliberation regarding economic development negotiations (Section 551.087) 
 deliberation regarding the deployment or specific occasions for implementation of security personnel or 

devices (Section 551.076) 
 
Attendance by other elected or appointed officials: It is anticipated that members of other city boards, commissions or 
committees whose meetings may be governed by the Texas Open Meetings Act may attend this meeting in numbers that 
may constitute a quorum of the other city boards, commissions or committees.  Notice is hereby given that the meeting, 
to the extent required by law, is also noticed as a possible quorum/meeting of the other boards, commissions or 
committees of the City, whose members may be in attendance.  The members may speak as recognized by the presiding 
officer, but no action may be taken by any board, commission or committee unless such item is specifically provided for 
on an agenda designated for that board, commission or committee and posted in compliance with the Texas Open 
Meetings Act. 
 
This Agenda has been reviewed and approved by the City’s legal counsel and the presence of any subject in any 
Executive Session portion of the agenda constitutes a written interpretation of Texas Government Code Chapter 551 by 
legal counsel for the governmental body and constitutes an opinion by the attorney that the items discussed therein may 
be legally discussed in the closed portion of the meeting considering the available opinions of a court of record and 
opinions of the Texas Attorney General known to the attorney.  This provision has been added to this agenda with the intent 
to meet all elements necessary to satisfy Texas Government Code Chapter 551.144(c) and the meeting is conducted by 
all participants in reliance on this opinion. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Presentation of the Willie D. McQueen, Jr. 
Employee of the Quarter Award



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Presentation of Certificate of Appreciation to 
Randy Weisheimer for His Service as a 

Police Explorer Advisor from 2008-2015.





Presentation of Certificates of Appreciation to City 
of Rosenberg Committee Members. 

 
Animal Control Advisory Board 
 

William Hester, DVM 
Joni Huff 
Joni Poche 
Carolyn Seiler 

 
Building and Standards Board 
 
 Robert Duran 
 Devin Koeppen 
 Howard Stinnett 
 Tim Sweat 
 Walter Urbish, Jr. 
 Charlie Wenzel 
 
Firefighter’s Pension Board 
  
 Mario Chapa 
 Charles Lindemann 
 Nancy Talasek 
 Rick Todish 
 
Image Committee 
 
 Joyce Bartos 
 Linda Carroll 
 Rufus Guebarra III 
 Stanley Kucherka 
 Lisa McGarity (Central Fort Bend Chamber Alliance Representative, Ex-officio) 
 Rose Pickens 
 Howard Stinnett 
 Lila Villagomez 
 Sergio Villagomez 
 Lisa Wallingford 

 Austin Hernandez (Student Advisory - Foster High School) 
 
 



Main Street Advisory Board 
 
 Renée Butler 
 Jennifer Hartmann 
 Janice Knight 
 Michael Mercado 
 Lupe Uresti 
 Juanita Velasquez 
 Marcia Vogelsang 
 Janice Vyoral 
 Carolyn Watson 
 
Parks and Recreation Board 
 
 William Allen 
 Teresa Bailey 
 Melissa Dixon 
 Rudy Guerrero 
 Eric Juarez 
 Bertha Knell Kelm 
 Stanley Kucherka 
 Ray Kueck 
 Eric Ramirez 
 Julia Worley 
 George Zepeda 
 
Planning Commission 
 
 Alicia Casias 
 Michael Parsons 
 Pete Pavlovsky 
 Lester Phipps, Jr. 
 Wayne Poldrack 

 James Urbish 



Rental Property Appeals Board 
 
 Cowboy Bill 
 Mable Buford 
 Darlene Cortez 
 Rufus Guebarra III 
 Christy Hawkins 
 Edward Kahlenberg 
 Scott Kirkham 
 Ben Pawlak 
 Lisa Wallingford 
 David Woods 
 
Richmond-Rosenberg Local Government Corporation 
 
 James C. Hopkins 
 Michael Richard 
 
Rosenberg Development Corporation 
 
 Teresa Bailey 
 Ted Garcia 
 Bill Knesek 
 Allen J. Scopel 
 
Water/Wastewater Impact Fee Task Force 
 
 Karl Baumgartner 
 Christy Hawkins 
 Sam Orlando 
 Michael Parsons 
 Llarance Turner 
 
West Fort Bend Management District 
 
 Bob Ray 
 Anthony Sulak 
 Lane Ward 



 
 
 
 

Presentation of 
Rosenberg Image Committee 
Beautification and Renovation 

Awards   















 
 
 
 
 
 

Presentation of Proclamation Proclaiming 
April 10, 2015, American Cancer Society 

Relay for Life Day in the City of Rosenberg.





General Comments from the Audience: 
 

Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments 
of a general nature will be received at this time.  Each speaker 
is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas 
Open Meetings Act, the City Council is restricted from 
discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  
It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by 
providing their name and residential address when making 
comments. 



Comments from the Audience for 
Consent and Regular Agenda Items: 

 
 

Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to 
matters on the Consent Agenda or Regular Agenda will be 
received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is 
limited to three (3) minutes.  Comments or discussion by the 
City Council Members will only be made at the time the agenda 
item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy to have all 
speakers identify themselves by providing their name and 
residential address when making comments. 



ITEM 1 
 

Review of Consent Agenda. 
 

All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the 
City Council and may be enacted by one (1) motion.  There will be no 
separate discussion of Consent Agenda items unless a City Council 
Member has requested that the item be discussed, in which case the 
item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its 
normal sequence on the Regular Agenda. 



ITEM A 
 

Minutes: 
 

1. Regular City Council Meeting Minutes – March 17, 2015 
2. City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes – March 24, 2015 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 12 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * MARCH 17, 2015 
***DRAFT*** 

 

CITY OF ROSENBERG 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

***DRAFT*** 
 
On this the 17th day of March, 2015, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, 
met in a Regular Session, in the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, located at 2110 4th Street, 
Rosenberg, Texas. 
 
PRESENT 
Vincent M. Morales, Jr. Mayor 
William Benton Councilor at Large, Position 1 
Cynthia McConathy Councilor at Large, Position 2 
Jimmie J. Pena Councilor, District 1  
Susan Euton Councilor, District 2 
Dwayne Grigar  Councilor, District 3 
 
ABSENT 
Amanda Barta Councilor, District 4 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Robert Gracia  City Manager 
Scott M. Tschirhart City Attorney 
Linda Cernosek City Secretary 
John Maresh  Assistant City Manager of Public Services 
Jeff Trinker Executive Director of Support Services 
Joyce Vasut Executive Director of Administrative Services 
Travis Tanner Executive Director of Community Development 
Randall Malik  Economic Development Director 
Charles Kalkomey City Engineer 
Tracie Dunn Assistant Police Chief 
Wade Goates Fire Chief 
Darren McCarthy Parks and Recreation Director 
James Lewis Director of Technology 
Kaye Supak Executive Assistant 
John Johnson                           Police Department 
Tommy Havelka                       Police Department 
 
CALL TO ORDER. 
Mayor Morales called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.  
Reverend Michelle Linares, Lion of Judah International, Rosenberg, gave the invocation and Jonathan 
Liang, Boy Scout Troop 1000, led the pledge of allegiance to the flag. 
 
GENERAL COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with comments of a general nature will be received at 
this time.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes.  In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings 
Act, the City Council is restricted from discussing or taking action on items not listed on the agenda.  It is 
our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by providing their name and residential address 
when making comments. 
 
COMMENTS FROM THE AUDIENCE FOR CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS. 
Citizens who desire to address the City Council with regard to matters on the Consent Agenda or 
Regular Agenda will be received at the time the item is considered.  Each speaker is limited to three (3) 
minutes.  Comments or discussion by the City Council Members will only be made at the time the 
agenda item is scheduled for consideration.  It is our policy to have all speakers identify themselves by 



Page 2 of 12 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * MARCH 17, 2015 
***DRAFT*** 

 

providing their name and residential address when making comments. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1.  Review of Consent Agenda. 
All Consent Agenda items listed are considered to be routine by the City Council and may be 
enacted by one (1) motion.  There will be no separate discussion of Consent Agenda items unless 
a City Council Member has requested that the item be discussed, in which case the item will be 
removed from the Consent Agenda and considered in its normal sequence on the Regular 
Agenda. 
 

 A.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES FOR FEBRUARY 24, 2015, 
AND REGULAR MEETING MINUTES FOR MARCH 03, 2015.  
 

 B.  Item B was pulled from the Consent Agenda and moved to Item 2A on the Regular Agenda. 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1937, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A STORM 
WATER MANAGEMENT INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY 
AND FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 147, REGARDING PARTICIPATION IN 
THE STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM.  
 

 C.  Item C was pulled from the Consent Agenda and moved to Item 2B on the Regular Agenda. 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1938, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A STORM 
WATER MANAGEMENT INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY 
AND FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 159 REGARDING PARTICIPATION IN 
THE STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM.  
 

 D.  Item D was pulled from the Consent Agenda and moved to Item 2C on the Regular Agenda. 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1939, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A STORM 
WATER MANAGEMENT INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY 
AND FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 167 REGARDING PARTICIPATION IN 
THE STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM.  
 

 E.  Item E was pulled from the Consent Agenda and moved to Item 2D on the Regular Agenda. 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1944, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A STORM 
WATER MANAGEMENT INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY 
AND FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 144 REGARDING PARTICIPATION IN 
THE STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM.   
 

 F.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1941, A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF 
TEXAS HOUSE BILL NO. 658 RELATING TO THE CREATION OF A CAMPUS OF THE TEXAS STATE 
TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM IN FORT BEND COUNTY.  
Executive Summary: Representative John Zerwas of Texas House District 28 has filed Texas 
House Bill No. 658, relating to the creation of a campus of the Texas State Technical College 
(TSTC) in Fort Bend County. TSTC is working with the George and Henderson-Wessendorff 
Foundations on building a new TSTC Fort Bend Campus. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1941 as presented. 
 

 G.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A SHORT FORM FINAL PLAT OF BRAZOS PLAZA PARTIAL 
REPLAT NO. 2, A SUBDIVISION OF 2.5532 ACRES OF LAND OUT OF THE ROBERT E. HANDY 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NUMBER 187 CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS BEING A 
REPLAT OF RESTRICTED RESERVE “C” BRAZOS PLAZA SLIDE NO. 20070179 P.R.F.B.C. & BEING A 
REPLAT OF RESTRICTED RESERVE “F” BRAZOS PLAZA PARTIAL REPLAT NO. 1 SLIDE NO. 20110039 



Page 3 of 12 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * MARCH 17, 2015 
***DRAFT*** 

 

P.R.F.B.C.; 1 RESERVE, 1 BLOCK.   
Executive Summary: The Short Form Final Plat of Brazos Plaza Partial Replat No. 2 is a 
proposed replat consisting of 2.5532 acres and only one (1) commercial reserve.  The 
property is located on the north side of US59/I-69, slightly southwest of its intersection with 
Reading Road.  The tract is in the City Limits and in the West Fort Bend Management District 
(District) and therefore will be subject to the District’s standards when developed. It has 
frontage on US59/I-69, but will only have access from Industrial Parkway. 

 
The purpose of the replat in this case is simply to remove a property line between two (2) 
reserves, creating one (1) reserve instead of two (2).  It has been submitted as a Short Form 
Final Plat, eliminating the necessity to submit a Preliminary Plat, because it does not require 
the extension of any streets or utilities.  There being no issues in conflict with the “Subdivision” 
Ordinance, staff recommends approval of the Short Form Final Plat of Brazos Plaza Partial 
Replat No. 2.  The Planning Commission recommended approval to City Council of the plat 
on February 18, 2015. 
 

 H.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A FINAL PLAT OF SUMMER LAKES SECTION SEVEN, BEING 
A SUBDIVISION OF 23.85 ACRES OUT OF THE W.M. LUSK SURVEY, A-276, IN THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS (FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 
144); 53 LOTS, 5 BLOCKS, 10 RESERVES (7.2560 ACRES).  
Executive Summary: The Final Plat of Summer Lakes Section Seven is located off of Reading 
Road and Round Lake Drive in the eastern portion of the Summer Lakes development.  The 
Plat consists of 23.85 acres, 53 residential lots, and ten (10) reserves with a total of 7.256 
acres. 
 
The proposed Plat contains 21 sixty-foot (60’) lots and 32 seventy-foot (70’) lots.  The Plat 
complies with the Development Agreement and approved Land Plan for Fort Bend County 
MUD No. 144.  The Land Plan, which is attached for reference, identifies the area of the Plat 
as single-family residential development.  The Development Agreement calls for a minimum 
lot width of fifty feet (50’) and minimum size of 6,000 square feet.  All proposed lots 
comfortably meet these requirements.  The Planning Commission approved the Preliminary 
Plat of this subdivision on June 18, 2014.  The Commission subsequently recommended 
approval to City Council of the Final Plat on November 19, 2014. 
 
The Final Plat of Summer Lakes Section Seven is not in conflict with any applicable 
regulations, with the Development Agreement for Fort Bend County MUD No. 144, or with 
the approved Preliminary Plat.  That said, staff recommends approval of the Final Plat of 
Summer Lakes Section Seven. 
 

 I.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON AN AMENDING PLAT OF BRIDLEWOOD ESTATES SECTION 
4 PARTIAL REPLAT NO. 1; 2 LOTS, 0 BLOCKS, 0 RESERVES BEING 2.01 ACRES IN THE JOSEPH 
KUYKENDALL LEAGUE, ABSTRACT 49, CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING 
A REPLAT OF LOTS 10 & 11, BLOCK 1, BRIDLEWOOD ESTATES SECTION 4.   
Executive Summary: Proposed Bridlewood Estates Section 4 Partial Replat No. 1 is located off 
of Grande Gables Drive.  It is in the northern part of Bridlewood Estates along FM 762 that is 
within the City Limits. 

 
The Plat contains two (2) single-family residential lots and a total of 2.01 acres.  The property 
was originally platted in 1998.  The purpose of the Amending Plat is simply to move a 
property line between the two lots to avoid the encroachment of a driveway that was 
recently constructed onto the adjoining property.  The “Subdivision” Ordinance provides for 
amending plats to resolve issues of this nature.  The Plat only has to come before City 
Council; amending plats do not require Planning Commission approval. 
 
There being no issues, staff recommends approval of Bridlewood Estates Section 4 Partial 
Replat No. 1. 
 



Page 4 of 12 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * MARCH 17, 2015 
***DRAFT*** 

 

 J.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1928, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
THE ROSENBERG POLICE DEPARTMENT’S SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION FOR THE VICTIMS OF 
CRIME ACT (VOCA) FORMULA GRANT FOR THE POSITION OF CRIME VICTIM LIAISON, AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTATION REGARDING 
SAME.  
Executive Summary:  The Police Department is mandated by state statute to provide services to 
victims of certain crimes.  
 
 The City initially applied for and received grant funding under the Victim of Crime Act (VOCA) to 
provide for a full time Crime Victim Advocate under the 2013 grant program year.  This grant 
application will continue to fund this position and would provide eighty percent (80%) funding.  A 
twenty percent (20%) match would be required from the City under this grant program. If 
awarded, this continuation grant would begin on September 1, 2015, and end August 31, 2016.  If 
approved, this will be the fourth year the City has received this award.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1928 which will finalize the grant application 
process and designate the City Manager as the authorized official to accept the award 
and execute any and all necessary documentation related thereto. 
 

 K.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1929, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
THE ROSENBERG POLICE DEPARTMENT’S SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION FOR THE EDWARD 
BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT FOR THE POSITION OF SPECIAL CRIMES 
DETECTIVE, AND AUTHORIZING CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ANY AND ALL NECESSARY 
DOCUMENTATION REGARDING SAME.  
Executive Summary: The investigation of sexual, physical abuse and family related crimes requires 
specialized skills and coordination with other agencies such as Children’s Protective Services and 
the Children’s Advocacy Center.  In addition, the Police Department is mandated by State 
statute to register and track the sex offenders who commit these types of crimes.  There is an 
opportunity to seek funding under the Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) to 
provide for a full time Special Crimes Detective whose function will be to specialize in the 
investigation of these crimes and individuals who commit them.  The goal of the Special Crimes 
Detective is to provide expert investigation in family violence, sexual assault, physical/sexual child 
abuse, and other family related and sex crime cases. In addition, the Special Crimes Detective 
will monitor all registered sex offenders located within the City Limits of Rosenberg, Texas, through 
status and compliance checks. 

If approved, this grant application would provide eighty percent (80%) funding.  A twenty 
percent (20%) match would be required from the City under this grant program. This grant would 
begin on September 1, 2015, and ending August 31, 2016.  If approved, this will be the first year 
we have received this award.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1929 which will finalize the grant application 
process and designate the City Manager as the authorized official to accept the award 
and execute any and all necessary documentation related thereto. 
 

 L.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1930, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING 
THE ROSENBERG POLICE DEPARTMENT’S SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION FOR THE EDWARD 
BYRNE MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT FOR THE POSITION OF CRIME ANALYST, AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ANY AND ALL DOCUMENTATION REGARDING 
SAME.  
Executive Summary: The Rosenberg Police Department has adopted a more "Predictive Policing" 
mindset to crime analyzing by utilizing Compstat, Raids-on-Line and additional predictive 
software to assist with combating and predicting the criminal element. Researching and 
analyzing the data needed for these programs is a very time consuming meticulous task that 
requires attention to detail. With the addition of a Crime Analyst, detectives would be able to 
produce more quality investigations and the efficiency of the unit would greatly increase. Crime 
analysis can improve a police department’s efficiency and enhance its ability to apprehend 



Page 5 of 12 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * MARCH 17, 2015 
***DRAFT*** 

 

criminals. Specifically, crime analysis systems identify crime patterns and series, forecast future 
occurrences of crime, identify likely victims of crime, provide investigative leads, solve open 
cases, and provide supporting data for community policing programs and departmental 
planning efforts. 
 
The goal of this project is to provide the Rosenberg Police Department with an individual who is 
designated to improve intelligence and information sharing within the police department, 
surrounding law enforcement agencies, and other regional partners through Houston Regional 
Intelligence Service Center. 
  
This grant application if approved would provide full (100%) funding. If awarded, this grant would 
begin on September 1, 2015 and ending August 31, 2016.    
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1930 which will finalize the grant application 
process and designate the City Manager as the authorized official to accept the award 
and execute any and all necessary documentation related thereto. 
 

Action:  Councilor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton to approve Consent 
Agenda Items A, F, G, H, I, J, K, and L. The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 

 
REGULAR AGENDA 

 
2A. This Item was originally Item B on the Consent Agenda. 

CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1937, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A STORM WATER 
MANAGEMENT INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY AND FORT 
BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 147, REGARDING PARTICIPATION IN THE STORM 
WATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM. 
Executive Summary: This item has been included on the Agenda to offer City Council the 
opportunity to consider approval of a Storm Water Management Interlocal Cooperation 
Agreement (Agreement) with Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 147 (District) 
regarding participation in the City’s storm water management program (SWMP). This is one of 
four (4) separate District’s with the identical Agreement for consideration at the March 17th City 
Council meeting. This District is located completely within the City Limits, with the City being 
responsible for construction inspections inside of the District boundaries through the normal 
permitting and inspection process. Therefore, the Agreement would minimize duplication of 
effort by both entities. Per the Agreement, the District would continue to be solely responsible for 
the operation and maintenance of detention basins including the cleaning and removal of trash 
and other debris.  The primary objectives of the Agreement are summarized as follows: 

• Develop a comprehensive and coordinated strategy for managing storm water pollution 
controls and complying with current requirements of the TCEQ issued permit. 

• Develop a comprehensive and coordinated SWMP as required by the TCEQ permit to 
address the following minimum control measures: 

1. Public education, outreach and involvement 
2. Illicit discharge detection and elimination 
3. Construction site storm runoff control 
4. Post-construction storm water management in new development and 

redevelopment 
5. Pollution prevention and good housekeeping for municipal operations 

• Identify and facilitate opportunities for cooperation that will assist the parties in meeting 
state and federal requirements for improving storm water quality 

• Assist with development of storm water pollution control management plans and 
programs, discharge monitoring reports, annual reports and other TCEQ reports 

• Coordinate training opportunities and distribute public information materials as needed 
• Coordinate and address special needs upon request, such as tracking illicit 

connection/illegal dumping remediation activities and/or mapping storm drain outfalls 
and storm sewer systems 



Page 6 of 12 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * MARCH 17, 2015 
***DRAFT*** 

 

• Assist with the inspection and enforcement of the general permit, as directed by the City. 
 
The Agreement also requires the District to provide an annual funding contribution to the City to 
cover administrative, operational and technical services provided by the City. The annual fee for 
the first year of the permit term is $1,500. The initial term of the Agreement is for a five (5) year 
period and will automatically renew at the end of the five (5) year term, unless either party 
provides notice to terminate.   
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1937, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager 
to execute the Agreement regarding participation in the storm water management program, 
attached as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1937. 
 
Key Discussion Points:  

• Council Benton made the general comment that Council relies heavily on Staff to bring it 
to their awareness when such items will add extended time and additional debt to MUDs. 

• City Manager Gracia noted the comment and will advise Staff accordingly. 
 
Action: Councilor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton to approve Items 
2A, 2B, 2C, and 2D. The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 

2B. This Item was originally Item C on the Consent Agenda. 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1938, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A STORM WATER 
MANAGEMENT INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY AND FORT 
BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 159 REGARDING PARTICIPATION IN THE STORM 
WATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM.  
Executive Summary: This item has been included on the Agenda to offer City Council the 
opportunity to consider approval of a Storm Water Management Interlocal Cooperation 
Agreement (Agreement) with Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 159 (District) 
regarding participation in the City’s storm water management program (SWMP). This is one of 
four (4) separate District’s with the identical Agreement for consideration at the March 17th City 
Council meeting. This District is located completely within the City Limits, with the City being 
responsible for construction inspections inside of the District boundaries through the normal 
permitting and inspection process. Therefore, the Agreement would minimize duplication of 
effort by both entities. Per the Agreement, the District would continue to be solely responsible for 
the operation and maintenance of detention basins including the cleaning and removal of trash 
and other debris.  The primary objectives of the Agreement are summarized as follows: 

• Develop a comprehensive and coordinated strategy for managing storm water pollution 
controls and complying with current requirements of the TCEQ issued permit. 

• Develop a comprehensive and coordinated SWMP as required by the TCEQ permit to 
address the following minimum control measures: 

1. Public education, outreach and involvement 
2. Illicit discharge detection and elimination 
3. Construction site storm runoff control 
4. Post-construction storm water management in new development and 

redevelopment 
5. Pollution prevention and good housekeeping for municipal operations 

• Identify and facilitate opportunities for cooperation that will assist the parties in meeting 
state and federal requirements for improving storm water quality 

• Assist with development of storm water pollution control management plans and 
programs, discharge monitoring reports, annual reports and other TCEQ reports 

• Coordinate training opportunities and distribute public information materials as needed 
• Coordinate and address special needs upon request, such as tracking illicit 

connection/illegal dumping remediation activities and/or mapping storm drain outfalls 
and storm sewer systems 

• Assist with the inspection and enforcement of the general permit, as directed by the City. 
 



Page 7 of 12 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * MARCH 17, 2015 
***DRAFT*** 

 

The Agreement also requires the District to provide an annual funding contribution to the City to 
cover administrative, operational and technical services provided by the City. The annual fee for 
the first year of the permit term is $1,500. The initial term of the Agreement is for a five (5) year 
period and will automatically renew at the end of the five (5) year term, unless either party 
provides notice to terminate.   
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1938, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager 
to execute the Agreement regarding participation in the storm water management program, 
attached as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1938. 
 
Items 2A, 2B, 2C, and 2D were voted upon and carried in one motion under Item 2A. 
 

2C. This Item was originally Item D on the Consent Agenda. 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1939, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A STORM WATER 
MANAGEMENT INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY AND FORT 
BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 167 REGARDING PARTICIPATION IN THE STORM 
WATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM.  
Executive Summary: This item has been included on the Agenda to offer City Council the 
opportunity to consider approval of a Storm Water Management Interlocal Cooperation 
Agreement (Agreement) with Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 167 (District) 
regarding participation in the City’s storm water management program (SWMP). This is one of 
four (4) separate District’s with the identical Agreement for consideration at the March 17th City 
Council meeting. This District is located completely within the City Limits, with the City being 
responsible for construction inspections inside of the District boundaries through the normal 
permitting and inspection process. Therefore, the Agreement would minimize duplication of 
effort by both entities. Per the Agreement, the District would continue to be solely responsible for 
the operation and maintenance of detention basins and pump station, including the cleaning 
and removal of trash and other debris.  The primary objectives of the Agreement are summarized 
as follows: 

• Develop a comprehensive and coordinated strategy for managing storm water pollution 
controls and complying with current requirements of the TCEQ issued permit. 

• Develop a comprehensive and coordinated SWMP as required by the TCEQ permit to 
address the following minimum control measures: 

1. Public education, outreach and involvement 
2. Illicit discharge detection and elimination 
3. Construction site storm runoff control 
4. Post-construction storm water management in new development and 

redevelopment 
5. Pollution prevention and good housekeeping for municipal operations 

• Identify and facilitate opportunities for cooperation that will assist the parties in meeting 
state and federal requirements for improving storm water quality 

• Assist with development of storm water pollution control management plans and 
programs, discharge monitoring reports, annual reports and other TCEQ reports 

• Coordinate training opportunities and distribute public information materials as needed 
• Coordinate and address special needs upon request, such as tracking illicit 

connection/illegal dumping remediation activities and/or mapping storm drain outfalls 
and storm sewer systems 

• Assist with the inspection and enforcement of the general permit, as directed by the City. 
 
The Agreement also requires the District to provide an annual funding contribution to the City to 
cover administrative, operational and technical services provided by the City. The annual fee for 
the first year of the permit term is $1,500. The initial term of the Agreement is for a five (5) year 
period and will automatically renew at the end of the five (5) year term, unless either party 
provides notice to terminate.   
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1939, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager 



Page 8 of 12 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * MARCH 17, 2015 
***DRAFT*** 

 

to execute the Agreement regarding participation in the storm water management program, 
attached as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1939. 
 
Items 2A, 2B, 2C, and 2D were voted upon and carried in one motion under Item 2A. 
 

2D. This Item was originally Item E on the Consent Agenda. 
CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1944, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, A STORM WATER 
MANAGEMENT INTERLOCAL COOPERATION AGREEMENT, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY AND FORT 
BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 144 REGARDING PARTICIPATION IN THE STORM 
WATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM.   
Executive Summary: This item has been included on the Agenda to offer City Council the 
opportunity to consider approval of a Storm Water Management Interlocal Cooperation 
Agreement (Agreement) with Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 144 (District) 
regarding participation in the City’s storm water management program (SWMP). This is one of 
four (4) separate District’s with the identical Agreement for consideration at the March 17th City 
Council meeting. This District is located almost completely within the City Limits, with the City 
being responsible for construction inspections for the portion of the District located within the City 
Limits through the normal permitting and inspection process. Therefore, the Agreement would 
minimize duplication of effort by both entities. Per the Agreement, the District would continue to 
be solely responsible for the operation and maintenance of detention basins including the 
cleaning and removal of trash and other debris.  The primary objectives of the Agreement are 
summarized as follows: 

• Develop a comprehensive and coordinated strategy for managing storm water pollution 
controls and complying with current requirements of the TCEQ issued permit. 

• Develop a comprehensive and coordinated SWMP as required by the TCEQ permit to 
address the following minimum control measures: 

1. Public education, outreach and involvement 
2. Illicit discharge detection and elimination 
3. Construction site storm runoff control 
4. Post-construction storm water management in new development and 

redevelopment 
5. Pollution prevention and good housekeeping for municipal operations 

• Identify and facilitate opportunities for cooperation that will assist the parties in meeting 
state and federal requirements for improving storm water quality 

• Assist with development of storm water pollution control management plans and 
programs, discharge monitoring reports, annual reports and other TCEQ reports 

• Coordinate training opportunities and distribute public information materials as needed 
• Coordinate and address special needs upon request, such as tracking illicit 

connection/illegal dumping remediation activities and/or mapping storm drain outfalls 
and storm sewer systems 

• Assist with the inspection and enforcement of the general permit, as directed by the City. 
 
The Agreement also requires the District to provide an annual funding contribution to the City to 
cover administrative, operational and technical services provided by the City. The annual fee for 
the first year of the permit term is $1,500. The initial term of the Agreement is for a five (5) year 
period and will automatically renew at the end of the five (5) year term, unless either party 
provides notice to terminate.   
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1944, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager 
to execute the Agreement regarding participation in the storm water management program, 
attached as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1944. 
 
Items 2A, 2B, 2C, and 2D were voted upon and carried in one motion under Item 2A. 
 

2.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS A PRESENTATION REGARDING A PROPOSED EAGLE SCOUT PROJECT TO 
REFURBISH BENCHES AT COMMUNITY PARK, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY. 



Page 9 of 12 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * MARCH 17, 2015 
***DRAFT*** 

 

Executive Summary: On January 22, 2015, at the regularly scheduled Parks and Recreation Board 
(Board) meeting, Jonathan Liang, Troop 1000, presented a proposal to refurbish park benches at 
Community Park. After reviewing the presentation regarding the proposal, the Board 
unanimously recommended the Project plan for approval. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed Eagle Scout Project at Community Park based 
upon Jonathan Liang’s presentation and the recommendation of the Parks and Recreation 
Board. 
 
Key Discussion Points:  

• Darren McCarthy, Parks and Recreation Director read the Executive Summary and 
introduced Jonathan Liang. 

• Jonathan Liang, Boy Scout Troop 1000, gave a presentation explaining the proposed 
Eagle Project involving renovation of existing benches and the addition of two new 
benches. 

• Funding for the additional benches will be provided by leftover funds from the donation 
from The CHURCH for lights, who have already given their permission. 

• Mayor and Council thanked Jonathan for his interest in Community Park and his service to 
the City. 

 
Action: Councilor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton to approve the 
proposed Eagle Scout Project to refurbish benches at Community Park. The motion carried by a 
unanimous vote of those present. 
 

3.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1942, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, AN AGREEMENT, 
BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY AND THE ROSENBERG ROUGHNECKS YOUTH FOOTBALL, FOR THE USE OF 
DESIGNATED FIELDS AT SEABOURNE CREEK REGIONAL SPORTS COMPLEX AND SUNSET PARK.  
Executive Summary: At the regularly scheduled Parks and Recreation Board (Board) meeting on 
December 18, 2014, staff presented a proposed Agreement, by and between the City of 
Rosenberg and the Rosenberg Roughnecks Youth Football (RRYF), for the use of designated fields 
at Seabourne Creek Regional Sports Complex and Sunset Park for the youth football league.  
RRYF has also requested use of the concession stand.  Currently, the Rosenberg National Little 
League (RNLL) has exclusive use of the concession stand written into their Agreement with the 
City. 
 
After some discussion, the Board unanimously recommended the RRYF Agreement be extended, 
with updates, through 2016 so the end of the Agreement term will coincide with the Agreement 
terms and expiration in place for RNLL.  At that time, provisions for the mutual use of the 
concession stand may be incorporated into any new Agreements with both RNLL and RRYF. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1942 to update and extend the Agreement with 
the RRYF, attached to the Resolution as Exhibit “A”. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Darren McCarthy read the Executive Summary. This document has been 
reviewed by the City Attorney for compliance. 
 
Action:  Councilor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Grigar to approve 
Resolution No. R-1942, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute, for 
and on behalf of the City, an Agreement, by and between the City and the Rosenberg 
Roughnecks Youth Football, for the use of designated fields at Seabourne Creek Regional Sports 
Complex and Sunset Park. The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 

4.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1936, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AND SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
BLOCK GRANT FUND FOR NORTH ROSENBERG WATER DISTRIBUTION IMPROVEMENTS - PHASE III FOR 
APPROXIMATELY $300,000.00.  



Page 10 of 12 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * MARCH 17, 2015 
***DRAFT*** 

 

Executive Summary: Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) requests are being 
accepted by Fort Bend County Community Development for the HUD program year 2015.  Staff 
is requesting City Council’s approval to pursue the construction and completion of water line 
infrastructure improvements to serve the north side of Rosenberg.  This proposed project will be 
Phase III of a water infrastructure project originally approved by CDBG for funding in 2005 to 
improve potable water service to the north side of Rosenberg.  This rehabilitation project will offer 
relief of a long-standing deficiency in the City’s infrastructure. The project must be located within 
a designated area that meets the low to moderate income level criteria based on the 2010 
Census data. 
 
The application will include a request for CDBG funding for approximately $300,000.00. The 
application will indicate a proposed local match of 10% for construction contingency and the 
City will pay for engineering. If the application is approved for funding, the local matching funds 
would be included in a future budget. Requests must be submitted no later than March 20, 2015. 
Staff recommends approval of the project application submission as proposed in Resolution No. 
R-1936. 
 
Key Discussion Points: John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services read the Executive 
Summary. The general consensus of Council was that this is a worthwhile improvement project. 
 
Action: Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Grigar to approve Resolution 
No. R-1936, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute and submit an application to 
the Community Development Block Grant Fund for North Rosenberg Water Distribution 
Improvements - Phase III for approximately $300,000.00. The motion carried by a unanimous vote 
of those present. 
 

5.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE 2015-10, AN ORDINANCE 
GRANTING TO SIENERGY, L.P., A FRANCHISE TO FURNISH AND SUPPLY GAS TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC 
IN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE TRANSPORTING, DELIVERY, SALE, 
AND DISTRIBUTION OF GAS IN, OUT OF, AND THROUGH SAID MUNICIPALITY FOR ALL PURPOSES; 
PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT OF A FEE OR CHARGE FOR THE USE OF THE STREETS, ALLEYS, AND 
PUBLIC WAYS; REQUIRING COMPLIANCE WITH ALL REGULATORY ORDINANCES OF THE CITY; AND 
PROVIDING FOR ALL OTHER PROVISIONS RELATED TO THE SUBJECT MATTER HEREOF.  
Executive Summary: It was recently determined that SiEnergy, L.P., is providing natural gas service 
to areas that are now located within a portion of the Rosenberg city limits. Therefore, SiEnergy, 
L.P., is required to obtain a franchise agreement from the City. In accordance with Article XII of 
the City Charter, the City Attorney has prepared Ordinance No. 2015-10 which will grant said 
franchise to furnish and supply gas to the general public. 
 
Article XII, Section 12.03 of the City Charter identifies specific procedures for approval of franchise 
ordinances which are summarized below: 

• Ordinances shall not be passed finally until its third and final reading 
• Ordinances shall be read at three separate regular meetings of the City Council, the last 

of which shall take place not less than thirty days from the first 
• No ordinance granting a franchise shall pass any reading except by a vote of the majority 

of the City Council 
• Ordinances shall not take effect until sixty days after its adoption on its third and final 

reading 
• Any time before the ordinance shall finally take effect, a petition can be presented to the 

City Council signed by not less than twenty percent of the voters voting at the last regular 
municipal election, but in no event less than one hundred fifty bona fide qualified voters, 
requiring the City Council submit the question of granting said franchise to a vote of the 
qualified voters of the City 
 

SiEnergy, L.P., has reviewed the Ordinance and has no objections to any of the terms.  Staff 
recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2015-10 as presented. 
 



Page 11 of 12 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * MARCH 17, 2015 
***DRAFT*** 

 

Key Discussion Points: John Maresh read the Executive Summary and gave an overview of the 
item. 
 
Action:  Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor McConathy to approve the 
first reading of Ordinance 2015-10, an Ordinance granting to SiEnergy, L.P., a franchise to furnish 
and supply gas to the general public in the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, for the 
transporting, delivery, sale, and distribution of gas in, out of, and through said Municipality for all 
purposes; providing for the payment of a fee or charge for the use of the streets, alleys, and 
public ways; requiring compliance with all regulatory ordinances of the City; and providing for all 
other provisions related to the subject matter hereof. The motion carried by a unanimous vote of 
those present. 
 

6.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1940, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY ENGINEER TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, THE ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE CITY 
OF ROSENBERG’S STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN UNDER TPDES GENERAL PERMIT NO. 
TXR040272 TO REGULATE STORM WATER DISCHARGES FOR SMALL MUNICIPAL SEPARATE SEWER 
SYSTEMS (MS4) UNDER TPDES PHASE II MS4 GENERAL PERMIT (TXR040272).  
Executive Summary: The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) originally adopted 
the General Permit TXR040000 for the regulation of storm water discharges.  Authorized by the 
Clean Water Act, Phase I regulations were in place for cities with a population in excess of 
100,000.  The Phase II General Permit for smaller cities located in Urbanized Areas was approved 
in November 2007. 
 
The majority of the City of Rosenberg (City) lies within the Houston Urbanized Area as originally 
determined by the 2000 Census; therefore, the City has been identified as a Small Municipal 
Separate Sewer System (MS4), and complies with the requirements of the Clean Water Act by 
filing the General Permit. 
 
The City submitted the Notice of Intent and the Storm Water Management Plan to the TCEQ in 
February 2008.  For the past six (6) years, staff presented the Annual Report for the year, and 
authorized the City Engineer to execute the report and file it. 
 
This is the seventh annual report.  This is the first report filed under the revised General Permit 
issued by the TCEQ.   
 
The revised General Permit requires that the City submit an Annual Report of activities for the 
reporting period of August 13, 2013 to December 31, 2014.  This Agenda item will allow staff to 
update City Council on the status of the Permit and review the activities for this year.  The Annual 
Report has been included in the agenda packet as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1940.   
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1940 which accepts the Annual Report and 
authorizes the City Engineer to execute the Annual Report under TPDES General Permit No. 
TXR040272 to regulate storm water discharges. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Charles Kalkomey, City Engineer gave an overview of the Item. 
 
Action:  Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor McConathy to approve 
Resolution No. R-1940, a Resolution authorizing the City Engineer to execute, for and on behalf of 
the City, the Annual Report for the City of Rosenberg’s Storm Water Management Plan under 
TPDES General Permit No. TXR040272 to regulate storm water discharges for Small Municipal 
Separate Sewer Systems (MS4) under TPDES Phase II MS4 General Permit (TXR040272). The motion 
carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 

7.  CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1943, A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF A 
PROPOSED SENIOR HOUSING DEVELOPMENT BY CAMPANILE AT SEABOURNE CREEK LP.  
Executive Summary: As discussed at the February 24, 2015 City Council Workshop Meeting, Les 
Kilday of Campanile at Seabourne Creek LP, has proposed a senior, multi-family development, 
Campanile at Seabourne Creek, to be located off of Reese Road between I-69 and FM 2218.  A 
vicinity map is included in the agenda packet for reference.  The property consists of 



Page 12 of 12 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * MARCH 17, 2015 
***DRAFT*** 

 

 
____________________________________________ 
Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  

approximately 9.8 acres for which 132 units are proposed. 
 
At this time, only the preliminary site plan has been provided.  A more detailed site plan would be 
required at a later time for staff to review.  Because the project would not comply with the City’s 
multi-family parking requirement beginning at four (4) spaces per unit, a Planned Unit 
Development (PUD) agreement must be established for the project to go forward.  Such an 
agreement would require a recommendation by the Planning Commission and approval by City 
Council.  At this time, however, what the developer is requesting is a resolution of support for the 
project from City Council. 
 
When discussed on February 24, 2015, City Council generally had no objections except to say 
that the project be age-restricted per the developer’s presentation, that it not be tax-exempt, 
and that there be on-site management among other things.  This would be a “tax credit” project 
through the Texas Department of Housing and Community Affairs, similar to Brazos Senior Villas 
located at 5801 Reading Road, which was done by the same developer.  The tax credit program 
requires a resolution of support from City Council, hence this agenda item.  Resolution No. R-1943 
speaks to the age of residents in the development and it should be kept in mind that for the 
development to go forward, a PUD agreement still must be reached between the developer and 
the City. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1943. 
 
Key Discussion Points: Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community Development read the 
Executive Summary and pointed out that some of the language that was discussed at the 
February 24th Workshop Council Meeting has already been included in this Resolution. This 
Resolution is only general support of the application, and the other developmental concerns will 
be worked out at a later time. 
 
Action:  Councilor Grigar made a motion, seconded by Councilor Benton to approve Resolution 
No. R-1943, a Resolution in support of a proposed senior housing development by Campanile at 
Seabourne Creek LP. The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 

8.  HOLD EXECUTIVE SESSION TO CONSULT WITH CITY ATTORNEY ON PENDING LITIGATION REGARDING 
TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION V. ROSENBERG EMINENT DOMAIN PROCEEDINGS 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 551.071 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE. 
Action: Councilor McConathy made a motion, seconded by Councilor Euton to adjourn to 
Executive Session. The motion carried by a unanimous vote of those present. 
 
An Executive Session was held to consult with City Attorney on pending litigation regarding Texas 
Department of Transportation v. Rosenberg eminent domain proceedings pursuant to Section 
551.071 of the Texas Government Code. 
 

9.  ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION, RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION, AND TAKE ACTION AS 
NECESSARY AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION. 
Mayor Morales adjourned the Executive Session and reconvened into Regular Session at 7:53 
p.m.  
 

10.  ANNOUNCEMENTS. 
The City of Rosenberg will host its annual Easter Egg Hunt, beginning at 3:00 pm on Saturday, 
March 28, at the R. W. Lindsey Gazebo in Seabourne Creek Nature Park, 3827 State Highway 36 
South.  
 

11.  ADJOURNMENT. 
There being no further business Mayor Morales adjourned the meeting at 7:53 p.m. 



Page 1 of 7 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING * MARCH 24, 2015 
 

CITY OF ROSENBERG  
CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES 

***DRAFT*** 
 

 

On this the 24thth day of March, 2015, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, 
met in a Special Workshop Session, in the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, located at 2110 4th 
Street, Rosenberg, Texas. 

 
PRESENT 
Vincent M. Morales, Jr. Mayor 
William Benton  Councilor at Large, Position 1 
Cynthia McConathy Councilor at Large, Position 2 
Jimmie J. Pena  Councilor, District 1  
Susan Euton   Councilor, District 2 
Dwayne Grigar  Councilor, District 3 
Amanda Barta  Councilor, District 4 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Robert Gracia  City Manager 
Scott M. Tschirhart  City Attorney 
Linda Cernosek  City Secretary 
John Maresh   Assistant City Manager of Public Services 
Jeff Trinker   Executive Director of Support Services 
Joyce Vasut  Executive Director of Administrative Services 
Travis Tanner  Executive Director of Community Development 
Charles Kalkomey  City Engineer 
Tonya Palmer  Building Official 
Dallis Warren  Police Chief 
Tommy Havelka  Police Officer 
Wade Goates  Fire Chief 
Angela Fritz   Executive Director of Information Services 
Darren McCarthy  Parks and Recreation Director 
Rigo Calzoncin  Public Works Director 
Kevin Williams  Utilities Superintendent 
Kaye Supak   Executive Assistant 
 
During a City Council Workshop, the City Council does not take final action on the agenda items and any 
consideration of final action will be scheduled at a Regular or Special City Council Meeting. Public 
comments are welcomed at Regular or Special City Council Meetings. No public comments will be 
received at a Workshop Meeting. 
 
The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time during the course of this 
meeting to discuss any of the matters listed below, as authorized by Title 5, Chapter 551, of the Texas 
Government Code. 

 
CALL TO ORDER. 
Mayor Morales called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  

 
 

 
AGENDA 

1.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE CURRENT STATUS OF THE SPACEK TRACTS’ SERVICE PLAN, AND TAKE ACTION 
AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: In November 2011, the City of Rosenberg annexed the area known as the 
“Spacek Tracts,” consisting of approximately 230 acres generally located east of Spacek Road and 
on both sides of FM 2977; south of Fort Bend County MUD No. 144 and Rohan Road; and north of 



Page 2 of 7 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING * MARCH 24, 2015 
 

Bryan Road.  A vicinity map of the area and Ordinance No. 2011-27 are included in the agenda 
packet for reference. 
 
Due to concerns that have been raised regarding the annexation of this area and the related 
provision of City services, staff will provide an overview including, but not limited to, the following: 

• Municipal service plan for the area (Exhibit “C” to Ordinance No. 2011-27) 
• City services that have been provided to date and the estimated cost of providing those 

services 
• Planned capital improvements in the area and related cost estimates 
• The estimated cost of extending City water and sanitary sewer through the majority of the 

area 
• The estimated ad valorem tax revenue collected specifically from the area 
• The required procedures per City Ordinance/Charter and State law for the disannexation of 

this or other areas within the City limits 
• The provision of fire protection services to the area 

 
This item has been placed on the Agenda for City Council to discuss and provide direction to staff. 
 
Key Discussion Points:  

• Travis Tanner, Executive Director of Community Development gave an overview of the item. 
• Mr. Tanner gave a presentation regarding current investments in the area, scheduled 

improvements, and future estimated costs to provide services to the area. Also included were 
the requirements for disannexation as stated in the City Charter. 

• Upon annexation of the Spacek Tract, some City services were provided, such as fire, police, 
and trash. Others, such as water and sewer, have not been developed in that area to date. 

• After discussion, the general consensus of the Council was in favor of disannexation, following 
proper procedures. 

 
Questions/Comments: 

• Q: Has there been a petition received to date for disannexation? 
• A: No petition has been received to date. Some signatures have been gathered by a large 

number of residents in the area, but it is a small, residential area, and is not representative of 
the original annexation. 

• C: We can lawfully disannex as long as the services remain contiguous and it does not cut off 
our ETJs.  

• Q: Can Council initiate the disannexation without a petition? 
• A: No we cannot. We must have a petition from the majority of the qualified voters who live in 

the area. We could do so if it was unoccupied territory, but if there are residences, we must 
have a majority under our Charter. When we receive a petition, we would have to confirm the 
number of qualified voters in this area. 

• Q: Is there any plan to provide the services (water, sewer, etc.) to this area? 
• A: The current five year CIP has a waterline to be installed along Lark Street. That project is 

going to be constructed regardless of disannexation, because that project is directly related 
to our groundwater reduction projects. Other than that, there are no other water or sanitary 
sewer projects on our five year CIP. 

• C: Many of the other developments in the same area, such as the Oaks of Rosenberg 
neighborhood, would not be a part of the City and be afforded the services they are 
receiving had the Council not had the foresight to annex them. Other residents in the area 
took many years to receive their City-provided services that they are now enjoying. A 
potential issue is this area not being included in the ESD (Emergency Services District) #6, so if 
we disannex them, they would be without emergency services. 

• C: Beginning September 30, 2016, the fire department is to cease operation in unincorporated 
areas of Fort Bend County. This was at the heart of the annexation in the first place.  

• C: Most of the calls that are responded to by our fire department are EMS calls, and there is 
County-provided EMS to service the area. 

• C: The City can still choose to provide Emergency Services to the ETJ and be reimbursed by 
the County for those services, but the reimbursement amount is a shortfall to the actual cost of 
services. 

• C: Under State law, if we choose to disannex this piece of property, we will not be able to 



Page 3 of 7 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING * MARCH 24, 2015 
 

reannex it for any purpose for a period of ten years.  
• C: We need to do our due diligence to inform these citizens before they begin signing a 

formal petition of the potential consequences, such as the ten year time period and the 
emergency services. We recommend having a Town Hall Meeting to disclose this information 
to the residents. 

 
Speaker: 

• Hebert Castillo, 1310 Cardinal Drive, Richmond, Texas addressed the Council regarding this 
item, and presented approximately 70 petitions, which equates to 60% of the people who live 
in the community by his calculation. The residents are well aware of the consequential 
change of services and the challenges they will present, but they have dealt with these 
challenges before the annexation. This community is self-sufficient; the only potential issue 
may be fire service, which is being discussed with both the Fire Chief and the County 
Commissioner. In ten years, they may be requesting to be back in the City limits, but for now, 
they want to be disannexed. 

 
2.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS USE OF PORTABLE BUILDINGS AS AN INTERIM SOLUTION FOR OFFICE SPACE NEEDS 

AT WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 1-A, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: During the course of the Facilities Master Plan study, City management and the 
Blue Ribbon Facilities Task Force (Task Force) identified a potentially dangerous office arrangement at 
Wastewater Treatment Plant 1-A.  Several staff members have offices and workstations adjacent to a 
high-pressure chlorine injector.  As chlorine can be a toxic chemical beyond certain thresholds, both 
City management and the Task Force members recognized the potential danger presented to the 
adjacent employees in the event of an accidental chlorine leak.  Included in the agenda packet is 
correspondence from the Task Force recommending that the City take immediate action to mitigate 
this potential hazard. 
 
Staff has considered a plan for a lease with option to purchase of modular buildings that will separate 
the office functions, as well as break room and meeting area space, from the operational buildings.  
Additional supporting documentation includes estimates and schematics for modular buildings that 
could fulfill the Utility Department’s office needs.  Due to the unusual combination of features required 
in the employee modular building, this facility will likely require a custom design. 
 
Upon City Council direction to do so, staff will return in the near future with a Request for Proposals 
document for consideration. 
 
Key Discussion Points:  

• Jeff Trinker, Executive Director of Support Services gave an overview of the item. 
• The Blue Ribbon Facilities Task Force toured all of the facilities owned by the City, and they 

immediately raised concern for the health and safety of the employees at this Wastewater 
Treatment Plant with regards to their close proximity to large quantities of pressurized chlorine. 
They have witnessed signs of chlorine infiltration in the office space, as evidenced by corrosion 
to metal objects such as pipes and file cabinets. 

• Staff is asking for direction to investigate the acquisition of modular building(s) to relocate 
Utilities staff, and would like permission to submit a Request for Proposals. 

• Robert Gracia, City Manager, emphasized the critical nature of the unsafe work environment. 
• After discussion, the general consensus was to gather information through the RFP process and 

bring it back to Council at a later date. 
 
Questions/Comments: 

• Q: How long has this condition existed? 
• A: This condition has existed for a numbers of years. 
• Q: Are we in violation of any sort of hazardous material regulations?  
• A: No, but in general, chlorine is a very hazardous material and it is not good to inhale.  
• C: Typically, the lab building (which was the original intent of this structure) is just for the use of 

wastewater treatment plant operators for record keeping, as they spend the majority of their 
time outdoors. It was not intended for full-time offices of employees. Such functions are usually 
in separate buildings. 

• Q: Are we providing the appropriate ventilation in this facility? 



Page 4 of 7 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING * MARCH 24, 2015 
 

• A: We do meet the TCEQ requirements for ventilation. 
• Q: How many employees are located at this facility at any one period of time? 
• A: It varies, but there are two employees that are there the majority of the time, and other 

operators are in and out throughout the day. 
• Q: What was PGAL’s recommendation for this facility? 
• A:  They have not yet finalized their conclusion, but they are looking into a long-term solution 

of a Public Works Complex. These buildings would not be for long-term use, but for a short-term 
solution to the immediate problem. This particular facility was never considered for retrofit, in 
large part due to the conditions there. 

• C: Staff should continue to shop around for a good price, and should consider purchasing as 
opposed to leasing. 

• C: It is a dangerous situation and the employees need to be moved. However, there is 
concern over the cost and size of a modular building as a temporary fix. 

• C: This is a safety issue. We need to react swiftly and strongly to get employees out of this 
environment, and worry about the cost later. The chief concern should be the safety and 
welfare of the people.  

• Q: Why does the current proposal have space for eight if there are only two employees 
housed full-time in the current facility? 

• A: We would like to move the people from the other building on the same property into the 
modular building so that all of the employees will be housed under one roof. There are 
approximately 16 people in and out throughout the day. 

• Q: Could we cut costs by having City employees doing the electrical and plumbing in-house? 
• A: Electrical would have to be done by a licensed electrician, but some of the plumbing 

could be done in-house. 
• Q:  Are we going to continue to use chlorine with our surface water treatment? 
• A: This hazard will be phased out in the next three to five years. 
• Q: Could these employees be relocated to a less hazardous environment, or do they need to 

be at this particular facility? 
• A: They could potentially be housed somewhere else, but the issue is that there is no office 

space anywhere else.  
• Q: Is this site inspected periodically by the TCEQ or the EPA? 
• A: It is annually inspected by TCEQ, and the EPA will do a periodic inspection of the risk 

management plan. 
• Q: Have we received any citations or anything to indicate that this is urgent? 
• A:  Yes, Southwest Water (the former operator of this plant) received a fine the last time there 

was an inspection by the EPA.  
• Q: Why is this is a custom design instead of a standard building? 
• A: We may be able to use a standard building for the office space, but the employee space 

will have to be custom because there are not any buildings that come standard with a 
kitchen, lockers, and a shower. 

 
3.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS HOURS OF CONSTRUCTION WITHIN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, AND TAKE ACTION 

AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: This item has been added to the Workshop Agenda in order to offer City Council 
the opportunity to discuss construction within the City of Rosenberg, and the hours during which said 
construction may occur. Included in the agenda packet is the current applicable Code relative to 
construction within the City. 
 
Key Discussion Points:  

• Amanda Barta, Councilor, District 4, gave an overview of the item. 
• This item was brought before Council due to a cement company in the Town Center area 

beginning work at 2 a.m., and the subsequent complaint calls throughout the early morning 
hours, many coming from families with young children. Ms. Barta would like Council to review 
the Ordinance as it is currently written and the corresponding fines. 

• Dallis Warren, Police Chief, advised that Rosenberg Police Department received a large 
number of calls that night and responded twice to that location. Typically, with calls of this 
nature, officers visit the location and are able to get voluntary compliance. In this case, 
assuming this business values the importance of their work or the deadline of their schedule 
over the threat of a relatively small fine, officers were unable to get the noise to stop.  



Page 5 of 7 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING * MARCH 24, 2015 
 

• Scott Tschirhart, City Attorney, recommended that we include these restrictions as part of the 
construction permitting process, making it easier to separate businesses from residents, 
ensuring that every construction company is aware of the restrictions, and granting the ability 
to pull a permit in order to stop the work immediately upon a violation of this nature. 

• After discussion, the general consensus was to have the City Attorney investigate options and 
bring them before Council in order to tighten up the rules to avoid future noise complaints on 
this level. Another suggestion was to possibly put a vicinity map on the City’s website with the 
areas the street sweeper proposes to sweep to inform citizens so they could move their cars 
out of the street during that period of time. 

 
4.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED IMPROVEMENT OF RECEIPT OF NOTICE REGARDING STREETS TO BE 

SWEPT FROM THE STREET SWEEPING CONTRACTOR, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: This item has been added to the Workshop Agenda in order to discuss the 
proposed improvement of notice regarding streets scheduled to be swept in the City, and relates to 
notice currently provided by the street sweeping vendor in advance of such sweeping. 
 
Key Discussion Points:  

• William Benton, Councilor, At Large Position 1, brought this item before Council to ask for 
notice of when the street sweepers will be coming so that residents are able to move their 
cars in order to take full advantage of this service. 

• John Maresh, Assistant City Manager, explained that the contractor gives the City daily notice 
of what they plan to do each day, but are unable to provide much more foresight, due to 
variables of equipment breakdown, weather, logistics, and the schedule or success of the 
previous day. 

• After discussion, the general consensus was for Public Works to work with the street sweeping 
contractor in order to investigate possible ways to communicate their projected schedule with 
residents.  

 
5.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED POLICE PRESENCE AT THE INTERSECTIONS OF AVENUE H/STATE 

HIGHWAY 36 AND AVENUE I/STATE HIGHWAY 36 DURING PEAK TRAFFIC TIMES, AND TAKE ACTION AS 
NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.   
Executive Summary: There have been certain traffic-related concerns expressed regarding the 
intersections of Avenue H and State Highway 36, and at Avenue I and State Highway 36.  
 
This item has been added to the Workshop Agenda to offer City Council the opportunity to discuss a 
potential increase in the police presence at these sites in the morning from 7:00 a.m., to 8:30 a.m., 
and in the evening from 4:00 p.m., to 5:30 p.m., Monday through Friday. The increased presence 
would not be required during the summer months and/or during school holidays. Discussion may also 
include potential budgetary implications of such presence, signage options, and revised signalization 
in these areas. 
 
Key Discussion Points:  

• Councilor Benton gave an overview of the item, stating that the lights seem to be mistimed, 
causing vehicles to block the intersections. He believes police presence during peak hours, 
along with increased signage, will help alleviate some of the violations and impatience. 

• Dallis Warren agreed that there is congestion at these intersections, which are home to some 
of the highest volume traffic in the City. The intersections in question have been targeted by 
RPD on multiple occasions throughout the year, but for a daily police presence at the 
specified hours, the cost would be approximately $65,000 in overtime for an entire year.  

• Chief Warren has made two requests to TXDOT, and TXDOT has added some signage, but not 
necessarily the signage as requested. He has also requested that TXDOT review the 
synchronization of those traffic lights, but there is no timeline for a resolution at this time. 

• After discussion, the general consensus of Council was to have Police Chief Warren provide a 
more detailed cost estimate of increased police presence during the high volume traffic 
times, and to have Mayor Morales write a letter on behalf of the City to TXDOT with regard to 
this intersection. 

  
Mayor Morales recessed the meeting for a five minute break. 



Page 6 of 7 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING * MARCH 24, 2015 
 

 

6.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROHIBITION OF EIGHTEEN-WHEELER TRAFFIC FROM THE INTERSECTIONS OF 
AVENUE H/STATE HIGHWAY 36 AND AVENUE I/STATE HIGHWAY 36, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO 
DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: This item has been added to the Workshop Agenda in order to discuss the 
potential prohibition of through semi truck traffic at the intersections of Avenue H and State Highway 
36 and Avenue I and State Highway 36, unless the truck’s destination is actually located within the 
City.   
 
Discussion may also include LED or other signalization methods that would direct truck traffic to Spur 
10, or other byways outside of the City; and, proposed educational and informational signage for 
truck drivers that could be placed along U.S. 59, Highway 90, Spur 10, and State Highway 36 
regarding same. 
 
Key Discussion Points:  

• Councilor Benton brought this item before Council to determine if there is anything Council or 
staff can do in order to encourage 18-wheeler trucks to use Spur 10 instead of cutting through 
town on Highway 36.  

• Scott Tschirhart advised that the City can prohibit use of surface streets, but cannot prohibit 
truckers from using State Highways and Farm-to-Market Roads. 

• Mayor Morales stated that many GPS devices do not even recognize Spur 10 as a route. 
• The general consensus of Council was to request additional signage from TXDOT at Spur 10 to 

encourage 18-wheeler traffic use thereof. Mr. Tschirhart advised Council to involve State 
Congressmen to further persuade TXDOT. 

  
7.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE PROPOSED FY2015 STREET OVERLAY/RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT LIST, AND 

TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: In past years, the Public Works Department has submitted the list of streets to be 
overlaid and rebuilt to City Council for approval. For FY2015, the Public Works Department has 
identified a list of twenty-seven (27) street sections that have immediate needs, at a total estimated 
cost of $3.5 million. The FY2015 Budget includes funding in the amount of $800,000, therefore staff has 
prioritized a list that will fall within the budgeted amount. Both of the aforementioned lists and location 
maps have been included within the agenda packet.  
 
Due to the backlog of work on the Fort Bend County Road and Bridge Department’s work schedule, 
the FY2015 proposed project list also includes the costs for a Contractor to provide the necessary 
equipment and labor to complete the project. All of the material, labor and equipment costs are 
based on current Fort Bend County bids, with the exception of the subgrade lime stabilization which 
will have to be bid separately by the City.  
 
For reference, the list of remaining streets to be repaved from the approved FY2014 Street Paving 
Project list is also included in the packet. Fort Bend County Road and Bridge Department is still 
planning to complete the remainder of the FY2014 work later this Spring/Summer.   
 
Staff recommends approval of the Prioritized FY2015 Street Overlay and Reconstruction Project List 
that will fall within the budgeted amount as presented. If City Council concurs, an action item will be 
placed on an upcoming Regular City Council Agenda. 
 
Key Discussion Points:  

• John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services read the Executive Summary. 
• Councilor Grigar supports the list, and further encourages taking some of these streets that are 

in the worst shape out for bid in order to improve them in a timelier manner, rather than 
waiting on the County. 

• The current plan is to wait on the County to be able to get to us on their workload, but to look 
into contractors as the end of the year approaches in order to be able to improve some of 
the worst streets sooner rather than later. 

• After discussion, the general consensus of the Council was in support of the Prioritized FY2015 
Street Overlay and Reconstruction Project List as presented. 



Page 7 of 7 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING * MARCH 24, 2015 
 

 

8.  REVIEW AND DISCUSS BUILDING PLANS FOR RESTROOM AT MACARIO GARCIA PARK, AND TAKE ACTION 
AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF.  
Executive Summary: Replacement of the restrooms at Macario Garcia Park was designated as a park 
improvement in the FY2015 Budget by the Rosenberg Development Corporation.  The current 
restroom facility is outdated and cannot be sanitized properly.  Building plans for a prefabricated, 
modular restroom unit were presented at the regularly scheduled Parks and Recreation Board 
meeting on January 22, 2015. The Board reviewed the plans and after some discussion, unanimously 
recommended to have the current restroom facility removed and replaced with a new one similar to 
the plans from WalCon, Inc. 
 
Staff has placed this item on the Agenda to receive City Council’s input on the Board 
recommendation that a new restroom facility replace the current restroom facility in Macario Garcia 
Park.   
 
Key Discussion Points:  

• Darren McCarthy, Parks and Recreation Director gave an overview of the item and presented 
a draft document containing the suggested specifications for the replacement restroom 
facility.  

• The $150,000 requested would provide for deconstruction of the existing facility and 
construction of the new facility. 

• Garcia Park is the last park for restroom replacement. Its specifications will be in line with the 
previous parks’ restroom facilities. 

• The consensus of the Council was to move forward with the proposal. 
 

9.  ADJOURNMENT. 
There being no further business, Mayor Morales adjourned the meeting at 8:40 p.m. 

 
 
 

____________________________________________ 
     Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 07, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

B 
Resolution No. R-1949 - Support of S.B. 581 for a Texas State Technical 
College Campus in Fort Bend County 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1949 a Resolution in support of Texas Senate Bill No. 
581 relating to the creation of a campus of the Texas State Technical College System in Fort Bend 
County. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [  ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  

N/A 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  
 

MUD #:  N/A 

1. Resolution No. R-1949 
2. Texas Senate Bill No. 581 – Filed by Senator Lois Kolkhorst 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

Randall Malik 
Economic Development 
Director  

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services  
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services 
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
 
 
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Senator Lois Kolkhorst of Texas Senate District 18 has filed Texas Senate Bill No. 581, relating to the 
creation of a campus of the Texas State Technical College (TSTC) in Fort Bend County. TSTC is working 
with the George and Henderson-Wessendorff Foundations on building a new TSTC Fort Bend Campus. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1949 as presented. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1949 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, IN SUPPORT OF TEXAS SENATE BILL NO. 
581 – RELATING TO THE CREATION OF A CAMPUS OF THE TEXAS 
STATE TECHNICAL COLLEGE SYSTEM IN FORT BEND COUNTY. 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 
 WHEREAS, the expansion of the Fort Bend Texas State Technical College will 
have a positive impact on the local and regional economy; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the Fort Bend Texas State Technical College will enhance 
educational opportunities in Rosenberg and Fort Bend County; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Fort Bend Texas State Technical College will enhance access to 

skilled labor in Rosenberg; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Rosenberg desires to partner with Texas State Technical 

College and affiliated organizations on a Texas State Technical College to be located in 
Fort Bend County; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 

Section 1. That the Rosenberg City Council supports Senate Bill No. 581 

relating to the creation of a campus of the Texas State Technical College System in Fort 

Bend County. 

 

PASSED, APPROVED, and RESOLVED this _____ day of ____________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
__________________________   ________________________________  
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor  
   
    
 



By:AAKolkhorst S.B.ANo.A581

A BILL TO BE ENTITLED

AN ACT

relating to the creation of a campus of the Texas State Technical

College System in Fort Bend County.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:

SECTIONA1.AASection 135.02(a), Education Code, is amended to

read as follows:

(a)AAThe Texas State Technical College System is composed of:

(1)AAa system office located in the city of Waco in

McLennan County;

(2)AAa campus located in the city of Harlingen in

Cameron County;

(3)AAa campus serving West Texas that operates as a

collective unit of strategically positioned permanent locations in

the city of Sweetwater in Nolan County, the city of Abilene in

Taylor County, the city of Brownwood in Brown County, and the city

of Breckenridge in Stephens County;

(4)AAa campus located in the city of Marshall in

Harrison County;

(5)AAa campus located in the city of Waco in McLennan

County;

(6)AAa campus located in the city of Richmond in Fort

Bend County;

(7)AAan extension center located in Ellis County; and

(8)A[(7)]AAcampuses assigned to the system from time to

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

84R1667 JSL-F 1

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=ED&Value=135.02&Date=2/16/2015


time by specific legislative Act.

SECTIONA2.AASection 135.04(b), Education Code, is amended to

read as follows:

(b)AABefore any program may be offered by a campus or

extension center within the tax district of a public junior college

that is operating a vocational and technical program, it must be

established that the public junior college is not capable of

offering or is unable to offer the program.AAAfter it is

established that a need for the program exists and that the program

is not locally available, the campus or extension center may offer

the program, provided approval is secured from the coordinating

board. Approval of technical-vocational programs under this

section does not apply to Brown, McLennan, Cameron, Fort Bend, and

Potter counties.

SECTIONA3.AAThis Act takes effect immediately if it receives

a vote of two-thirds of all the members elected to each house, as

provided by Section 39, Article III, Texas Constitution. If this

Act does not receive the vote necessary for immediate effect, this

Act takes effect September 1, 2015.

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

S.B.ANo.A581

2

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=ED&Value=135.04&Date=2/16/2015
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/GetStatute.aspx?Code=CN&Value=3.39&Date=2/16/2015


CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

April 07, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

C FY2015 Street Overlay and Reconstruction Project List 

ITEM/MOTION 
 

Consideration of and action on the City of Rosenberg FY2015 Street Overlay and Reconstruction Project List. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[X] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds: 
   
101-5022-530-7030 
 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. FY2015 Priority Street Overlay and Reconstruction Project List – 03-24-15 
2. FY2015 Priority Street Overlay and Reconstruction Location Map 
3. 2014 Street Paving Project – Remaining Work 
4. City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 03-24-15 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager for Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Director of Public Works 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The list of streets for the proposed FY2015 Street Overlay and Reconstruction Project was presented to 
City Council during the March 24, 2015 Workshop. A copy of the Priority Project List is included in the 
packet. The cost estimate for the recommended streets included on the Priority Project List is 
approximately $800,253.55. The FY2015 Budget includes $800,000.00, which should fully fund the 
FY2015 project.  
 
Upon City Council approval, staff will take the necessary actions to purchase the material, including labor 
and equipment utilizing the Fort Bend County bids. Staff will also prepare bid specifications and complete 
the bidding process for the subgrade lime stabilization. After bids are received, an action item to award this 
bid will be placed on a future City Council Agenda.  
 
For reference, the list of remaining streets to be repaved from the approved FY2014 Street Paving Project 
list is also included in the packet. Fort Bend County Road and Bridge Department is still planning to 
complete the remainder of the FY2014 work later this Spring/Summer.    
  
Staff recommends approval of the FY2015 Priority Street Overlay and Reconstruction Project List as 
presented. 
 



District Street Name Boundaries From ‐ To Asphalt Grand Total Delivery Grand Total Lime  Laydown Grand Total  Grand Total
4 Avenue N FM 2218 ‐ Graeber Road $122,734.38 $6,575.06 $150,196.20 $43,833.71 $323,339.35
2 West Street  Bernie ‐ US 59 $64,829.96 $3,473.03 $79,335.67 $23,153.56 $170,792.22
1 Walnut Avenue FM 723 ‐ Mulcahy $18,687.64 $1,001.12 $22,869.00 $6,674.16 $49,231.92
3 Brooks Hwy 36 ‐ 4th Street $20,764.04 $1,112.36 $25,410.00 $7,415.73 $54,702.13
1 Carlisle Street Avenue E ‐ Walnut Avenue $5,662.92 $303.37 $6,930.00 $2,022.47 $14,918.76
2 Dallas Avenue Hwy 36 ‐ Brazos $28,566.29 $1,530.34 $34,958.00 $10,202.25 $75,256.88
2 Avenue K Hwy 36 ‐Carlisle St $15,940.07 $853.93 $19,506.67 $5,692.88 $41,993.56
1 Horace Mann Avenue I ‐ Mustang Avenue $26,577.98 $1,423.82 $32,524.80 $9,492.13 $70,018.73

Total: $303,763.30 $16,273.03 $371,730.33 $108,486.89 $800,253.55

Summary of All Districts 
Asphalt Grand Total $303,763.30
Delivery Grand Total $16,273.03
Lime Grand Total $371,730.33

Laydown Grand Total $108,486.89
 Grand Total $800,253.55

 PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2015 PRIORITY STREET RECONSTRUCTION



!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!! !!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!
!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!!!!
!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!! !!!!

!!!!

!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!
!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!!!

AVE N

WEST

WALNUT

HORACE MANN

DALLAS

BROOKS

CARLISLE

AVE K

¬«36

¬«36
I

N

J

F
G

1ST

K L

R

4TH

P

O

A

SOUTHWEST FWY

M

E

C

LA
NE

BAMORE

B

6TH

8TH

7TH

5TH

LO
UI

SE

BLUME

AIRPORT

MONS

BRYAN

B F
 TE

RR
Y

KLAUKE

W
ARD

LAMAR

R A
D I

O

2ND

OLD RICHMOND

RICE

JO NE S

MUSTANGWALNUT

WEST

AL
AM

O

JUNKER

R EESE

DYER

DALLAS

BAKE R

RE A DING

PL
EA

K VILLAGE

THOMPSON

BROOKS

WALGER

LONG

CARLISLE

RIV ER

CR
IS

TEXAS

TIMBER

CAY

CO
LE

GEORGE

3RD

HUNTINGTON

PISCES

DAMON

F A IR GR OU N DS

MILLIE

FRANCES

SALLY ANNE
LINDSEY

SOUTHGATE

EASY

PARROTT

FOUNTA IN S

KLARE

COTTONWOOD SCHOOL

WILSON

TOBOLA

BERNIE

LA
ZY

WINSTON

HOMESTEAD

GR
AE

BE
R

AUSTIN

RU

S TI C

LEAMAN

LAUREL
S

RUDE

DI
VIN

36TH DIVISION MEMORIAL HWY

QUEBEC

WALSH

LORY

GEORGINA

RYCHLIK

LAW
RENCE

LAUREL OAKS

HOUSTON

RUBY

STONERIDGE

JAMES

HERNDON

WALENTA

SPRUCE

DELTA

MAHLMANN

WALID

BERNARD

DAVIS

R IPPLE CREEK

DAVID

RIVERWO OD

VERA CRUZ

MEBANE

PARMA

HE
MPL

E

MAGNOLIA

MULCAHY

CO TTER

DANZIGER

TR A VIS

CALLENDER

ELIZABETH

WILD COTTON

WOODWAY

CEDAR

GREENWOOD

CHUPIK

FOSTER

HILL

MILES

ELM

DOWLING

TERESA

JENNETTA

TAYLAN

PECAN
WILBURN

RIC
HA

RD

H AW T HOR N

LIVE O AK

PRAIRIE

REDBUD

TALASEK

HILLCREST

ATHEA

CHESTNUT

CANYON HILL

REINHARD

FROST

AL
LW

RI
GH

T

M ANOR

MADISON

BANNER

CYPRESS

SILVERADO

M ONROE OL
D C

RE
EK

SEQUOIA

PARKWAY

CRESTWOOD

JEFFERSON

WILLOW

COLUMBARY

STELLA

M ULB E RRY

PECANPA RK

SIDNEY

CITY HALL

BR
AZ

OS

GRILLO

ELL
I S

GROV E

COURTNEY
BRIAR RIDGE

SAN JACINTO

WALL

MAIN

SEABOU RNE MEA D O WS

WASHINGTON

WINNIPEG

MATAMOROS

RAWSON

SP
AC

EK

SAN CARLOS

MARILYN

LLOYD

AC
E

RICHWOOD

WAGON W HEEL

BELVEDERE

GLENMEADOW

WEHRING

AQUARIUS

GRUNWALD HEIGHTS

BRUM B E L OW

W EST WOOD

KOEBLEN

CRABAPPLE

TURT L E CREEK

OA
KC

REEK

KANE

HABITAT

MACARTHUR

GRAND CANE

GERONA

HAPPY

PEACE

CH
EL

SE
A

HOLLY
KEN T VA

LL
E Y

ALLEN

JANE LONG

WIM
B ER

LY
HO

LL
OW

CUNNINGHAM

HARDCASTLE

LEONARD

WOODROW

HA
NN

OV
ER

MC
 K

IN
LE

Y

CANDLER

PEASE RIVER

MIMOSA

BURNET

LEE

CYPRESS LANDING

CORPORATE

ARBOR

CREOLE BAY

GARDENIA

CA
MB

AY

BLACKHAWK RIDGE

TOBOLA

5TH

3R
D

4TH

LOUISE

L

BERNIE

C

WEST

DAMON

KLAUKE

VERA CRUZ

CYPRESS

L

2ND

ELM

CR
IS

L

1ST

ALLEN

LO
UI

SE

MI
LE

S

M

K

G

HOUSTON
HOUSTON

O

E

G

6TH

3RD

K

G

READING

BAMO R E

CEDAR

LEAMAN LEAMAN

MULCAHY

J

E

MAHL MA N N

CYPRES S

4TH

KLA U K E

BRAZOS

6TH

L

A

F

2ND

JUNKER

FROST

O

SOUTHWEST FWY

7TH

WARD

3RD

B

8TH

MI
LL

IE
BR YAN

JONES

O

SAN JACINTO

@A2218

@A1640

@A723

öõ529

£¤90A

§̈¦£¤96 5959

§̈¦£¤96 5959

1 Inch = 2,000 Feet

1:24,000

Fiscal Year 2015
City of Rosenberg, Texas

Scale:

or

0 2,000 4,000
Feet

FY 2015 Paving
Interstate
US Highway
State Highway
Public Road
Private Road
Railroad
Brazos River
Rosenberg City Limits
Rosenberg ETJ
Other Jurisdictions

This product is for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable 
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of geographic features.

Created by: City of Rosenberg GIS -  Cory Vardaman
Date Created: March 19, 2015
Original Size: 11" x 17"
K:\GIS\MAPS\Public_Works\2015\Paving_Exhibit_FY15_11x17.mxd

Å

Û

N

S

EW

The 2014 Aerial Imagery Data is the sole property of Houston-Galveston
Area Council, which reserves all rights thereto.  Use or reproduction of
this data is strictly prohibited absent written consent from the Houston-
Galveston Area Council, which may be contacted at www.h-gac.com.

STREET RECONSTRUCTION



District Street Name Boundaries From - To

#1 West Street Avenue D - Walnut
#1 Walnut Willow - Mulcahy
#1 Radio Lane Avenue H - Avenue I

#2 Mulcahy Street Avenue I - Walger
#2 Blackwood Muegge - Dead End
#2 J. Meyer Road FM 2218 - Seabourne Creek
#2 Houston Street Avenue I - Avenue K
#2 James Street Avenue I - Avenue L

#3 Avenue L Damon - Dead End
#3 7th Street Avenue N - Parrot Street
#3 Avenue J Mahlmann - Austin Street

#4 Homestead Road FM 2218 - Dead End
#4 Lazy Lane Homestead - Reading Road
#4 Richard Street Homestead - Reading Road
#4 Allwright Homestead - Reading Road

City of Rosenberg

Remaining Work

2014 Street Paving Project



Page 6 of 7 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING * MARCH 24, 2015

6. REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROHIBITION OF EIGHTEEN-WHEELER TRAFFIC FROM THE INTERSECTIONS OF 
AVENUE H/STATE HIGHWAY 36 AND AVENUE I/STATE HIGHWAY 36, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO 
DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: This item has been added to the Workshop Agenda in order to discuss the 
potential prohibition of through semi truck traffic at the intersections of Avenue H and State Highway 
36 and Avenue I and State Highway 36, unless the truck’s destination is actually located within the 
City.  

Discussion may also include LED or other signalization methods that would direct truck traffic to Spur 
10, or other byways outside of the City; and, proposed educational and informational signage for 
truck drivers that could be placed along U.S. 59, Highway 90, Spur 10, and State Highway 36 
regarding same.

Key Discussion Points:
� Councilor Benton brought this item before Council to determine if there is anything Council or 

staff can do in order to encourage 18-wheeler trucks to use Spur 10 instead of cutting through 
town on Highway 36.

� Scott Tschirhart advised that the City can prohibit use of surface streets, but cannot prohibit 
truckers from using State Highways and Farm-to-Market Roads.

� Mayor Morales stated that many GPS devices do not even recognize Spur 10 as a route.
� The general consensus of Council was to request additional signage from TXDOT at Spur 10 to 

encourage 18-wheeler traffic use thereof. Mr. Tschirhart advised Council to involve State 
Congressmen to further persuade TXDOT.

7. REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE PROPOSED FY2015 STREET OVERLAY/RECONSTRUCTION PROJECT LIST, AND 
TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: In past years, the Public Works Department has submitted the list of streets to be 
overlaid and rebuilt to City Council for approval. For FY2015, the Public Works Department has 
identified a list of twenty-seven (27) street sections that have immediate needs, at a total estimated 
cost of $3.5 million. The FY2015 Budget includes funding in the amount of $800,000, therefore staff has 
prioritized a list that will fall within the budgeted amount. Both of the aforementioned lists and location 
maps have been included within the agenda packet.

Due to the backlog of work on the Fort Bend County Road and Bridge Department’s work schedule, 
the FY2015 proposed project list also includes the costs for a Contractor to provide the necessary 
equipment and labor to complete the project. All of the material, labor and equipment costs are 
based on current Fort Bend County bids, with the exception of the subgrade lime stabilization which 
will have to be bid separately by the City. 

For reference, the list of remaining streets to be repaved from the approved FY2014 Street Paving 
Project list is also included in the packet. Fort Bend County Road and Bridge Department is still 
planning to complete the remainder of the FY2014 work later this Spring/Summer.  

Staff recommends approval of the Prioritized FY2015 Street Overlay and Reconstruction Project List 
that will fall within the budgeted amount as presented. If City Council concurs, an action item will be 
placed on an upcoming Regular City Council Agenda.

Key Discussion Points:
� John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services read the Executive Summary.
� Councilor Grigar supports the list, and further encourages taking some of these streets that are 

in the worst shape out for bid in order to improve them in a timelier manner, rather than 
waiting on the County.

� The current plan is to wait on the County to be able to get to us on their workload, but to look 
into contractors as the end of the year approaches in order to be able to improve some of 
the worst streets sooner rather than later.

� After discussion, the general consensus of the Council was in support of the Prioritized FY2015 
Street Overlay and Reconstruction Project List as presented.

reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 07, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

D 
Resolution No. R-1953 - General Warranty Deed Acceptance (5187 Bryan 
Road) 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1953, a Resolution acknowledging the acquisition, by 
General Warranty Deed, of a 20-foot wide strip of land in the Robert E. Handy Survey, Abstract 187, City 
of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, being out of and a part of that certain called 0.998 acre tract 
recorded in Volume 2725, Page 4, Official Records, Fort Bend County, Texas, and generally located at 
5187 Bryan Road, Rosenberg, Texas, and associated with the Bryan Road Improvement Project. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[X] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:    

419-0000-550-7032 (CP1103) 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1.  Resolution No. R-1953 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

As a part of the improvements necessary for the widening of Bryan Road, City Council authorized staff to 
negotiate and purchase certain real property, namely a 20-foot strip of property located at 5187 Bryan 
Road to serve as a part of the required public right-of-way for the Bryan Road Improvement Project. 
 
Staff has successfully completed the negotiation and successfully acquired said real property. Accordingly, 
staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1953 providing for the acceptance of said property 
generally located at 5187 Bryan Road, Rosenberg, Texas, and associated with the Bryan Road 
Improvement Project. 
 



 

RESOLUTION NO. R-1953 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, A RESOLUTION ACKNOWLEDGING THE 
ACQUISITION OF A 20-FOOT WIDE STRIP OF LAND IN THE ROBERT 
E. HANDY SURVEY, ABSTRACT 187, CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT 
BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING OUT OF AND A PART OF THAT 
CERTAIN CALLED 0.998 ACRE TRACT RECORDED IN VOLUME 
2725, PAGE 4, OFFICIAL RECORDS, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, 
AND GENERALLY LOCATED AT 5187 BRYAN ROAD, ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, AND ASSOCIATED WITH THE BRYAN ROAD 
IMPROVEMENT PROJECT.  
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 

      WHEREAS, the City Council acknowledges that it was desirable and in the best interest of the 
City of Rosenberg (“City”) to acquire a 20-foot wide strip of land  generally located at a site more 
particularly described in that certain General Warranty Deed, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” made a part 
hereof for all purposes; and, 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council acknowledges that the subject property was necessary for public 

use and in order to provide for future needs, services, and infrastructure of the City, in particular the 
Bryan Road Improvement Project; and,  
 

WHEREAS, staff was directed to prepare and facilitate any and all documentation necessary to 
acquire that certain real property; and, 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council acknowledges that negotiations have been successfully conducted; 

now, therefore, 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 

     Section 1. That the City Council of the City of Rosenberg acknowledges the acquisition of a 

certain General Warranty Deed for real property more particularly described as 20-foot wide strip of land 

in the Robert E. Handy Survey, Abstract 187, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, being out of 

and a part of that certain called 0.998 acre tract recorded in Volume 2725, Page 4, Official Records, Fort 

Bend County, Texas, more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto for all purposes. 

Section 2. That the City Council accepts the foregoing General Warranty Deed regarding 

acquisition of real property necessary for public use and in order to provide for future needs, services, 

and infrastructure of the City, in particular the Bryan Road Improvement Project .   

      PASSED, APPROVED AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary     Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 



reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1953











CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 07, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

E Final Plat of The Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Four 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of The Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Four, being a 
27.6398 acre tract of land being a partial replat of Reserve “H”, Block 4, The Villages at Rosenberg (Slide 
No. 1945 A&B; F.B.C.P.R.) conveyed to Figure Four Partners, Ltd. (F.B.C.C.F. No. 2013159055) in the 
Jane H. Long League, Abstract No. 55, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas; 4 reserves, 104 lots, 
3 blocks.   

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 MUD #:  167 (Brazos Town 

Center) 

 
1. Final Plat of The Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Four 
2. Developer’s Conceptual Plan, Revised Exhibit “B” Brazos Town Center – 01-20-15 
3. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 01-21-15 
4. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 11-19-14  

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of 
Community Development

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Final Plat of The Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Four is located off of Town Center Boulevard, 
north of its intersection with Vista Drive.  It is located within the City Limits; in Fort Bend County MUD No. 167; 
and immediately west of The Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Three, which has been recorded.  The 
Plat consists of approximately 27.6 acres, with 104 single-family residential lots and four (4) reserves. 

The typical lot size for the subdivision is 50 feet in width.  This is per the approved Land Plan, which was most 
recently amended on January 20, 2015 (see attached).  Per the amended Development Agreement, homes in 
the subdivision will also be a minimum of 51 percent masonry construction, which is noted on the Plat. 

The Preliminary Plat of this subdivision was approved by the Planning Commission on November 19, 
2014, and the Final Plat was recommended by approval on January 21, 2015.  The proposed Final Plat is 
not in conflict with any applicable regulations, with the approved Land Plan for Brazos Town Center, or with 
the approved Preliminary Plat.  That being said, staff and the Planning Commission recommend approval 
of the Final Plat of The Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Four. 
 











reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



janete
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 07, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

F Final Plat of The Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Five 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of The Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Five, a 
22.1380 acre tract of land in the Robert Handy Survey, Abstract No. 187, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend 
County, Texas;  3 reserves, 73 lots,  2 blocks. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 MUD #:  167 (Brazos Town 

Center) 

 
1. Final Plat of the Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Five 
2. Developer’s Conceptual Plan, Revised Exhibit “B” Brazos Town Center – 01-20-15 – Please refer 

to previous Agenda item 
3. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 01-21-15 
4. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 10-15-14 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of 
Community Development

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Final Plat of The Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Five is located off of Town Center Boulevard, to 
the east of its intersection with FM 2218.  It is located within the City Limits and in Fort Bend County MUD No. 
167.  The Plat consists of approximately 22.14 acres, with 73 single-family residential lots and three (3) reserves. 
 
The typical lot size for the subdivision is fifty-five (55’) feet in width.  This is per the approved Land Plan, as 
amended on January 20, 2015 (see attached).  Per the amended Development Agreement, residences in the 
subdivision must also be a minimum of three (3) sides masonry exterior and 2,000 square feet in size. 
 
The Preliminary Plat of this subdivision was approved by the Planning Commission on October 15, 2014, 
and the Final Plat was recommended for approval on January 21, 2015.  The proposed Final Plat is not in 
conflict with any applicable regulations, with the approved Land Plan or Development Agreement for 
Brazos Town Center, or with the approved Preliminary Plat.  That being said, staff and the Planning 
Commission recommend approval of the Final Plat of The Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Five. 
 









reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 

On this the 15th day of October 2014, the Planning Commission of the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, met in 
a regular meeting at the Rosenberg City Hall Council Chamber, 2110 4th Street, Rosenberg, Texas 77471. 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT 
Pete Pavlovsky 

Lester Phipps, Jr. 
Wayne Poldrack 
Alicia Casias 
Mike Parsons 
James Urbish 

STAFF PRESENT 
Travis Tanner 
Renee LeLaurin 

OTHERS PRESENT 
Geoff Freeman 

CALL TO ORDER 

Planning Commission Chairperson 
Planning Commission Vice Chairperson 
Planning Commission Secretary 
Planning Commissioner 
Planning Commissioner 
Planning Commissioner 

Executive Director of Community Development 
Secretary II 

BGE/Kerry R. Gilbert & Associates (Brazos Town Center) 

Chairperson Pavlovsky called the meeting to order at 4:02 p.m. 

AGENDA 

1. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING OF 
SEPTEMBER 17,2014. 

Action Taken: Commissioner Casias moved, seconded by Commissioner Parsons, to approve the minutes of the 
regular Planning Commission meeting of September 17, 2014, as written. The motion carried unanimously. 

2. HOLD PUBLIC HEARING ON A PRELIMINARY PLAT OF ROSENBERG 36 INDUSTRIAL PARK, A 
SUBDIVISION OF 18.214 ACRES OF LAND BEING A PARTIAL REPLAT OF LOT NO. 17 OF ROSENBERG 
FARMS SUBDIVISION (VOLUME 3, PAGE 575; DEED RECORDS OF FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, AND 
VOLUME 4, PAGE 25; PLAT RECORDS OF FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS) BEING A CALL 17.135 ACRE 
TRACT (FORT BEND COUNTY CLERK'S FILE NO. 2014072299) TOGETHER WITH A CALL 0.754 ACRE 
TRACT (FORT BEND COUNTY CLERK'S FILE NO. 2012014590) AND A CALL 0.32 ACRE TRACT (FORT 
BEND COUNTY CLERK'S FILE NO. 2014033291), ALL BEING IN THE HENRY SCOTT SURVEY, ABSTRACT 
NO. 83, CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS. 

Executive Summary: This Agenda item consists of the required public hearing on the proposed Preliminary Plat of 
Rosenberg 36 Industrial Park. The Plat consists of 18.214 acres and two (2) nonresidential reserves. It is a partial replat 
of Lot No. 17 of Rosenberg Farms Subdivision. The property is located on the south side of State Highway 36, northwest 
of its intersection with U.S. Highway gOA. Further, it is located in the West Fort Bend Management District, which is noted 
on the plat. 

The Plat proposes to subdivide the 18.214 acres into two (2) reserves to accommodate a new site development on 
Reserve "B" and future development of Reserve "A." There are no issues with the proposed subdivision that conflict with 
City ordinances. However, a public hearing is required for replats per State law and City ordinance. Therefore staff 
recommends that the Planning Commission hold the required public hearing on the Preliminary Plat of Rosenberg 36 
Industrial Park before taking action on the Plat. 

Chairperson Pavlovsky opened the public hearing at 4:04 p.m. After three calls for speakers, no one 
stepped forward. Chairperson Pavlovsky closed the public hearing at 4:04 p.m. 

3. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A PRELIMINARY PLAT OF THE RESERVE AT BRAZOS TOWN CENTER 
SECTION FIVE, BEING 21.4 ACRES OF LAND CONTAINING 73 LOTS (55' X 130' TYP.) AND THREE RESERVES 

PAGE 1 OF 8 * PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * OCTOBER 15, 2014 

janete
Rectangle



IN TWO BLOCKS OUT OF THE ROBERT E. HANDY SURVEY, A-187, CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND 
COUNTY, TEXAS. 

Executive Summary: The Preliminary Plat of The Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Five is located off of Town 
Center Boulevard, to the east of its intersection with FM 2218. It is located within the City Limits and in Fort Bend County 
MUD No. 167. The Plat consists of approximately 21.4 acres, with 73 single-family residential lots and three (3) reserves. 

The typical lot size for the subdivision is fifty-five (55') feet in width. This is per the approved Land Plan, as amended on 
September 30,2014 (see attached). Per the amended Development Agreement, the subdivision must comply with the 
following requirements. 

• Residences shall be a minimum of 2,000 square feet in size; 
• Residence shall have three-sided masonry exterior; 
• The tract shall have a maximum of 73 lots or 3.4 units per acre; 
• The tract shall have a minimum of three (3) acres in landscape/open space reserves or .04 acres per lot; and, 
• The minimum lot size shall be 7,000 square feet. 

The proposed Preliminary Plat is not in conflict with any applicable regulations or with the approved Land Plan or 
Development Agreement for Brazos Town Center. That being said, staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat 
of The Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Five. 

Key Discussion: 
• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
• Commissioner Poldrack inquired if the landscaping reserves meet the requirement or if they exceed the 

requirement. 
• Mr. Tanner replied the landscaping reserves exceed the requirement. 
• Commissioner Parsons inquired if the mean value of these houses has been established. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that he did not have that information. 
• Commissioner Parsons replied that he would like to table this item until we have some idea of the sales 

price. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that we cannot legally hold the plat for that information. The developer can be held to 

the standards established in the development agreement but the price of the homes is not sufficient to hold 
approval of a plat. 

• Commissioner Poldrack replied that the developer answered that question at the last meeting. In the 
September 17th minutes, the developer estimated the townhomes to be between 200K and 250K and the 
single-family homes to be in the 375K range . 

• Commissioner Parsons requested that Mr. Tanner try to determine the median home price from the 
developers and bring that to the Commission when possible for future residential plats. 

Action Taken: Commissioner Casias moved, seconded by Vice Chairperson Phipps, to approve the Preliminary Plat of 
The Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Five, being 21.4 acres of land containing 73 lots (55' x 130' typ.) and three 
reserves in two blocks out of the Robert E. Handy Survey, A-187, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas. The 
motion carried unanimously. 

4. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A PRELIMINARY PLAT OF BON BROOK PLANTATION NORTH 
SECTION FOURTEEN, A SUBDIVISION OF 23.506 ACRES OF LAND SITUATED IN THE WILEY MARTIN 
LEAGUE, ABSTRACT 56, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS. 

Executive Summary: The Preliminary Plat of Bonbrook Plantation North Section Fourteen is located off of Reading 
Road, east of its intersection with Benton Road, in the northwest part of Bonbrook Plantation. The proposed Plat contains 
23.506 acres, 60 residential lots, and four (4) reserves consisting of 5.150 acres. 

The proposed lots are a minimum of sixty feet (60') in width. This is in accordance with the revised Land Plan for Bonbrook 
Plantation, which the Planning Commission recently approved on August 20,2014. The amended Land Plan still must 
be submitted to City Council as an amendment to the Development Agreement (Exhibit "C"). The effective and revised 
Land Plans are attached for reference. 

The proposed Preliminary Plat is not in conflict with any applicable regulations. Staff recommends approval of the 
Preliminary Plat of Bonbrook Plantation North Section Fourteen with the following contingency: 

PAGE 2 OF 8 * PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * OCTOBER 15, 2014 

janete
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 07, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

G Final Plat of The Townhomes at Brazos Town Center 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on a Final Plat of The Townhomes at Brazos Town Center, a 20.0427 acre 
tract of land being a replat of restricted Reserve “A”, Brazos Town Center, Section Two (Plat No. 
20050239; F.B.C.P.R.) in the Jane H. Long League, Abstract No. 55, and in the Simon Jones Survey, 
Abstract No. 271, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas; 5 reserves, 139 lots, 3 blocks. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[4] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 MUD #:  167 (Brazos Town 

Center) 

1. Final Plat of The Townhomes at Brazos Town Center 
2. Developer’s Conceptual Plan, Revised Exhibit “B” Brazos Town Center – 01-20-15 – Please refer 

to Consent Agenda Item No. E 
3. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 01-21-15 
4. Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt – 10-15-14 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
Travis Tanner, AICP 
Executive Director of 
Community Development

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Final Plat of The Townhomes at Brazos Town is located off of Town Center Boulevard, north of its 
intersection with Commercial Drive.  It is located within the City Limits and in Fort Bend County MUD No. 167.  
The Plat consists of approximately 20.04 acres, with 139 townhome lots and five (5) reserves. 
 
The typical lot size for the subdivision is twenty-four (24) to twenty-eight (28) feet in width.  This is per the 
approved Land Plan, as amended on January 20, 2015 (see attached).  Per the amended Development 
Agreement, the subdivision must comply with the following, among other things: 

 Residences shall be a minimum of 1,700 square feet in size; 
 Residences shall have three-sided masonry exterior with a landscape buffer between buildings; 
 Minimum fifty-foot (50’) street right-of-way width; 
 Minimum twenty-seven-foot (27’) pavement width measured from inside of curb to inside of curb; 
 Minimum twenty-foot (20’) front building lines on all lots; and, 
 A two-car garage shall be required on each lot. 

 
The Planning Commission approved the Preliminary Plat of this subdivision on October 15, 2014, and the 
Final Plat was recommended for approval on January 21, 2015.  The proposed Final Plat is not in conflict 
with any applicable regulations, with the approved Land Plan or Development Agreement for Brazos Town 
Center, or with the approved Preliminary Plat.  That being said, staff and the Planning Commission 
recommend approval of the Final Plat of The Townhomes at Brazos Town Center. 
 







reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



• Development Agreement (Exhibit "C") to be formally amended by City Council action before Final Plat approval. 

Key Discussion: 
• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 

Action Taken: Commissioner Parsons moved, seconded by Commissioner Casias, to approve the Preliminary 
Plat of Bonbrook Plantation North Section Fourteen, a subdivision of 23.506 acres of land situated in the Wiley 
Martin League, Abstract 56, Fort Bend County, Texas, contingent upon prior approval by City Council of the third 
revision of the Land Plan for Bonbrook Plantation, recommended for approval by the Planning Commission at its 
August 20,2014 meeting. The motion carried unanimously. 

5. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A PRELIMINARY PLAT OF ROSENBERG 36 INDUSTRIAL PARK, A 
SUBDIVISION OF 18.214 ACRES OF LAND BEING A PARTIAL REPLAT OF LOT NO. 17 OF ROSENBERG 
FARMS SUBDIVISION (VOLUME 3, PAGE 575; DEED RECORDS OF FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, AND 
VOLUME 4, PAGE 25; PLAT RECORDS OF FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS) BEING A CALL 17.135 ACRE 
TRACT (FORT BEND COUNTY CLERK'S FILE NO. 2014072299) TOGETHER WITH A CALL 0.754 ACRE 
TRACT (FORT BEND COUNTY CLERK'S FILE NO. 2012014590) AND A CALL 0.32 ACRE TRACT (FORT 
BEND COUNTY CLERK'S FILE NO. 2014033291), ALL BEING IN THE HENRY SCOTT SURVEY, ABSTRACT 
NO. 83, CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS. 

Executive Summary: As previously discussed, the Preliminary Plat of Rosenberg 36 Industrial Park consists of 18.214 
acres and two (2) nonresidential reserves. It is a partial replat of Lot No. 17 of Rosenberg Farms Subdivision. The Plat 
is located on the south side of State Highway 36, northwest of its intersection with U.S. Highway 90A, and in the West 
Fort Bend Management District. 

The Plat proposes to subdivide the 18.214 acres into two (2) reserves to accommodate a new site development on 
Reserve "B" and future development of Reserve "A" As discussed, there are no issues with the proposed subdivision 
that conflict with City ordinances. Newly created reserves in the proposed subdivision will be subject to the West Fort 
Bend Management District's development standards as noted on the plat. 

There being no issues in conflict with City ordinances, staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat of Rosenberg 
36 Industrial Park. 

Key Discussion: 
• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
• Commissioner Casias inquired if the reason for the public hearing was for a partial replat, correct? If so, 

then we may assume all the guidelines were followed and letters were mailed out. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that state law requires a public hearing on the Agenda. It also states that if the plat 

meets all the requirements, then it must be approved . For residential replats that were originally platted 
as single-family lots, then the property owners within 200 feet must be notified in writing. There are more 
requirements for replats of residential areas. 

• Commissioner Casias stated that the public hearing was held but the only way anyone could attend the 
public hearing was if they knew about it. 

• Mr. Tanner replied that state law dictates that even if a public hearing is held, if the plat in question meets 
the platting requirements, then it must be approved. Even if there were public comments, the Planning 
Commission and City Council would have to approve it if it met all requirements. 

• Commissioner Poldrack inquired what is planned for that tract. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that the state parole office wishes to relocate from Spur 10 to this tract. There will be 

future development on Reserve "A," closer to US 90A 
• Commissioner Parsons stated that there should be enough right-of-way to widen both SH 36 and US 90A 

Action Taken: Commissioner Parsons moved, seconded by Commissioner Poldrack, to approve the Preliminary 
Plat of Rosenberg 36 Industrial Park, a subdivision of 18.124 acres of land being a partial replat of Lot No. 17 of 
Rosenberg Farms Subdivision (Volume 3, Page 575; Deed Records of Fort Bend County, Texas, and Volume 4, 
Page 25; Plat Records of Fort Bend County, Texas) being a call 17.135 acre tract (Fort Bend County Clerks' File 
No. 2014072299) together with a call 0.754 acre tract (Fort Bend County Clerk's File No. 2012014590) and a call 
0.32 acre tract (Fort Bend County Clerk's File No. 2014033291), all being in the Henry Scott Survey, Abstract No. 
83, City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas. The motion carried unanimously. 

6. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A PRELIMINARY PLAT OF THE TOWNHOMES AT BRAZOS TOWN 
CENTER, BEING 20.1 ACRES OF LAND CONTAINING 139 LOTS (24'28' X115' TYP.) AND FIVE RESERVES 

PAGE 3 OF 8 * PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * OCTOBER 15, 2014 

janete
Rectangle



IN THREE BLOCKS OUT OF THE JANE H. LONG LEAGUE SURVEY, A-55 & SIMON JONES SUREY, A-271, 
CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS. 

Executive Summary: The Preliminary Plat of The Townhomes at Brazos Town Center is located off of Town Center 
Boulevard, north of its intersection with Commercial Drive. It is located within the City Limits and in Fort Bend County 
MUD No. 167. The Plat consists of approximately 20.1 acres, with 139 townhomes lots and five (S) reserves. 

The typical lot size for the subdivision is twenty-four (24) to twenty-eight (28) feet in width. This is per the approved Land 
Plan, as amended on September 30, 2014 (see attached). Per the amended Development Agreement, the subdivision 
must comply with the following requirements: 

• Residences shall be a minimum of 1,700 square feet in size; 
• Residences shall have three-sides masonry exterior with a landscape buffer between buildings; 
• The tract shall have a maximum of 139 units or seven (7) units per acre; 
• The tract shall have a minimum of 5.S acres in landscape/open space reserves or .04 acres per unit; 
• Minimum fifty-foot (SO') street right-of-way width; 
• Minimum twenty-seven-foot (27') pavement width measured from inside of curb to inside of curb; 
• Minimum average lot size of 2,900 square feet; 
• Minimum twenty-foot (20') front building lines on all lots; and, 
• A two-car garage shall be required on each lot. 

The proposed Preliminary Plat is not in conflict with any applicable regulations or with the approved Land Plan or 
Development Agreement for Brazos Town Center. That being said, staff recommends approval of the Preliminary Plat of 
The Townhomes at Brazos Town Center. 

Key Discussion: 
• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
• Chairperson Pavlovsky stated that 139 lots is quite a few town homes but this area previously had 1S0 lots 

for apartments. 

Action Taken: Commissioner Casias moved, seconded by Commissioner Parsons, to approve the Preliminary 
Plat of The Townhomes at Brazos Town Center, being 20.1 acres of land containing 139 lots (24'28' x 11S' typ.) 
and five reserves in three blocks out of the Jane H. Long League Survey, A-SS & Simon Jones Survey, A-271 , City 
of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas. The motion carried unanimously. 

7. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A SHORT FORM FINAL PLAT OF KB SUBDIVISION, A SUBDIVISION 
OF 2.609 ACRES OF LAND (FORT BEND COUNTY CLERK'S FILE NO. 2013096789) BEING A CALL 2.601 
ACRE TRACT (VOLUME 2386, PAGE 2102; OFFICIAL RECORDS OF FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS) OUT 
OF THE ORIGINAL HELEN RAY HILLYER CALL 30 ACRE TRACT OF LAND (VOLUME 438, PAGE 488 DEED 
RECORDS OF FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS) BEING IN THE HENRY SCOTT SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 83, 
CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS. 

Executive Summary: The Short Form Final Plat of KB Subdivision is located on the east side of State Highway 36, 
south of its intersection with Walger Avenue. It consists of 2.609 acres and two (2) nonresidential reserves. 

The tract being subdivided consists of recently developed Millennium Motors and the adjacent small office building. It is 
proposed to be subdivided into two (2) reserves (2.402 and 0.207 acres respectively) under separate ownership. There 
are no regulations that would preclude this proposed subdivision and it has been submitted as a Short Form Final Plat 
due to the small number of reserves involved and access and utilities already being in place. Staff reviewed a survey with 
the proposed property lines overlaid to ensure that the existing buildings would comply with the minimum setbacks, etc. 

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval to City Council of the Short Form Final Plat of KB 
Subdivision. 

Key Discussion: 
• Mr. Tanner presented the item and reviewed the Executive Summary. 
• Commissioner Casias inquired if there may be any parking issues with this subdivision. 
• Mr. Tanner replied that these are existing buildings on the site. If there were redevelopment or 

improvements, then they may be required to confirm with the current standards. For now, these existing 
businesses are legally nonconforming. The goal of this plat is to provide for separate ownership. 

PAGE 4 OF 8 * PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES * OCTOBER 1S, 2014 

janete
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 07, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

H 
Resolution No. R-1954 – Right-of-Way Deed Acceptance (Louise Street 
and Avenue N) 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1954, a Resolution acknowledging the acceptance, by 
Right-of-Way Deed, of a 0.3030 tract of land situated in the James Lowery 1/3 League, Abstract Number 
275 in Fort Bend County, Texas, and being out of and a part of the tract of land described in deed to 
Trinity Lutheran Church of Rosenberg, Texas, as recorded in Volume 388, Page 184 of the Fort Bend 
County Deed Records, and generally located at Louise Street and Avenue N, and associated with Trinity 
Lutheran Church expansion project.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[X] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1.  Resolution No. R-1954 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
Travis Tanner 
Executive Director Community 
Development 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Trinity Lutheran Church (“Church”) is located at 1512 Louise Street, which is generally the northwest 
intersection of Louise and Avenue N, consisting of approximately 2.5 acres.  Church representatives met 
with City staff several months ago to discuss potentially further developing their property.  One of the 
issues brought up at that time was the City’s requirement to plat the property in order to obtain a building 
permit per City ordinance.  At the time, staff informed the Church of a less costly and time consuming 
alternative to platting if they aren’t subdividing the property, which is to simply dedicate any rights-of-way or 
easements that may be necessary and file a plat exemption form before a permit is issued.  Staff identified, 
and the Church confirmed, that ten feet (10’) of right-of-way was needed along Avenue N, since Avenue N 
is a collector street per the City’s Major Thoroughfare Plan, and thirty feet (30’) of right-of-way would be 
needed for Louise Street, since the Church currently owns in fee up to the centerline of the street.  The 
Church had no objections to these dedications and submitted the attached deed and legal description for 
the City’s review.  Staff has reviewed and found no issues with the proposed deed.  However, City Council 
action is required to formally authorize the acceptance, hence the item being placed on the Agenda.  Staff 
recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1954 authorizing the acceptance. 
 



 

RESOLUTION NO. R-1954 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, A RESOLUTION ACKNOWLEDGING THE 
ACCEPTANCE, BY RIGHT-OF-WAY DEED, OF A 0.3030 TRACT OF 
LAND SITUATED IN THE JAMES LOWERY 1/3 LEAGUE, ABSTRACT 
NUMBER 275 IN FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING OUT OF 
AND A PART OF THE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN DEED TO 
TRINITY LUTHERAN CHURCH OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AS 
RECORDED IN VOLUME 388, PAGE 184 OF THE FORT BEND 
COUNTY DEED RECORDS, AND GENERALLY LOCATED AT LOUISE 
STREET AND AVENUE N, AND ASSOCIATED WITH TRINITY 
LUTHERAN CHURCH EXPANSION PROJECT. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 

      WHEREAS, the City Council acknowledges that it is desirable and in the best interest of the City 
of Rosenberg (“City”) to acquire right-of-way generally located at a site more particularly described in that 
certain Right-of-Way Deed, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” made a part hereof for all purposes; and, 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council acknowledges that the subject property is necessary for public use 

and in order to provide for future needs, services, and infrastructure of the City; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rosenberg authorizes City Manager to execute said 
Right-of-Way Deed to acquire that certain real property; and,  

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City acknowledges that negotiations have been successfully 

conducted; now, therefore, 
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 

     Section 1. That the City Council of the City of Rosenberg acknowledges the acquisition of a  
certain right-of-way of a 0.3030 tract of land situated in the James Lowery 1/3 League, Abstract Number 
275 in Fort Bend County, Texas, and being out of and a part of the tract of land described in deed to 
Trinity Lutheran Church of Rosenberg, Texas, as recorded in Volume 388, Page 184 of the Fort Bend 
County Deed Records, and generally located at Louise Street and Avenue N, and associated with Trinity 
Lutheran Church expansion project more particularly described in Exhibit “A” and made a part hereof for 
all purposes. 

 
Section 2. That the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute and give effect to the any 

and all documentation necessary to acquire said property. 
 
Section 3.  That the City accepts the foregoing Right-of-Way Deed regarding acquisition of 

real property necessary for public use and in order to provide for future needs, services, and 
infrastructure of the City.  
 

      READ, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________________ 2015. 
 

ATTEST:       APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary     Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 



NOTICE OF CONFIDENTIALITY RIGHTS: IF YOU ARE A NATURAL PERSON,
YOU MAY REMOVE OR STRIKE ANY OR ALL OF THE FOLLOWING
INFORMATION FROM ANY INSTRUMENT THAT TRANSFERS AN INTEREST IN
REAL PROPERTY BEFORE IT IS FILED FOR RECORD IN THE
PUBLIC RECORDS: YOUR SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER OR YOUR DRIVER'S
LICENSE NUMBER.

RIGHT OF \ryAY DEED

THE STATE OF TEXAS
KNOV/ ALL BY THESE PRESENTS

COUNTY OF FORT BEND

That TRINITY LUTHERAN CHURCH OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, whose address is
1512 Louise St, Rosenberg, Texas 77471-4523 ("Grantor"), for and in consideration of the
growth, the requirements, and the benefits to accrue to the parties and the citizens of the City of
Rosenberg, Texas, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, has DEDICATED, GIVEN,
GRANTED, AND CONVEYED and by these presents DOES DEDICATE, GIVE, GRANT,
AND CONVEY, unto the said CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, a body corporate and politic
under the laws of the State of Texas, whose address is 2110 4fr Street, Rosenberg, Texas 77471,
all of the certain tract or parcel of land situated in the County of Fort Bencl, State of Texas, as

described in Exhibit 664" attached hereto, and shown in survey plat in Exhibit 6'8" attached
hereto, both Exhibits being incorporated herein by this reference for all purposes.

To Have and To Hold the above described premises, together with all and singular the
rights and appurtenances thereto in anywise belonging, unto the said City of Rosenberg, its
successors and assigns forever for use as roadway right of way, subject to any and all conditions,
agreements, and easements, previously conveyed, if any, relating to the hereinabove described
property, but only to the extent they are still in effect and shown of record in the Fort Bend
County Real Property Records, and save and except the following reservations and provisions:

The Grantor reserves all of the oil, gas and sulfur in and under said land; however, nothing
in this reservation shall affect the rights of the City of Rosenberg to use said land and other minerals
and materials thereon, therein or thereunder for roadway purposes, it being specifically understood
that the City of Rosenberg and its assigns shall be vested with the title to and right to take and use,

without additional compensation, any said, stone, earth, gravel, caliche or any other materials or
minerals upon, in and under said land, except oil, gas and sulfur, for the construction and
maintenance of the Streets and Roads of the City of Rosenberg, Texas.

ISIGNATURE APPEARS ON FOLLOWING PAGE]

$

$

$

1

139870-00001 lp"t 2t23t20t5 00941326.Docx I

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1954



By:

Name:

Its:

THE STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF FORT BEND

This instrumcnt was acknowledged before me on

EXECUTED this _ day of

the

20rs

GRANTOR:

TRINITY LUTHERAN CHURCH OF
ROSENBERG, TEXAS,
a Texas non-profit corporation,

2015, by
ofTrinity Lutheran Church of Rosenberg, Texas,

$

$

$

a Texas non-profit corporation, for and on behalf of said corporation.

NOTARY PUBLIC,

PRINTED NAME OF NOTARY

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES:

2
139870-00001 JPT 2t2312015 00941326.DOCX I



EXECUTED this _ day of 201s.

GRANTEE:

CITY OF ROSENBERG

Name:

Its

THE STATE OF TEXAS

COI.INTY OF FORT BEND

This instrument was acknowledged before me on 2015, by
the _of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, a body corporate

and politic under the laws of the State of Texas, for and on behalf of the City of Rosenberg.

NOTARY PUBLIC,

PRINTED NAME OF NOTARY

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES

$

$

$

J
139870-00001 JPT 212312015 00941326.DOCX I



Legal Description

BEING a 0.3030 of an acre (13,200 square foot) tract of land situated in the James
Lowery 1/3 League, Abstract Number 275 tn Fort Bend County, Texas, and being out of
and a part of the tract of land described in deed to Trinity Lutheran Church of
Rosenberg, Texas as recorded in Volume 388, Page 184 of the Fort Bend County Deed
Records, said 0.3030 of an acre tract of land being more particularly described as
follows with bearings based on the Texas Coordinate System of 1983, South Central
Zone.

BEGINNING a 5/8 inch iron rod found for the southeast corner of Lot 8, Bfock 1 of A
REPLAT OF JANCA SUBDIVISION according to the map thereof recorded in Volume
254, Pages 92-944 of the Fort Bend County Deed Records in the west right-of-way line
of Louise Street (a 60 foot wide right-of-way) as recorded in Volume 250, Page 183 and
by easement recorded in Volume 249, Page 430 both of the Fort Bend County Deed
Records and being the northwest corner of the herein described tract of land;

THENCE departing the west right-of-way line of said Louise Street, North 87 degrees 41
minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 30.00 feet to the centerline of said Louise Street
for the northeast corner of the herein described tract of land;

THENCE wíth the centerline of said Louise Street, South 02 degrees 38 minutes 30
seconds East, a distance of 340.00 feet to the north right-of-way line of Avenue N
(approximately 70 feet wide right-of-way line, at this point) as recorded under Slide
Number 2320A of the Fort Bend County Plat Records and being the southeast corner of
the herein described tract of land;

THENCE with the north right-of-way line of Avenue N, South 87 degrees 41 minutes 30
seconds West, a distance of 330.00 feet to the east right-of-way line of Damon Street (a
80 foot wÍde right-of-way) as recorded in Volume 239, Page 137 and Volume 244, Page
504 both of the Fort Bend County Deed Records for the southwest corner of the herein
described tract of land;

THENCE departing the north right-of-way line of said Avenue N with the east right-of-
way line of saíd Damon Street, North 02 degrees 38 minutes 30 seconds West, a
distance of 10.00 feet to a 5/8 inch iron rod with cap stamped "MCKIM CREED'set for
the new southwest corner of said Trinity Lutheran Church of Rosenberg, Texas tract
and being an angle point in the herein described tract of land;

THENCE departing the east right-of-way line of said Damon Street with the new south
line of said Trinity Lutheran Church of Rosenberg, Texas tract, North 87 degrees 41
minutes 30 seconds East, a distance of 300.00 feet to a 518 inch iron rod with cap
stamped 'MCKIM CREED" set for the new southeast corner of said Trinity Lutheran
Church of Rosenberg, Texas tract in the west right-of-way line of said Louise Street and
being an angle point in the herein described tract of land'

THENCE with the west right-of-way line of said Louise Street, North 02 degrees 38
minutes 30 seconds West, a distance of 330.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and
containing 0.3030 of an acre (13,200 square feet) of land.

Page 1 ofZ



F

K.

61 83
99ó0 Wesl Som Houslon Porkwoy Soulh, Suite 200

Houslon, TX 77099
713.659 0021

www.mckimcreed.com
TBPt5 Firm ReBi5trãt¡on No- 101776-00

)

ENGINEERS, SURVEYORS, PLANNERS

SCALE 1" = B0' JOB NO 06677-0003

DATE: Februory 13, 2015 DRN: GAH

JAI'IIES LOWERY % LEAGIJE, ARSTRACT NLTMRER 275
Avenue L

vorume rrå:iå:i';:';Tåå), B c D R
3/ 4" lron Pipe Found (C.lvl.)

3/4" lron Pip
Found (C.M.)

4o
cl
co
l.L

$
o)

I(\
c')

fL
$
l¡)
N
c)
E
f
õ

z
o
U)

o
dl
l
U)

oz
I
LL
o
l-f
È
I.IJ
ú.

3/4

o

q
o
cì
c0

II
(f,€
c)
o)
o
o-

o
rl)
c\
c)
E
J

õ

Ëg
cn 

*g

oE
Ø .'2'=y
3A

oq
os(Ð

L¡
ô
|.r)
o

C)
(n

I.IJ

O
(Y)

oo
(Ð
o
N
O
(/)

oq
O
(Ð
(Ð

1/2" lron R

5/8" lron Rod Found
(c. tv.)

Lot 5
lron Pipe

( c.rv.)

Lot 7
Anthong E. Kurtz,

A Single Man
F.B.C.C.F. Nutnber

2006t587t8

3/4" lron Rod in

Block 2

Lot 9
Jose Angel Mørtinez

und, Maríø Eliu Riuera,
a,s husband ønd uLife

F.B.C.C.F. Num.ber
2014128386

1" lron Pipe Found

Lot 11

Cresttlood
Cuslont Hotnes

F.B.C.C.F. Num.ber
2013105904

BiIIg Bergen and,
Sh.ervg J. Bergert

Volutne 4BB, Page 451
F. B.C. D. R.

Lot 14

1/2" lron Pípe Foun
(C.M

SCALE
1" = 80',

Found (C M )

l¡'

òq
o
O

1/2" lron P
(c.

rp
M

\ì
U
ai

ÞL
o
€Q

l.ÈÞ'õ
\q.o
¡:e;.\
U

q)

I{
o

oo.:
(7)
(f)

O

z.

Fo
g-)
@
íJ
(\oz

É.4
ciq
oq*,^oio

I à,.'t
Yts¡-X
a: i;C -c o):o.es Ë'
E or io-
rõogso9ññ

9oÈS
f=

sg

2.272f Acres
(98,998 Sq. Ft.)

N02'38'30"W
10.00'

N87'41',30uE
(N88" 50 [)

30.00'

0.3030 Acres
(13,200 Sq. Ft.)

5/8" lron Rod Set
with "lr/CKIMCREED" C

330.00'

!
c
J
o

c
.9

pO
CEo.'
Eoo=at
o
ùJ oì

..cùÐ
-o-o_lo
-É
^o

Fo
so
æ
(Ð
o
Noz

Trínilg Lulherant Church
of Rosenberg, Tetas

Volu¡r¿e 3BB, Page l84 F.B.C.D.R.

5/8" lron Rod Se
with "MCKIMCREED'

N87"41'30"E
300.00'

Lot 13

1i,/8" lron Rod
F ound (Ben t)

587"41'30uW (s8B'50 w)
Avenue N

(70' Right-of-Way)
(Slide Number 2320A F.B.C.P.R.)

30' Right of Woy Eoser¡renI
Volume 249,Poge 430 F.B.C D,R.

5,/8" lron Rod

5/8" lron Rod Foun
wiih Unrecdoble Cop l*-EXHIBIT ''A''

LOUISE STREET AND
AVEN UE''N" RIGHT-OF-WAY

DEDICATION TRACT
OUT OF THE

JAMES LOWERY Ii3 LEAGUE,
ABSTRACT NUMBER 275

ROSENBERG,
FORÏ BEND COUNÏY, ÏEXAS

Page 2 of 2

CM - Conlrollíng Monument



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 07, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

2 
Resolution No. R-1948 - Opposing Legislative Revenue Cap on Property 
Taxes 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1948, a Resolution in opposition to a revenue cap and 
legislative interference with local services. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:  N/A   

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Resolution No. R-1948 
2. Texas Senate Bill No. 182 
3. Sample Correspondence to Texas Representatives 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

Vincent M. Morales, Jr./rl 

 
Vincent M. Morales, Jr. 
Mayor 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Senate Bill No. 182 has been introduced to the Texas State Senate for the purpose of imposing a cap on 
revenue generated by City property taxes.  This proposed legislation would have a minimal effect on the 
individual property owner’s taxes but would have a dramatic impact on a City’s ability to provide essential 
services.   
 
Resolution No. R-1948 has been included to allow for City Council to provide its support for the opposition 
of such legislation. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1948 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, IN OPPOSITION TO A REVENUE CAP AND 
LEGISLATIVE INTERFERENCE WITH LOCAL SERVICES. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 

WHEREAS, bills have been introduced to cap the amount of property tax 
revenue cities can collect each year in a misguided effort to reduce the property tax 
burden on homeowners and businesses; and, 

 
WHEREAS, currently, if a Texas city increases property tax collections by more 

than eight percent over the previous year, voters can petition for an election to rollback 
the increase; and, 

 
WHEREAS, bills have been introduced to replace that eight percent “rollback 

rate” with a hard cap of four percent and require mandatory elections on an increase 
over four percent – all with the false claim that this would provide property tax relief; 
and,  

 
WHEREAS, according to the state comptroller’s latest survey of property tax 

rates in 1,002 cities in Texas, 67 percent of cities raised their property taxes by less 
than four percent from 2012 to 2013, and 37 percent of cities actually reduced their 
property taxes; and, 

 
WHEREAS, that means property owners in at least 669 Texas cities would have 

seen no reduction in their city property taxes if the four percent cap had been in effect; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, while the savings to individual taxpayers are very small or even non-

existent, a four percent cap could represent a loss in vital city services; and, 
 
WHEREAS, cities collect just 16 percent of the property taxes levied in Texas, 

and most of the property taxes paid by Texans (55 percent) go to school districts; and, 
 
WHEREAS, according to the comptroller’s report, the total amount of property 

taxes collected by cities rose by 3.61 percent between 2012 and 2013, while school 
district tax collections rose by more than twice that rate or 7.72 percent; and, 

 
WHEREAS, school property taxes have been rising because the legislature 

continues to reduce the state’s share of funding for schools, which forces districts to get 
more revenue from property taxes; now, therefore, 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

Section 1. That all of the above recitals are true and correct. 



2 

Section 2. That the City Council of the City of Rosenberg, Texas, is 

OPPOSED to the legislative imposition of a revenue cap and legislative interference 

with local services. 

Section 3. That imposing a revenue cap on cities: 

a) Does not provide meaningful tax relief; 

b) Robs cities of the ability to meet local needs; and, 

c) Diverts attention from the real cause of higher property taxes, which is the 

legislature’s failure to address the problem of school funding. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015.  

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 



By: Bettencourt S.B. No. 182

A BILL TO BE ENTITLED
AN ACT

relating to the calculation of the ad valorem rollback tax rates of 
certain taxing units.
       BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:
       SECTION 1.  Section 26.04, Tax Code, is amended by amending 
Subsection (c) and adding Subsections (c-1) and (c-2) to read as 
follows:
       (c)  An officer or employee designated by the governing body 
shall calculate the effective tax rate and the rollback tax rate for 
the unit, where:
             (1)  "Effective tax rate" means a rate expressed in 
dollars per $100 of taxable value calculated according to the 
following formula:
EFFECTIVE TAX RATE = (LAST YEAR'S LEVY - LOST PROPERTY 
LEVY) / (CURRENT TOTAL VALUE - NEW PROPERTY VALUE) 
; and
             (2)  "Rollback tax rate" means a rate expressed in 
dollars per $100 of taxable value calculated according to the 
following formula:
ROLLBACK TAX RATE = (EFFECTIVE MAINTENANCE AND 
OPERATIONS RATE x 1.04 [1.08]) + CURRENT DEBT RATE
       (c-1)  Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, 
the designated officer or employee may substitute "1.08" for "1.04" 
in the calculation of the rollback tax rate if:
             (1)  any part of the taxing unit is located in an area 
declared a disaster area by the governor or the president of the 
United States during the current tax year.
       SECTION 2.  Section 26.041, Tax Code, is amended by amending 
Subsections (a), (b), and (c) and adding Subsections (c-1) and 
(c-2) to read as follows:
       (a)  In the first year in which an additional sales and use 
tax is required to be collected, the effective tax rate and rollback 
tax rate for the unit are calculated according to the following 
formulas:
EFFECTIVE TAX RATE = [(LAST YEAR'S LEVY - LOST PROPERTY 
LEVY) / (CURRENT TOTAL VALUE - NEW PROPERTY VALUE)] - 
SALES TAX GAIN RATE
and
ROLLBACK TAX RATE = (EFFECTIVE MAINTENANCE AND 
OPERATIONS RATE x 1.04 [1.08]) + CURRENT DEBT RATE - 
SALES TAX GAIN RATE
where "sales tax gain rate" means a number expressed in dollars per 
$100 of taxable value, calculated by dividing the revenue that will 
be generated by the additional sales and use tax in the following 
year as calculated under Subsection (d) [of this section] by the 
current total value.
       (b)  Except as provided by Subsections (a) and (c) [of this 
section], in a year in which a taxing unit imposes an additional 
sales and use tax the rollback tax rate for the unit is calculated 
according to the following formula, regardless of whether the unit 
levied a property tax in the preceding year:
ROLLBACK TAX RATE = [(LAST YEAR'S MAINTENANCE AND 

Page 1 of 5

3/31/2015



OPERATIONS EXPENSE x 1.04 [1.08]) / ([TOTAL] CURRENT 
TOTAL VALUE - NEW PROPERTY VALUE)] + (CURRENT DEBT 
RATE - SALES TAX REVENUE RATE)
where "last year's maintenance and operations expense" means the 
amount spent for maintenance and operations from property tax and 
additional sales and use tax revenues in the preceding year, and 
"sales tax revenue rate" means a number expressed in dollars per 
$100 of taxable value, calculated by dividing the revenue that will 
be generated by the additional sales and use tax in the current year 
as calculated under Subsection (d) [of this section] by the current 
total value.
       (c)  In a year in which a taxing unit that has been imposing 
an additional sales and use tax ceases to impose an additional sales 
and use tax the effective tax rate and rollback tax rate for the 
unit are calculated according to the following formulas:
EFFECTIVE TAX RATE = [(LAST YEAR'S LEVY - LOST PROPERTY 
LEVY) / (CURRENT TOTAL VALUE - NEW PROPERTY VALUE)] + 
SALES TAX LOSS RATE
and
ROLLBACK TAX RATE = [(LAST YEAR'S MAINTENANCE AND 
OPERATIONS EXPENSE x 1.04 [1.08]) / ([TOTAL] CURRENT 
TOTAL VALUE - NEW PROPERTY VALUE)] + CURRENT DEBT RATE
where "sales tax loss rate" means a number expressed in dollars per 
$100 of taxable value, calculated by dividing the amount of sales 
and use tax revenue generated in the last four quarters for which 
the information is available by the current total value and "last 
year's maintenance and operations expense" means the amount spent 
for maintenance and operations from property tax and additional 
sales and use tax revenues in the preceding year.
       (c-1)  Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, 
the designated officer or employee may substitute "1.08" for "1.04" 
in the calculation of the rollback tax rate if:
             (1)  any part of the taxing unit is located in an area 
declared a disaster area by the governor or the president of the 
United States during the current tax year.
       SECTION 3.  Section 26.08, Tax Code, is amended by amending 
Subsections (a), (b), (d), (d-1) and (d-2) to read as follows:
       Sec. 26.08.  ELECTION TO RATIFY [SCHOOL] TAXES. (a)  If the 
governing body of a taxing unit [school district] adopts a tax rate 
that exceeds the taxing unit's [district's] rollback tax rate, the 
registered voters of the taxing unit [district] at an election held 
for that purpose must determine whether to approve the adopted tax 
rate. When increased expenditure of money by a taxing unit [school 
district] is necessary to respond to a disaster, including a 
tornado, hurricane, flood, or other calamity, but not including a 
drought, that has impacted a taxing unit [school district] and the 
governor has requested federal disaster assistance for the area in 
which the taxing unit [school district] is located, an election is 
not required under this section to approve the tax rate adopted by 
the governing body for the year following the year in which the 
disaster occurs.
       (b)  The governing body shall order that the election be held 
in the taxing unit [school district] on a date not less than 30 or 
more than 90 days after the day on which it adopted the tax rate. 
Section 41.001, Election Code, does not apply to the election 
unless a date specified by that section falls within the time 
permitted by this section. At the election, the ballots shall be 
prepared to permit voting for or against the proposition: 
"Approving the ad valorem tax rate of $_____ per $100 valuation in 
(name of taxing unit [school district]) for the current year, a rate 
that is $_____ higher per $100 valuation than the school district 
rollback tax rate." The ballot proposition must include the 

Page 2 of 5

3/31/2015



adopted tax rate and the difference between that rate and the 
rollback tax rate in the appropriate places.
       (d)  If the proposition is not approved as provided by 
Subsection (c), the governing body may not adopt a tax rate for the 
taxing unit [school district] for the current year that exceeds the 
taxing unit's [school district's] rollback tax rate.
       (d-1)  If, after tax bills for the taxing unit [school 
district] have been mailed, a proposition to approve the taxing 
unit's [school district's] adopted tax rate is not approved by the 
voters of the taxing unit [district] at an election held under this 
section, on subsequent adoption of a new tax rate by the governing 
body of the taxing unit [district], the assessor for the taxing unit 
[school] shall prepare and mail corrected tax bills. The assessor 
shall include with each bill a brief explanation of the reason for 
and effect of the corrected bill. The date on which the taxes 
become delinquent for the year is extended by a number of days equal 
to the number of days between the date the first tax bills were sent 
and the date the corrected tax bills were sent.
       (d-2)  If a property owner pays taxes calculated using the 
originally adopted tax rate of the taxing unit [school district] 
and the proposition to approve the adopted tax rate is not approved 
by voters, the taxing unit [school district] shall refund the 
difference between the amount of taxes paid and the amount due under 
the subsequently adopted rate if the difference between the amount 
of taxes paid and the amount due under the subsequent rate is $1 or 
more. If the difference between the amount of taxes paid and the 
amount due under the subsequent rate is less than $1, the taxing 
unit [school district] shall refund the difference on request of 
the taxpayer. An application for a refund of less than $1 must be 
made within 90 days after the date the refund becomes due or the 
taxpayer forfeits the right to the refund.
       SECTION 4.  Section 49.236, Water Code, as added by Chapters 
248 (H.B. 1541) and 335 (S.B. 392), Acts of the 78th Legislature, 
Regular Session, 2003, is reenacted and amended to read as follows:
       Sec. 49.236.  NOTICE OF TAX HEARING. (a)  Before the board 
adopts an ad valorem tax rate for the district for debt service, 
operation and maintenance purposes, or contract purposes, the board 
shall give notice of each meeting of the board at which the adoption 
of a tax rate will be considered. The notice must:
             (1)  contain a statement in substantially the following 
form:

"NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON TAX RATE
       "The (name of the district) will hold a public hearing on a 
proposed tax rate for the tax year (year of tax levy) on (date and 
time) at (meeting place). Your individual taxes may increase or 
decrease, depending on the change in the taxable value of your 
property in relation to the change in taxable value of all other 
property and the tax rate that is adopted.
       "(Names of all board members and, if a vote was taken, an 
indication of how each voted on the proposed tax rate and an 
indication of any absences.)";
             (2)  contain the following information:
                   (A)  the district's total adopted tax rate for the 
preceding year and the proposed tax rate, expressed as an amount per 
$100;
                   (B)  the difference, expressed as an amount per 
$100 and as a percent increase or decrease, as applicable, in the 
proposed tax rate compared to the adopted tax rate for the preceding 
year;
                   (C)  the average appraised value of a residence 
homestead in the district in the preceding year and in the current 
year; the district's total homestead exemption, other than an 

Page 3 of 5

3/31/2015



exemption available only to disabled persons or persons 65 years of 
age or older, applicable to that appraised value in each of those 
years; and the average taxable value of a residence homestead in the 
district in each of those years, disregarding any homestead 
exemption available only to disabled persons or persons 65 years of 
age or older;
                   (D)  the amount of tax that would have been 
imposed by the district in the preceding year on a residence 
homestead appraised at the average appraised value of a residence 
homestead in that year, disregarding any homestead exemption 
available only to disabled persons or persons 65 years of age or 
older;
                   (E)  the amount of tax that would be imposed by the 
district in the current year on a residence homestead appraised at 
the average appraised value of a residence homestead in that year, 
disregarding any homestead exemption available only to disabled 
persons or persons 65 years of age or older, if the proposed tax 
rate is adopted; and
                   (F)  the difference between the amounts of tax 
calculated under Paragraphs (D) and (E), expressed in dollars and 
cents and described as the annual percentage increase or decrease, 
as applicable, in the tax to be imposed by the district on the 
average residence homestead in the district in the current year if 
the proposed tax rate is adopted; and
             (3)  contain a statement in substantially the following 
form:

"NOTICE OF TAXPAYERS' RIGHT TO ROLLBACK ELECTION
       "If taxes on the average residence homestead increase by more 
than four [eight] percent, the qualified voters of the district by 
petition may require that an election be held to determine whether 
to reduce the operation and maintenance tax rate to the rollback tax 
rate under Section 49.236(d), Water Code."
       (b)  Notice of the hearing shall be:
             (1)  published at least once in a newspaper having 
general circulation in the district at least seven days before the 
date of the hearing; or
             (2)  mailed to each owner of taxable property in the 
district, at the address for notice shown on the most recently 
certified tax roll of the district, at least 10 days before the date 
of the hearing.
       (c)  The notice provided under this section may not be 
smaller than one-quarter page of a standard-size or tabloid-size 
newspaper of general circulation, and the headline on the notice 
must be in 18-point or larger type.
       (d)  If the governing body of a district adopts a combined 
debt service, operation and maintenance, and contract tax rate that 
would impose more than 1.04 [1.08] times the amount of tax imposed 
by the district in the preceding year on a residence homestead 
appraised at the average appraised value of a residence homestead 
in the district in that year, disregarding any homestead exemption 
available only to disabled persons or persons 65 years of age or 
older, the qualified voters of the district by petition may require 
that an election be held to determine whether [or not] to reduce the 
tax rate adopted for the current year to the rollback tax rate in 
accordance with the procedures provided by Sections 26.07(b)-(g) 
and 26.081, Tax Code. For purposes of Sections 26.07(b)-(g) and 
this subsection, the rollback tax rate is the current year's debt 
service and contract tax rates plus the operation and maintenance 
tax rate that would impose 1.04 [1.08] times the amount of the 
operation and maintenance tax imposed by the district in the 
preceding year on a residence homestead appraised at the average 
appraised value of a residence homestead in the district in that 

Page 4 of 5

3/31/2015



year, disregarding any homestead exemption available only to 
disabled persons or persons 65 years of age or older.
       (e)  Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, 
the board may substitute "eight percent" for "four percent" in 
Subsection (a) and "1.08" for "1.04" in Subsection (d) if:
             (1)  any part of the district is located in an area 
declared a disaster area by the governor or the president of the 
United States during the current tax year.
       SECTION 5.  Section 26.07, Tax Code is repealed.
       SECTION 6.  (a)  The change in law made by this Act applies 
to the ad valorem tax rate of a taxing unit beginning with the 2015 
tax year, except as provided by Subsection (b) of this section.
       (b)  If the governing body of a taxing unit adopted an ad 
valorem tax rate for the taxing unit for the 2015 tax year before 
the effective date of this Act, the change in law made by this Act 
applies to the ad valorem tax rate of that taxing unit beginning 
with the 2016 tax year, and the law in effect when the tax rate was 
adopted applies to the 2015 tax year with respect to that taxing 
unit.
       SECTION 7.  This Act takes effect immediately if it receives 
a vote of two-thirds of all the members elected to each house, as 
provided by Section 39, Article III, Texas Constitution. If this 
Act does not receive the vote necessary for immediate effect, this 
Act takes effect on the 91st day after the last day of the 
legislative session.

Page 5 of 5

3/31/2015



 

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 
2110 4th Street*P.O. Box 32*Rosenberg, Texas 77471-0032 

832.595.3340/Fax 832.595.3333 
www.ci.rosenberg.tx.us 

 
 
 
 
April 08, 2015 
 
 
The Honorable Senator Joan Huffman 
Texas State Senate District 17 
P.O. Box 12068, Capitol Station 
Austin, Texas 78711 
 
 
Dear Senator Huffman: 
 
Bills have been introduced to cap the amount of property tax revenue cities can collect each year 
in a misguided effort to reduce the property tax burden on homeowners and businesses.  I am 
writing on behalf of the City of Rosenberg to express our opposition to any legislation, such as 
S.B. 182.  
 
Currently, if a Texas city increases property tax collections by more than eight percent over the 
previous year, voters can petition for an election to rollback the increase.  Senate Bill 182 would 
replace that eight percent “rollback rate” with a hard cap of four percent and require mandatory 
elections on an increase over four percent – all with the false claim that this would provide 
property tax relief. 
 
The bill would provide essentially zero tax relief for Texans.  If the four percent cap on city 
property tax increases had been in effect in 2013, the owner of a homestead in the City of Dallas 
with an assessed value of $250,000 would have seen a “cut” in city property taxes of $33.10 
annually or about $2.75 per month.  The tax savings would have been even less if the 
homeowner was disabled or elderly and qualified for additional exemptions. 
 
According to the state comptroller’s latest survey of property tax rates in 1,002 cities in Texas, 67 
percent of cities raised their property taxes by less than four percent from 2012 to 2013, and 37 
percent of cities actually reduced their property taxes.  That means property owners in at least 
669 Texas cities would have seen no reduction in their city property taxes if the four percent cap 
had been in effect. 
 
While the savings to individual taxpayers are very small or even non-existent, a four percent cap 
could hit city services hard.  The following chart shows how much a four percent revenue cap 
would save homeowners in several cities, and what it represents in terms of city services. 
 

City 
4% Revenue Cap Savings 
for $250,000 Homeowner 

Yearly 

Potential Revenue 
Loss 

 
Represents What In City Budget? 

McKinney $29.65 
$1,411,863 
  

7 police officers and 4 fire fighter 
salaries and benefits  

Tyler $14.73 $458,468 
Traffic management enhancements, fire 
station and park improvements 

San Juan $45.32 $148,496 
Police and fire personnel, equipment 
and gear, salary funding for 12 
lifeguards, and pool repairs 

Orange $33.83 $150,672 6 police vehicles 

Midland $8.51 
$301,896 
  

2 police officer salaries and benefits and 
maintenance of the city traffic signal 
system 

SAMPLE



RE:  Opposition to Legislative Property Tax Revenue Cap  
Page 2 

 
Cities are not the cause of high property taxes in Texas.  Cities collect just 16 percent of the 
property taxes levied in Texas.  Most of the property taxes paid by Texans (55 percent) go to 
school districts.  According to the comptroller’s report, the total amount of property taxes collected 
by cities rose by 3.61 percent between 2012 and 2013, while school district tax collections rose 
by more than twice that rate or 7.72 percent.  School property taxes have been rising because the 
legislature continues to reduce the state’s share of funding for schools which forces districts to 
get more revenue from property taxes. 
 
What’s the bottom line?  Reducing the rollback rate for city property taxes: (1) does not provide 
meaningful tax relief; (2) robs cities of the ability to meet local needs; and (3) diverts attention 
from the real cause of higher property taxes. 
 
Thank you for your consideration and please do not hesitate to contact me if I can be of any 
assistance to you. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Vincent M. Morales, Jr.  
Mayor 
 
 
attach:  Resolution No. R-1948 
 
 
 
 

SAMPLE



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 07, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

3 Municipal Utility District Operations and Dissolutions Discussion 

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss overview regarding Municipal Utility District operations and dissolutions, and take 
action as necessary. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1.  MUD Overview - 2015 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

Jeanne H. McDonald/ks 

 
Jeanne H. McDonald 
Attorney 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

A Municipal Utility District (MUD) is a political subdivision of the State of Texas authorized by the Texas 
Commission of Environmental Quality (TCEQ) to provide improvements such as water, sewage, drainage 
and other services within the MUD boundaries.  MUDs are primarily a funding mechanism for the capital 
outlay necessary to provide said improvements. This item has been included on the Agenda to offer City 
Council an opportunity to receive and discuss information regarding MUD creation and dissolution. 
 



Municipal Utility Districts 

ISSUE MUD 
Method of creation Through TCEQ or by Legislature 
City Support Legislators require proof of City support for the district to 

carry the bill. 
Customary Agreements 1. Resolution of the City consenting to the creation of 

the district including restrictions 
2. Development Agreement with developer/landowner 
3. Utility Agreement with the district 
4. GRP Participation Agreement with the district 
5. Strategic Partnership Agreement for ETJ districts 
6. Fire Protection Agreement for ETJ districts 

Number of Directors 5 

Director Selection Initial directors appointed by TCEQ or in the legislation, 
thereafter elected (4 year terms with election in May of even 
numbered years) 
Vacancy in an unexpired term filled by the board.  

Director eligibility requirements 18 and live in district or own property in district  
Director compensation Up to $150 per diem plus expense reimbursement 
Funding Sources Tax (both debt and maintenance purposes), 

Water and Sewer charges if the district operates its own 
plant 
Standby and impact fees (rarely imposed) 

Powers Water, sewer, drainage, recreational facilities.  Able to 
obtain additional powers to provide fire protection services 
and roads. 

Dissolution City can dissolve an in-city MUD,  
City must first annex an ETJ MUD before dissolution. 

Effect of dissolution City steps into the shoes of the district and assumes all its 
rights and obligations, including bond payments. 

Reasons MUDs Are Used 1. Users pay for the facilities they need to serve the 
property in the district. 

2. City does not need to incur debt to allow 
development. 

3. City reviews and approves the plans for all facilities 
constructed by the MUD to assure they will integrate 
easily into the City’s system when the MUD is 
dissolved. 

4. City can wait to annex/dissolve until the debt is paid 
off or covered by the City tax rate. 

 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 07, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

4 Municipal Utility District No. 218 Support  

ITEM/MOTION 

Review and discuss proposed support for legislation creating Fort Bend Municipal Utility District No. 218, 
and take action as necessary. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. House Bill No. 4126 
2. Location Map 
3. Draft Correspondence 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 
Jeanne H. McDonald/ks 

 
Jeanne H. McDonald 
Attorney 

Reviewed by:   
 
[   ] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

One part of the Municipal Utility District (MUDs) approval process is consideration of the MUDs legislative 
language by the Texas Legislature. MUD No. 218 has submitted legislation for the creation of their MUD. 
You will find House Bill No. 4126 attached. The developer, D.R. Horton, is seeking support from the City 
for the legislation. 
 
This Agenda item should not be considered approval of the MUD District itself, but simply demonstrates 
approval of their legislation as they seek approval from our legislators in order to create the MUD District. 
The City may withdraw its support at any time. 
 
Should City Council look favorably upon this request, staff will finalize and send the draft correspondence 
provided. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 Page - 1 - 

84R5614 TSR-F 
  
By:  Zerwas H.B. No. 4126 

 
 

A BILL TO BE ENTITLED 

AN ACT 

relating to the creation of the Fort Bend County Municipal Utility 

District No. 218; granting a limited power of eminent domain; 

providing authority to issue bonds; providing authority to impose 

assessments, fees, and taxes. 

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS: 

SECTION 1.  Subtitle F, Title 6, Special District Local Laws 

Code, is amended by adding Chapter 7927 to read as follows: 

CHAPTER 7927.  FORT BEND COUNTY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT NO. 

218 

SUBCHAPTER A.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

Sec. 7927.001.  DEFINITIONS.  In this chapter: 

(1)  "Board" means the district's board of directors. 

(2)  "Commission" means the Texas Commission on 

Environmental Quality. 

(3)  "Director" means a board member. 

(4)  "District" means the Fort Bend County Municipal 

Utility District No. 218. 

Sec. 7927.002.  NATURE OF DISTRICT.  The district is a 

municipal utility district created under Section 59, Article XVI, 

Texas Constitution. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 H.B. No. 4126 

 
 
 Page -2 - 

Sec. 7927.003.  CONFIRMATION AND DIRECTORS' ELECTION REQUIRED. 

 The temporary directors shall hold an election to confirm the 

creation of the district and to elect five permanent directors as 

provided by Section 49.102, Water Code. 

Sec. 7927.004.  CONSENT OF MUNICIPALITY REQUIRED.  The 

temporary directors may not hold an election under Section 7927.003 

until each municipality in whose corporate limits or 

extraterritorial jurisdiction the district is located has consented 

by ordinance or resolution to the creation of the district and to 

the inclusion of land in the district. 

Sec. 7927.005.  FINDINGS OF PUBLIC PURPOSE AND BENEFIT.  (a)  

The district is created to serve a public purpose and benefit. 

(b)  The district is created to accomplish the purposes of: 

(1)  a municipal utility district as provided by general 

law and Section 59, Article XVI, Texas Constitution; and 

(2)  Section 52, Article III, Texas Constitution, that 

relate to the construction, acquisition, improvement, operation, or 

maintenance of macadamized, graveled, or paved roads, or 

improvements, including storm drainage, in aid of those roads. 

Sec. 7927.006.  INITIAL DISTRICT TERRITORY.  (a)  The district 

is initially composed of the territory described by Section 2 of 

the Act enacting this chapter. 

(b)  The boundaries and field notes contained in Section 2 of 

the Act enacting this chapter form a closure.  A mistake made in 

the field notes or in copying the field notes in the legislative 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 H.B. No. 4126 

 
 
 Page -3 - 

process does not affect the district's: 

(1)  organization, existence, or validity; 

(2)  right to issue any type of bond for the purposes for 

which the district is created or to pay the principal of and 

interest on a bond; 

(3)  right to impose a tax; or 

(4)  legality or operation. 

SUBCHAPTER B.  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Sec. 7927.051.  GOVERNING BODY; TERMS.  (a)  The district is 

governed by a board of five elected directors. 

(b)  Except as provided by Section 7927.052, directors serve 

staggered four-year terms. 

Sec. 7927.052.  TEMPORARY DIRECTORS.  (a)  On or after 

September 1, 2015, the owner or owners of a majority of the 

assessed value of the real property in the district may submit a 

petition to the commission requesting that the commission appoint 

as temporary directors the five persons named in the petition.  The 

commission shall appoint as temporary directors the five persons 

named in the petition. 

(b)  Temporary directors serve until the earlier of: 

(1)  the date permanent directors are elected under 

Section 7927.003; or 

(2)  September 1, 2019. 

(c)  If permanent directors have not been elected under 

Section 7927.003 and the terms of the temporary directors have 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 H.B. No. 4126 

 
 
 Page -4 - 

expired, successor temporary directors shall be appointed or 

reappointed as provided by Subsection (d) to serve terms that 

expire on the earlier of: 

(1)  the date permanent directors are elected under 

Section 7927.003; or 

(2)  the fourth anniversary of the date of the 

appointment or reappointment. 

(d)  If Subsection (c) applies, the owner or owners of a 

majority of the assessed value of the real property in the district 

may submit a petition to the commission requesting that the 

commission appoint as successor temporary directors the five 

persons named in the petition.  The commission shall appoint as 

successor temporary directors the five persons named in the 

petition. 

SUBCHAPTER C.  POWERS AND DUTIES 

Sec. 7927.101.  GENERAL POWERS AND DUTIES.  The district has 

the powers and duties necessary to accomplish the purposes for 

which the district is created. 

Sec. 7927.102.  MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT POWERS AND DUTIES. 

 The district has the powers and duties provided by the general law 

of this state, including Chapters 49 and 54, Water Code, applicable 

to municipal utility districts created under Section 59, Article 

XVI, Texas Constitution. 

Sec. 7927.103.  AUTHORITY FOR ROAD PROJECTS.  Under Section 

52, Article III, Texas Constitution, the district may design, 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 H.B. No. 4126 

 
 
 Page -5 - 

acquire, construct, finance, issue bonds for, improve, operate, 

maintain, and convey to this state, a county, or a municipality for 

operation and maintenance macadamized, graveled, or paved roads, or 

improvements, including storm drainage, in aid of those roads. 

Sec. 7927.104.  ROAD STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS.   (a) A road 

project must meet all applicable construction standards, zoning and 

subdivision requirements, and regulations of each municipality in 

whose corporate limits or extraterritorial jurisdiction the road 

project is located. 

(b)  If a road project is not located in the corporate limits 

or extraterritorial jurisdiction of a municipality, the road 

project must meet all applicable construction standards, 

subdivision requirements, and regulations of each county in which 

the road project is located. 

(c)  If the state will maintain and operate the road, the 

Texas Transportation Commission must approve the plans and 

specifications of the road project. 

Sec. 7927.105.  COMPLIANCE WITH MUNICIPAL CONSENT ORDINANCE OR 

RESOLUTION.  The district shall comply with all applicable 

requirements of any ordinance or resolution that is adopted under 

Section 54.016 or 54.0165, Water Code, and that consents to the 

creation of the district or to the inclusion of land in the 

district. 

SUBCHAPTER D.  GENERAL FINANCIAL PROVISIONS 

Sec. 7927.151.  ELECTIONS REGARDING TAXES OR BONDS.  (a)  The 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 H.B. No. 4126 

 
 
 Page -6 - 

district may issue, without an election, bonds and other 

obligations secured by: 

(1)  revenue other than ad valorem taxes; or 

(2)  contract payments described by Section 7927.153. 

(b)  The district must hold an election in the manner provided 

by Chapters 49 and 54, Water Code, to obtain voter approval before 

the district may impose an ad valorem tax or issue bonds payable 

from ad valorem taxes. 

(c)  The district may not issue bonds payable from ad valorem 

taxes to finance a road project unless the issuance is approved by 

a vote of a two-thirds majority of the district voters voting at an 

election held for that purpose. 

Sec. 7927.152.  OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE TAX.  (a)  If 

authorized at an election held under Section 7927.151, the district 

may impose an operation and maintenance tax on taxable property in 

the district in accordance with Section 49.107, Water Code. 

(b)  The board shall determine the tax rate.  The rate may not 

exceed the rate approved at the election. 

Sec. 7927.153.  CONTRACT TAXES.  (a)  In accordance with 

Section 49.108, Water Code, the district may impose a tax other 

than an operation and maintenance tax and use the revenue derived 

from the tax to make payments under a contract after the provisions 

of the contract have been approved by a majority of the district 

voters voting at an election held for that purpose. 

(b)  A contract approved by the district voters may contain a 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 H.B. No. 4126 

 
 
 Page -7 - 

provision stating that the contract may be modified or amended by 

the board without further voter approval. 

SUBCHAPTER E.  BONDS AND OTHER OBLIGATIONS 

Sec. 7927.201.  AUTHORITY TO ISSUE BONDS AND OTHER 

OBLIGATIONS.  The district may issue bonds or other obligations 

payable wholly or partly from ad valorem taxes, impact fees, 

revenue, contract payments, grants, or other district money, or any 

combination of those sources, to pay for any authorized district 

purpose. 

Sec. 7927.202.  TAXES FOR BONDS.  At the time the district 

issues bonds payable wholly or partly from ad valorem taxes, the 

board shall provide for the annual imposition of a continuing 

direct ad valorem tax, without limit as to rate or amount, while 

all or part of the bonds are outstanding as required and in the 

manner provided by Sections 54.601 and 54.602, Water Code. 

Sec. 7927.203.  BONDS FOR ROAD PROJECTS.  At the time of 

issuance, the total principal amount of bonds or other obligations 

issued or incurred to finance road projects and payable from ad 

valorem taxes may not exceed one-fourth of the assessed value of 

the real property in the district. 

SECTION 2.  The Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District 

No. 218 initially includes all the territory contained in the 

following area: 

A 232.215 acre, or 10,115,268 square feet more or less tract of 

land, being all of that 250 acre tract of land conveyed to Frank 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 H.B. No. 4126 

 
 
 Page -8 - 

Chalupa and described in a deed recorded in Volume 182, Page 194 of 

the Deed Records of Fort Bend County, Texas, subsequently divided 

into seven parcels and conveyed as follows: 41.58 acres conveyed to 

Edwin G. Chalupa et al in a deed recorded in Volume 708, Page 5, 

corrected in document recorded in Volume 753, Page 746, Deed 

Records of Fort Bend County, Texas, subsequently conveyed to 

Patrick B. Chalupa, Melissa K. Chalupa aka Melissa Chalupa Gonzalez 

by deeds recorded in Document Numbers 9621563, 2007000110, 

2007061950, 2014005282, and 2014005283 of the Official Public 

Records of Fort Bend County, Texas; 41.58 acres conveyed to Robert 

E. Chalupa et al by deed recorded in Volume 708, Page 9, corrected 

in Document recorded in Volume 753, Page 746, Deed Records of Fort 

Bend County, Texas; 41.58 acres conveyed to Bessie R. Polasek, 

Jerry William Polasek and Bessie R. Polasek as Trustee for Jerry 

Wayne Polasek, Michael Polasek and Deborah Renee Polasek, by deed 

recorded in Volume 708, Page 16, corrected in document recorded in 

Volume 753, Page 746, Deed Records of Fort Bend County, Texas, and 

being the same tract subsequently conveyed to Michael Polasek, 

Jerry Wayne Polasek and Deborah Renee Polasek Macha by deeds 

recorded in Document Numbers 9468263, 9468264, 946826, 09468266, 

9468267, 8468268, 9459082, 9469083, and 9469084 of the Official 

Public Records of Fort Bend County, Texas; 41.58 acres conveyed to 

Anastazie M. Stasney, et al by deed recorded in Volume 705, Page 1, 

corrected in document recorded in Volume 753, Page 746, Deed 

Records of Fort Bend County, Texas, and being the same tract 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 H.B. No. 4126 

 
 
 Page -9 - 

subsequently conveyed to Alan Wayne Stasney by deeds recorded in 

Document Numbers 9504686, 2006162504, and 2013128230 of the 

Official Public Records of Fort Bend County, Texas; 41.58 acres 

conveyed to John J. Chalupa, Trustee for the benefit of Delores 

Chalupa in accordance with the Frank and Amalie Chalupa Trust III, 

by deed recorded in Volume 707, Page 932, corrected in document 

recorded in Volume 753, Page 748, Deed Records of Fort Bend County, 

Texas; 20.2239 acres being a portion of 41.58 acres conveyed to 

John J. Chalupa by deed recorded in Volume 708 Page 13, corrected 

in document recorded in Volume 753, Page 746, Deed Records of Fort 

Bend County, Texas, and being the same tract of land conveyed by 

deed recorded in Document Number 9468272, Official Public Records 

of Fort Bend County, Texas, to Bessie Polasek and Anastazie 

Stasney, Co-Trustees for Bessie Polasek pursuant to Testamentary 

Trust created by the Last Will and Testament of John J. Chalupa, 

admitted to probate on August 10, 1992, in Cause No. 12,545, in the 

Probate Court of Fort Bend County, Texas; and 21.4413 acre portion 

of 41.58 acres conveyed to John J. Chalupa by deed recorded in 

Volume 708, Page 13, corrected in document recorded in Volume 753, 

Page 746, Deed Records of Fort Bend County, Texas, and being the 

same tract of land conveyed by deed recorded in Document Number 

9468271, Official Public Records of Fort Bend County, Texas, to 

Bessie Polasek and Anastazie Stasney, Co-Trustees for Anastazie 

Stasney pursuant to Testamentary Trust created by the Last Will and 

Testament of John J. Chalupa, admitted to probate on August 10, 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 H.B. No. 4126 

 
 
 Page -10 - 

1992, in Cause No. 12,545, in the Probate Court of Fort Bend 

County, Texas, all situated in the W. Lusk Survey, Abstract 276, 

and the E. Wheat Survey, Abstract 396, partially in the City of 

Rosenberg and partially in the Rosenberg Extra-Territorial 

Jurisdiction, Fort Bend County, Texas. Said 232.215 acre tract of 

land being more fully described as follows, with bearings based on 

the Texas State Plane Coordinate System, established for the South 

Central Zone, from the North American Datum of 1983(NA2011), epoch 

2010.00: 

BEGINNING: At a set 5/8 inch iron rod with yellow cap marked 

"Pape Dawson" at the northwest corner of said 250 acre tract of 

land described in Volume 182, Page 194 of the Deed Records of Fort 

Bend County, Texas, also being the northwest corner of said 41.58 

acres conveyed to Edwin G. Chalupa et al in a deed recorded in 

Volume 708, page 5 of the Deed Records of Fort Bend County, Texas, 

and the northwest corner of a 0.476 acre right-of-way easement 

conveyed to the State of Texas and described in Volume 522, Page 45 

of the Deed Records of Fort Bend County, Texas for Minonite Road 

(also known as F.M. 2977), a 100-foot wide right-of-way as shown on 

the right-of-way map prepared for the Texas Department of 

Transportation under CSJ 3048-1-4, also being the southwest corner 

of a 0.977 acre tract of land conveyed to NGR Texas Power LLC in a 

document recorded in Clerk's File No. 2007089660 and described in 

Clerk's File No. 2007019710 of the Official Public Records of Fort 

Bend County, Texas, and the southwest corner of a 0.093 of an acre 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 H.B. No. 4126 

 
 
 Page -11 - 

right-of-way easement conveyed to the State of Texas for said 

Minonite Road and described in Volume 522, Page 36 of the Deed 

Records of Fort Bend County, Texas; 

THENCE: S67°37'36"E, along and with the northeast line of said 

250 acre tract, the southwest line of said 0.977 acre tract, 

passing the northeast corner of said 0.476 acre right-of-way 

easement and southeast corner of said 0.093 acre right-of-way 

easement at a distance of 9.00 feet, from which a found 3/4 inch 

iron pipe bears N67°37'36"W, a distance of 0.28 feet, passing the 

southeast corner of said 0.977 acre tract, the southwest corner of 

a 4.1687 acre tract of land conveyed to HV Asset, LLC and described 

in Clerk's File No. 2014072568 of the Official Public Records Fort 

Bend County, Texas, at an additional distance of 91.00 feet, 

passing the southeast corner of said 4.1687 acre tract, the 

southwest corner of a 27.550 acre tract of land conveyed to 

Community Focus Foundation, A Texas Foundation and described in 

Clerk's File No. 2013053843 of the Official Public Records of Fort 

Bend County, Texas at an additional distance of 368.89 feet, from 

which a found 3/4 inch iron pipe bears S22°22'24"W, a distance of 

0.23 feet, passing the southeast corner of said 27.550 acre tract, 

the southwest corner of a 16.313 acre tract of land conveyed to 

Community Focus Foundation, a Texas Nonprofit Corporation in 

Clerk's File No. 2013054877 of the Official Public Records of Fort 

Bend County, Texas at an additional distance of 779.25 feet, from 

which a found iron rod with cap marked "Kalkomey Surveying" bears 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 H.B. No. 4126 

 
 
 Page -12 - 

N22°22'24"E, a distance of 0.27 feet, passing the southeast corner 

of said 16.313 acre tract of land conveyed to Community Focus 

Foundation, a Texas Nonprofit Corporation, the southwest corner of 

a 16.313 acre tract of land conveyed to Michael and Madeleine 

Ghosn, and described in Clerk's File No. 2011016213 of the Official 

Public Records of Fort Bend County, Texas at an additional distance 

of 449.82 feet, from which a found iron rod with cap marked 

"Kalkomey Surveying" bears N22°22'24"E, a distance of 0.57 feet, 

passing the southeast corner of said 16.313 acre tract conveyed to 

Michael and Madeleine Ghosn, the southwest corner of a 23.425 acre 

tract of land conveyed to Niranjan and Jasmin Patel and described 

in Clerk's File No. 2013077203 of the Official Public Records of 

Fort Bend County, Texas at an additional distance of 449.73 feet, 

passing the southeast corner of said 23.425 acre tract, the 

southwest corner of a 32.626 acre tract of land conveyed to 

Vertical Capital Holdings, LLC and described in Clerk's File 

No. 2014024505 of the Official Public Records of Fort Bend County, 

Texas, at an additional distance of 646.32 feet, passing the 

southeast corner of said 32.626 acre tract, the southwest corner of 

a 32.63 acre tract of land conveyed to Zion Hill Baptist Church in 

Crabb, Texas and described in Clerk's File No. 2010105939 of the 

Official Public Records of Fort Bend County, Texas at an additional 

distance of 900.72 feet, passing the southeast corner of said 32.63 

acre tract, the southwest corner of a 33.450 acre tract of land 

conveyed to Wilbert Ulrich and described in Volume 2236, Page 2080 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 H.B. No. 4126 

 
 
 Page -13 - 

of the Deed Records of Fort Bend County, Texas at an additional 

distance of 901.24 feet, along and with the south line of said 

33.450 acre tract, and additional distance of 926.55 feet, for a 

total distance of 5522.52 feet to a set MAG nail with shiner marked 

"Pape-Dawson" on the east line of a 30-foot wide right-of-way 

easement conveyed to Fort Bend County and described in Volume 181, 

Page 611 of the Deed Records of Fort Bend County, Texas for the 

creation of Benton Road, a 60-foot wide right-of-way, at the 

southeast corner of said 33.450 acre tract, the northeast corner of 

said 250 acre tract and the northeast corner of said 20.2239 acre 

portion of a 41.58 acre tract conveyed to John J. Chalupa by deed 

recorded in Volume 708, Page 13 of the Deed Records of Fort Bend 

County, Texas, from which a found Mag nail bears N00°14'41"W, a 

distance of 3.79 feet; 

THENCE: S22°21'30"W, along and with centerline of said Benton 

Road, also being the east line of said 250 acre tract, the east 

line of said 30-foot wide right-of-way easement, and the east line 

of said 20.2239 acre and said 21.4413 acre portion of the 41.58 

acre tract of land conveyed to John J. Chalupa, passing a found MAG 

nail at a distance of 750.63 feet, from which another found MAG 

nail bears N17°20'04"E, a distance of 5.27 feet, continuing along 

said east line and centerline, an additional distance of 1222.50 

feet for a total distance of 1973.13 feet to a set 5/8 inch iron 

rod with yellow cap marked "Pape-Dawson" on the north line of a 

30.71 acre tract of land conveyed to Lennar Homes of Texas Land and 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 H.B. No. 4126 

 
 
 Page -14 - 

Construction, Ltd. and described in Clerk's File No. 2005142966 of 

the Official Public Records of Fort Bend County, Texas, at the 

southeast corner of said 250 acres tract, the southeast corner of 

said 21.4413 acre tract, and the southeast corner of said 30-foot 

wide right-of-way easement; 

THENCE: N67°37'36"W, departing the centerline of said Benton 

Road, also being the east line of said 250 acre tract, the east 

line of said 30-foot wide right-of-way easement, and the east line 

of said 20.2239 acre and 21.4413 acre portions of the 41.58 acre 

tract of land conveyed to John J. Chalupa, along and with the south 

line of said 250 acre tract of land, the north line of said 30.71 

acre tract, now partially platted as Walnut Creek Section Four, 

recorded in Clerk's File No. 20140011 of the Official Public 

Records of Fort Bend County, Texas and Walnut Creek Section Nine, 

recorded in Clerk's File No. 20120064 of the Official Public 

Records of Fort Bend County, Texas, passing a found iron rod with 

cap marked "IDS" at the common corner between Lot 16, Block 1 and 

Lot 26, Block 1 of said Walnut Creek Section Four at a distance of 

1899.49 feet, passing a found iron rod with illegible cap at the 

common corner between Lot 14, Block 1 of said Walnut Creek Section 

Four and Lot 18, Block 1 of said Walnut Creek Section Nine at an 

additional distance of 327.00 feet, continuing along the south line 

of said 250 acres, now being the north line of said Walnut Creek 

Section Nine, passing the northwest corner of said Walnut Creek 

Section Nine, the northeast corner of Walnut Creek Section Three, 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 H.B. No. 4126 

 
 
 Page -15 - 

recorded in Clerk's File No. 20090032 of the Official Public 

Records of Fort Bend County, Texas at an additional distance of 

917.38 feet, passing the northwest corner of said Walnut Creek 

Section Three, the northeast corner of Rosehaven Section 2, 

recorded in Clerk's File No. 20050172 of the Official Public 

Records of Fort Bend County, Texas at an additional distance of 

259.13 feet, passing the northwest corner of said Rosehaven Sec. 2, 

the northeast corner of Restricted Reserve "A", Walnut Creek 

Recreational Reserve, recorded in Clerk's File No. 20100086 of the 

Official Public Records of Fort Bend County, Texas, at an 

additional distance of 1,290.33, for a total distance of 4989.24 

feet, to a point, said point being located S67°37'36"E a distance 

of 16.07 feet from the northwest corner of said Rosehaven Sec. 2, 

the northeast corner of Restricted Reserve "A", Walnut Creek 

Recreational Reserve, recorded in Clerk's File No. 20100086 of the 

Official Public Records of Fort Bend County, Texas; 

THENCE: Over and across the said 250 acre tract of land the 

following courses and distances: 

N22°22'24"E, a distance of 129.84 feet to a point, 

N20°01'13"E, a distance of 59.92 feet to a point, 

N22°28'53"E, a distance of 358.51 feet to a point, 

N18°09'34"E, a distance of 60.26 feet to a point, 

N22°24'27"E, a distance of 129.92 feet to a point, 

N22°48'47"E, a distance of 152.32 feet to a point, 

N17°28'20"E, a distance of 190.00 feet to a point, 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 H.B. No. 4126 

 
 
 Page -16 - 

S72°54'19"E, a distance of 23.20 feet to a point, 

Northeasterly, along a non-tangent curve to the left, having a 

radial bearing of N 17°05'41" E, a radius of 24.84 feet, a central 

angle of 92°12'15", a chord bearing and distance of N 60°59'33" E, 

35.80 feet, for an arc length of 39.98 feet to a point, 

Southeasterly, along the arc of a reverse curve to the right 

with a radius of 780.39 feet, an interior angle of 12°35'14", and a 

chord bearing and distance of N 21°11'03" E, 171.10 feet; for an 

arc length of 171.44 feet to a point, 

N 27°06'01" E, a distance of 59.97 feet to a point, 

Northwesterly, along a tangent curve to the left with a radius 

of 2280.00 feet, a central angle of 02°47'20", and a chord bearing 

and distance of N 25°42'20" E, 110.97 feet, for an arc length of 

110.98 feet to a point, 

N 67°30'19" W, a distance of 260.14 feet to a point, 

N 54°51'39" W, a distance of 61.08 feet to a point, and 

N 67°21'55" W, a distance of 247.25 feet to a point; 

THENCE: N 22°29'41" E, along and with the west line of said 

0.476 acre right-of-way easement and west line of said 250 acre 

tract, a distance of 506.41 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and 

containing 232.215 acres in the Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction of 

Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas. Said tract being described in 

accordance with a survey made on the ground and a survey 

description and map prepared under job number 49077-14 by Pape-

Dawson Engineers, Inc. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 H.B. No. 4126 

 
 
 Page -17 - 

SECTION 3.  (a)  The legal notice of the intention to 

introduce this Act, setting forth the general substance of this 

Act, has been published as provided by law, and the notice and a 

copy of this Act have been furnished to all persons, agencies, 

officials, or entities to which they are required to be furnished 

under Section 59, Article XVI, Texas Constitution, and Chapter 313, 

Government Code. 

(b)  The governor, one of the required recipients, has 

submitted the notice and Act to the Texas Commission on 

Environmental Quality. 

(c)  The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality has filed 

its recommendations relating to this Act with the governor, the 

lieutenant governor, and the speaker of the house of 

representatives within the required time. 

(d)  All requirements of the constitution and laws of this 

state and the rules and procedures of the legislature with respect 

to the notice, introduction, and passage of this Act are fulfilled 

and accomplished. 

SECTION 4.  (a)  If this Act does not receive a two-thirds 

vote of all the members elected to each house, Subchapter C, 

Chapter 7927, Special District Local Laws Code, as added by Section 

1 of this Act, is amended by adding Section 7927.106 to read as 

follows: 

Sec. 7927.106.  NO EMINENT DOMAIN POWER.  The district may not 

exercise the power of eminent domain. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 H.B. No. 4126 

 
 
 Page -18 - 

(b)  This section is not intended to be an expression of a 

legislative interpretation of the requirements of Section 17(c), 

Article I, Texas Constitution. 

SECTION 5.  This Act takes effect September 1, 2013. 



P r o p o s e d  M U D  N o .  2 1 8

ROHAN

BE
NT

ON

MIN
ON

ITE

BRYAN

IRBY COBB

RICEFIELD

A MEYERS

MESSINA

ASHLAND TERRACE

HAVE N FO R EST

SAGE B LUFF

WILDBRIAR

HIDALGO

B U T T ERFL
Y

ROSE
RA

NC
H

TRINITY TR AIL

LA
RK

JASMINE

BELLE M EADOW

YAUPON RIDGE

COLONIAL ROSE

PEARL TERRACE

RUNNING BROOK SUNSHINE MED
LE

Y

PEAR POINT

LANTERN HILL

PLUM ROSE

POINT HOLLOW
@A2977

Å

Û

N

S

EW

Interstate
US Highway
State Highway
Public Road
Private Road
Railroad

Rosenberg City Limits
Rosenberg ETJ
Other Jurisdictions
FBCAD 2014 3rd Quarter Parcels
Proposed Area

Created by: City of Rosenberg GIS - Cory Vardaman
Date Created: March 30, 2015
Original Size: 8.5" x 11"
K:\GIS\MAPS\Planning\2015\Prop_MUD_218_VicinityMap.mxd

Proposed MUD No. 218
City of Rosenberg, Texas

This product is for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable 
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of geographic features.

1:12,000
1 inch = 1,000 feet

Scale:
or

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000
Feet

The 2014 Aerial Imagery Data is the sole property of Houston-Galveston Area Council, which
reserves all rights thereto.  Use or reproduction of this data is strictly prohibited absent written
consent from the Houston-Galveston Area Council, which may be contacted at www.h-gac.com.



 

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 
2110 4

th
 Street*P.O. Box 32*Rosenberg, Texas 77471-0032 

832.595.3340/Fax 832.595.3333 
www.ci.rosenberg.tx.us 

 

 
 

April 08, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
VIA TELEFAX: (512) 236-0713    VIA TELEFAX: (512) 475-3736 
The Honorable John Zerwas     The Honorable Lois Kolkhorst 
Room E2.308       P. O. Box 12068 
P. O. Box 2910      Austin, Texas 78711 
Austin, Texas 78768       
 
Re: Legislation Regarding the Creation of Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 218 
 
Dear Representative Zerwas and Senator Kolkhorst: 
 
On behalf of the City of Rosenberg, Texas (the “City”), please be advised that the City supports 
the filing of the above-captioned legislation.  We would appreciate you letting us know when 
the legislation has been filed and when it is about to be passed.  In the event the City ever 
withdraws its support for the creation of this district we will promptly advise you.  In the 
absence of any further communication from the City you should assume our continued support. 
 
Should either of you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call or email the 
undersigned. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Vincent M. Morales, Jr. 
Mayor 
       
 



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 07, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

5 Ordinance No. 2015-10 – Granting a Gas Franchise to SiEnergy, L.P. 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on a second reading of Ordinance No. 2015-10, an Ordinance granting to 
SiEnergy, L.P., a franchise to furnish and supply gas to the general public in the City of Rosenberg, Fort 
Bend County, Texas, for the transporting, delivery, sale, and distribution of gas in, out of, and through said 
Municipality for all purposes; providing for the payment of a fee or charge for the use of the streets, alleys, 
and public ways; requiring compliance with all regulatory ordinances of the City; and providing for all other 
provisions related to the subject matter hereof.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[X] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:   N/A 

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Ordinance No. 2015-10 
2. Charter Excerpt – Article XII, Section 12.03 
3. SiEnergy Distribution System Map  
4. City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt – 03-17-15  

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[X] City Attorney DNRBHZ/rl    
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal to 
City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

It was recently determined that SiEnergy, L.P., is providing natural gas service to areas that are now located 
within a portion of the Rosenberg City Limits. Therefore, SiEnergy, L.P., is required to obtain a franchise 
agreement from the City. In accordance with Article XII of the City Charter, the City Attorney has prepared 
Ordinance No. 2015-10 which will grant said franchise to furnish and supply gas to the general public. 
 
Article XII, Section 12.03 of the City Charter identifies specific procedures for approval of franchise ordinances 
which are summarized below: 

 Ordinances shall not be passed finally until its third and final reading 
 Ordinances shall be read at three separate regular meetings of the City Council, the last of which shall 

take place not less than thirty days from the first 
 No ordinance granting a franchise shall pass any reading except by a vote of the majority of the City 

Council 
 Ordinances shall not take effect until sixty days after its adoption on its third and final reading 
 Any time before the ordinance shall finally take effect, a petition can be presented to the City Council 

signed by not less than twenty percent of the voters voting at the last regular municipal election, but in 
no event less than one hundred fifty bona fide qualified voters, requiring the City Council submit the 
question of granting said franchise to a vote of the qualified voters of the City 
 

SiEnergy, L.P., has reviewed the Ordinance and has no objections to any of the terms.  City Council considered 
and approved the first reading of Ordinance No. 2015-10 at the March 17, 2015 Regular Meeting.  Staff 
recommends approval of this second reading of Ordinance No. 2015-10 as presented.  
 



ORDINANCE NO. 2015-10 

GAS SUPPLY FRANCHISE ORDINANCE  

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING TO SIENERGY, L.P.,  A FRANCHISE TO 
FURNISH AND SUPPLY GAS TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC IN THE CITY 
OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE 
TRANSPORTING, DELIVERY, SALE, AND DISTRIBUTION OF GAS IN, 
OUT OF, AND THROUGH SAID MUNICIPALITY FOR ALL PURPOSES; 
PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT OF A FEE OR CHARGE FOR THE USE 
OF THE STREETS, ALLEYS, AND PUBLIC WAYS; REQUIRING 
COMPLIANCE WITH ALL REGULATORY ORDINANCES OF THE CITY; 
AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER PROVISIONS RELATED TO THE 
SUBJECT MATTER HEREOF.  

 WHEREAS, Chapter 121 of the Texas Utilities Code authorizes municipalities to 
adopt ordinances that establish conditions for mapping, inventorying, locating, or 
relocating pipelines over, under, along, or across a public street or alley or private 
residential area in the boundaries of the municipality; and 

 WHEREAS,  the City of Rosenberg, Texas (“City’), strives to promote orderly and 
safe development within the territorial limits of the City; and 

 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that this franchise agreement with SiEnergy, 
L.P., a Texas Limited Partnership, (hereinafter referred to as “SiEnergy” or “the 
Company’) is in the best interest of the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of the 
City; now, therefore, 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS:  

Section 1. - Grant of authority.  

(a) Subject to the reasonable and timely compliance by SiEnergy with the provisions 
contained herein, the City of Rosenberg, Texas, hereinafter called "city," hereby 
grants to SiEnergy, hereinafter called "company," its successors and assigns, 
consent to use and occupy the present and future public rights-of-way, for the 
purpose of laying, maintaining, constructing, protecting, operating, and replacing 
therein and thereon pipelines and all other appurtenant equipment needed and 
necessary to deliver, transport, and distribute gas in, out of, and through city and to 
sell gas to persons, firms, and corporations, including all the general public, within 
the city corporate limits, as such limits may be amended from time to time during the 
term of this ordinance.  

(b) This franchise is granted for a term of ten (10) years from and after the effective date 
of this Ordinance.  

(c) This franchise covers the geographical area of the entire corporate limits of the City 
of Rosenberg, Texas. The company agrees that the corporate limits are subject to 
expansion or reduction by annexation and contraction of municipal boundaries and 
that the company has no vested right in a specific area. The company hereby agrees 
to provide service to any and all areas that may be annexed to the city under the 



Page 2 of 13 

 

same terms and conditions of this agreement as the current areas now covered by 
this agreement. If the city approves any corporate limits expansion or reduction by 
annexation or contraction, the city will provide written notice to the company. The 
company must revise its payments due to any expansion or reduction by annexation 
or contraction within a reasonable time after notice by the city, but no later than sixty 
(60) days after receipt of notice.  

(d) This franchise is granted subject to and in accordance with Article XII – Franchises 
and Public Utilities, Sections 12.01-12.10 as provided in the City Charter.  

Section 2. - Definitions.  

For the purposes of this ordinance, the following terms, phrases, words, and their 
derivations shall have the meaning given herein. When not inconsistent with the context, 
words in the present tense include the future, words in the plural number include the 
singular number, and words in the singular number include the plural number. The word 
"shall" is always mandatory and not merely directory.  

(a) "Gross revenues" means: 

i. All revenues charged by company for the sale of gas, including compressed 
gas, within the city to all customers within city;  

ii. All revenues charged by company for the transportation of gas through the 
pipeline system of company within the city to customers within the city 
regardless of the origination of the gas within the company's system of lines; 
and  

iii. The total cost of gas transported by company for transport customers through 
the pipeline system of company within city.  

Gross revenues shall not be reduced by bad debts, unless and until such debts are 
actually charged off. Abandoned deposits shall be applied as an offset to bad debts 
for purposes of this agreement. No revenues shall be excluded from gross revenues 
unless such revenues are specifically excluded by this agreement.  

(b) "Public right-of-way" means all of the public streets, alleys, highways, bridges, 
easements, drainage ways, and sidewalks of the city, as they now exist or may be 
hereafter constructed, opened, laid out or extended within the present limits of the 
city, or in such territory as may hereafter be added to, consolidated or annexed to the 
city.  

(c) "Transport customer" means any person or entity for whom company transports gas 
through the pipeline system of company within the city to consumers.  

Section 3. - Conditions of occupancy.  

(a) All activities of company in the public rights-of-way shall conform with all the 
applicable city codes and ordinances, as amended, with city infrastructure standards 
for design, construction and repair, as amended, and with all other city regulatory 
requirements as such may be adopted and amended from time to time, including but 
not limited to requirements regarding the acquisition of permits and the payment of 
fees therefor. Except in emergencies, before company shall be authorized or required 



Page 3 of 13 

 

to extend, repair, or relay its existing gas mains or street service lines, it shall file with 
the director of public works a written statement showing the nature and character of 
the extensions to be made, obtain a permit for such work, and pay the required permit 
fees; provided however, company may make emergency repairs and replacements 
without prior filing with the director of public works but it shall file a written statement 
promptly thereafter. In addition, the company shall assess and report on the impact 
of its proposed construction on the city environment. Such plans and reports may be 
reviewed by the city to ensure that, among other items, (i) aesthetic and good 
planning principles have been given due consideration, (ii) adverse impact on the 
environment has been minimized, and (iii) that all applicable laws, including building 
and zoning codes, as applicable and air and water pollution regulations, are complied 
with. Reasonable changes suggested by the city shall be incorporated into the 
company's plans.  

(b) The company shall, upon the written request of the City, relocate its facilities situated 
within any street, sidewalks, drainage ways, and alleys, at no expense to the City, 
where reasonable and necessary to accommodate street construction or widening or 
other city improvement projects.  When the company is required by city to remove or 
relocate its mains, laterals, and other facilities to accommodate construction of 
streets, sidewalks, drainage ways, and alleys by city, and company is eligible under 
federal, state, county, local or other programs for reimbursement of costs and 
expenses incurred by company as a result of such removal or relocation, and such 
reimbursement is required to be handled through city, company costs and expenses 
shall be included in any application by city for reimbursement, if company submits its 
cost and expense documentation to city prior to the filing of the application. City shall 
provide reasonable notice to company of the deadline for company to submit 
documentation of the costs and expenses of such relocation to city. If the company 
is required by city to remove or relocate its mains, laterals, or other facilities for any 
reason other than the construction of streets, alleys, drainage ways, and public 
infrastructure associated therewith by city, company shall be entitled to 
reimbursement from others of the cost and expense of such removal or relocation.   

(c) If city abandons any public right-of-way in which company has facilities, when 
feasible, company shall have the right to maintain its use of the former public right-
of-way upon conditions to be determined by the city.  

(d) The company shall at all times keep on file with the city a current map or set of maps 
of the company's facilities within the city. Such maps shall indicate subdivision 
locations and locations of company's customers. As extensions or modifications of 
facilities are made from time to time, the company shall file with the city maps or plans 
showing those extensions or modifications so that the city will at all times have current 
and accurate maps and plans of the company's facilities. In addition to showing the 
location of company's facilities and customers, such maps shall also identify the depth 
and size of any buried facilities, as well as the type of cover overlaying those facilities. 
The company shall furnish the city "as built" drawings not later than sixty (60) days 
after construction has been completed. Drawings shall be drawn to a scale of one 
inch (1") equals one hundred feet (100') using the standard format adopted by the 
city. State plane coordinates shall be shown for benchmarks, curb lines, and 
structures. The company shall provide one (1) set of blue or black line "as built" 



Page 4 of 13 

 

drawings to the city and one (1) set of the maps on computer diskettes with G.I.S. 
data in an electronic/digital format designated by the city.  

(e) The company shall provide, on a quarterly basis and at the same time that the 
quarterly payments and reports required in section 9 are submitted, a comprehensive 
listing of its customers on a subdivision basis. The location information shall also be 
shown on either a map or a subdivision plat, and may be combined with the maps 
required in paragraph 3(d) above. Company shall further cooperate with city in 
determining the correct jurisdictional coding of all of company's customers in the city 
and its environs.  

(f) The company agrees to provide, at its cost, information requested by the city to assist 
in a determination of any changes in conditions, practices, or services provided by 
the company through the use of the public rights-of-way.  

Section 4. - Regulations for service.  

(a) In addition to the rates charged for gas supplied, company may make and enforce 
reasonable charges, rules and regulations for service rendered in the conduct of its 
business, including a charge for services rendered in the inauguration of natural gas 
service, and may require, before furnishing service, the execution of a contract for 
such service. All charges, rules, and regulations of company involving any consumer 
of gas within the city shall be subject to regulation, supervision, and approval by the 
city, as appropriate.  

(b) Company shall have the right to contract with each customer with reference to the 
installation of, and payment for, any and all of the gas piping from the connection 
thereof with the company's main in the public rights-of-way to and throughout the 
customer's premises.  

(c) Company shall own, operate and maintain all service lines, which are defined as the 
supply lines extending from the company's main to the customer's meter where gas 
is measured by company. The customer shall own, operate, and maintain all yard 
lines and house piping. Yard lines are defined as the supply lines extending from the 
point of connection with company's customer meter to the point of connection with 
customer's house piping.  

Section 5. - Main extension.  

Company shall be required at its own expense to extend distribution mains in any 
public rights-of-way up to one hundred (100) feet to a residential customer. Company 
shall not be required to extend transmission mains in any public rights-of-way within city 
or to make a tap on any transmission main within city unless company agrees to such 
extension by a written agreement between company and a customer.  

Section 6. - Deposits.  

Company shall be entitled to require each and every customer of gas, before gas 
service is commenced or reinstated, to satisfactorily establish credit pursuant to the 
company's quality of service rules as may be in effect during the term of this franchise. 
Said deposit shall be retained and refunded in accordance with such quality of service 



Page 5 of 13 

 

rules and shall bear interest, as provided in Chapter 183, Texas Utilities Code, as such 
may be amended from time to time. Upon termination of service, company shall be 
entitled to apply said deposit, with accrued interest, to any indebtedness owed Company 
by the customer making the deposit.  

Section 7. - Indemnity.  

IN CONSIDERATION OF THE GRANTING OF THIS FRANCHISE, COMPANY 
AGREES THAT CITY SHALL NOT BE LIABLE OR RESPONSIBLE FOR, AND 
COMPANY DOES HEREBY RELEASE, AGREE TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD 
HARMLESS CITY FROM AND AGAINST ALL SUITS, ACTIONS, OR CLAIMS OF 
INJURY TO ANY PERSON OR PERSONS, OR DAMAGES TO ANY PROPERTY 
BROUGHT OR MADE FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF ANY DEATH, INJURIES TO, OR 
DAMAGES RECEIVED OR SUSTAINED BY ANY PERSON OR PERSONS OR FOR 
DAMAGE TO OR LOSS OF PROPERTY ARISING OUT OF, OR OCCASIONED BY 
THE CONSTRUCTION, OPERATION, OR MAINTENANCE OF THE GAS 
DISTRIBUTION PLANT OR SYSTEM OF COMPANY, EXCEPT THAT THIS 
INDEMNITY AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT SHALL NOT APPLY TO ANY 
SITUATION WHEREIN CITY IS SOLELY LIABLE FOR THE ACTIONS, SUITS, OR 
CLAIMS OF INJURY OR DAMAGE BROUGHT AGAINST IT. IN THE EVENT THAT 
ANY ACTION, SUIT, OR PROCEEDING IS BROUGHT AGAINST CITY UPON ANY 
LIABILITY ARISING OUT OF THE CONSTRUCTION, OPERATIONS, OR 
MAINTENANCE OF THE COMPANY'S FACILITIES, CITY SHALL GIVE NOTICE IN 
WRITING TO COMPANY BY REGISTERED OR CERTIFIED MAIL. UPON RECEIPT 
OF SUCH NOTICE, THE COMPANY, AT ITS OWN EXPENSE, SHALL DEFEND SUCH 
ACTION AND TAKE ALL SUCH STEPS AS MAY BE NECESSARY OR PROPER TO 
PREVENT THE OBTAINING OF A JUDGMENT AGAINST THE CITY AND/OR TO 
SATISFY SAID JUDGMENT. CITY AGREES TO COOPERATE WITH COMPANY IN 
CONNECTION WITH SUCH DEFENSE.  

Section 8. - Non-exclusive.  

(a) The rights, privileges, and franchise granted by this ordinance are not to be 
considered exclusive, and city hereby expressly reserves the right to grant, at any 
time, like privileges, rights, and franchises as it may see fit to any other person or 
corporation for the purpose of transporting, delivering, distributing, or selling gas to 
and for city and the inhabitants thereof. City expressly reserves the right to own and/or 
operate its own system for the purpose of transporting, delivering, distributing, or 
selling gas to and for the city and the inhabitants thereof.  

(b) If, on the effective date of this franchise, there is in effect a similar gas franchise 
granted by the city to another company that provides for a franchise fee in a lower 
amount than the amount required to be paid by company herein, then company's 
obligations under section 9 hereof shall be limited to the lower amount contained in 
the other franchise. City shall give company notice on the effective date of such other 
franchise affecting company's obligations under section 9 and of the franchise fee 
required under such other franchise. Company shall thereafter be allowed to calculate 
its franchise fee payments to the city based upon the lower fee required in the other 
franchise.  



Page 6 of 13 

 

(c) If company's required franchise fee is lowered as provided in paragraph (b), above, 
and the city subsequently grants or renews a gas franchise to another company that 
requires a franchise fee in the amount of four (4) percent or greater of the franchisee's 
gross revenues, then company's franchise fee obligations shall be as provided in 
section 9 hereof. City shall give company notice of such subsequent franchise or 
renewal affecting company's obligations under section 9 and of the franchise fee 
required under such subsequent franchise or renewal. Company shall thereafter be 
required to calculate its franchise fee payments to the city based upon the 
requirements of section 9 hereof, beginning with the next full calendar quarter after 
receipt of the notice from the city.  

Section 9. - Compensation.  

(a) In consideration of the right granted by city to company to use and occupy the rights-
of-way in the city for the conduct of its business, company, its successors and 
assigns, agrees to pay to the city franchise fees in the amount and manner described 
herein. Such payments shall be made on a quarterly basis, on or before the twentieth 
(20th) day following the end of each calendar quarter. The franchise fee shall be a 
sum of money which shall be equivalent to four (4) percent of the company's quarterly 
gross revenues.  

(b) For franchise fee payments beginning on the effective date of this ordinance, payment 
shall be made by wire transfer on or before the close of business on the payment due 
date. If any payment due date required herein falls on a weekend or declared bank 
holiday, payment shall be made by wire transfer on or before the close of business of 
the last working day prior to the payment due date. Payment shall be considered 
timely made if company requests the wire transfer by the wire transfer deadline of its 
bank on the payment due date.  

(c) At the time of each quarterly payment, company shall also submit to the city a sworn 
statement showing: (i) its gross revenues for the preceding calendar quarter upon 
which franchise fees are calculated, including the amount of revenues received by 
company for the transportation of gas; (ii) the coded identity of company's transport 
customers during the preceding calendar quarter; and (iii) the cost, volume, and 
transport fee of gas transported during the preceding calendar quarter for such 
transport customers, calculated in accordance with section 9(f) below. Upon request, 
city shall have access at company's office to the actual identity of company's transport 
customers and their suppliers as long as such information shall remain confidential, 
and no copies of such information may be made.  

(d) The aforesaid franchise fee payments shall not affect or reduce the company's 
obligations with respect to the following: (i) to reimburse the city for street repairs; (ii) 
the payment of taxes or fees to the state; or (iii) the payment of general or special ad 
valorem taxes that the city is authorized to levy and impose upon real and personal 
property. None of the aforementioned obligations of the city shall operate as credits 
or reductions to the amounts due by the company to the city hereunder.  

(e) The payments by the company under the provisions of this ordinance are in lieu of 
any and all other and additional street rental charges or fees. However, the company 
is required to obtain all appropriate permits for work in the public rights-of-way and 



Page 7 of 13 

 

pay the appropriate fees therefor. Should city not have the legal power to agree that 
the payment of the franchise fee shall be in lieu of street rental charges, then city 
agrees that it will apply so much of said sums of money paid as may be necessary to 
satisfy company's obligations, if any, to pay such rental charges.  

(f) The cost of gas transported by company for transport customers shall be determined 
as set forth in this paragraph. In the absence of documentary evidence to the contrary 
provided by company to city, the cost of gas so transported shall be presumed to be 
equal to the total volume of gas transported for such transport customer times one 
hundred ten (110) percent of the index of prices for large packages of gas per MMBtu 
published each month in Inside FERC's Gas Market Report in the table titled, 
"Delivered Spot-Gas Prices," for gas delivered at Houston Ship Channel/Beaumont, 
Texas, or a mutually agreeable successor publication and index, for the period of time 
the transportation service is performed. If company submits documents to the city to 
indicate the actual cost of gas transported by company, the company may remove 
therefrom any information that would disclose either the identity of the customer or 
other information deemed confidential by company, so long as such removal does 
not prevent the city from determining the monetary cost of the gas transported. 
Company agrees to give the city, upon request, access to the confidential information 
so removed in order for the city to verify the accuracy of the information provided to 
the city under the provisions of this paragraph. Company shall use all due diligence 
in collecting from transport customers any and all fees required by this franchise 
ordinance, but shall not be responsible for paying the fees to city if company's 
transport customer refuses to pay. Provided, however, that if company's transport 
customer refuses to pay the fee imposed on the cost of gas transported for such 
transport customer, and remains delinquent in payment of such fee for a period of 
greater than thirty (30) days, company shall be responsible for the uncollected fee on 
any gas thereafter transported through the rights-of-way of city to company's 
transport customer, but in no event shall the customer be relieved of its obligation to 
reimburse company for any fees paid to city.  

Section 10. - Accounting; audit; inspection.  

(a) The company shall maintain, at its local office or principal place of business within 
the state, adequate books and records relating to the performance of its obligations 
under this franchise. The company shall maintain separate records in a form sufficient 
to identify its investment, revenues, and expenses related to its performance under 
this franchise, intending thereby to separate the accounting records of its system in 
the city from its other systems. The records of the company applicable to its 
performance under this franchise shall be made available for inspection by the city at 
any time during normal working hours.  

(b) City may cause, upon reasonable notice, an audit to be made of the books and 
records of the company relating to the company's performance under this franchise 
or any portion of any of its other operations that may be allocated or charged to its 
operations in the city. The omission by the city to exercise its rights to any audit at 
any time shall not constitute a waiver of such right. In the event city elects to exercise 
its right of audit, city shall provide to the company written notice of such election at 
least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the time of such audit. City shall retain an 



Page 8 of 13 

 

independent auditor of its selection to perform the audit. The company shall make 
available to the auditor such personnel and records as the city may in its reasonable 
discretion request in order to complete such audit, and shall make no charge to the 
city therefor. The company shall assist the city during any audit conducted under this 
franchise, including answering questions and providing any requested records or 
information within five (5) working days of having received a written request therefor. 
The cost of an audit pursuant to this provision shall be borne by the city, unless the 
audit reveals an underpayment of fees paid during the audit period in excess of three 
(3) percent, in which case the company shall pay for the audit. In the event any 
overpayment is discovered, such overpayment will credit toward current and/or future 
payments owed, without interest. 

(c) Upon request by the city, but no less often than annually, the company will prepare a 
statement of its estimate of the company's gross revenues by revenue account for 
the period covered by the statement signed by an authorized representative of the 
company, in such reasonable form and detail as city may from time to time prescribe, 
sufficient to show the source and method of calculation of the company's gross 
revenues. The acceptance of any statement or payment shall not estop the city from 
asserting that the amount paid is not the amount due or from recovering any deficit, 
including interest, by any lawful proceeding.  

(d) Upon completion of the audit, the city shall make the audit report available to the 
company, and shall give the company an opportunity to respond to the audit findings. 
If requested by either party, the city and the company shall meet and attempt in good 
faith to resolve any disputed issues arising out of the audit report. In the event the 
company shall be determined to have under-remitted the fee required by this 
franchise, the company shall pay, in addition to the underpayments, interest on the 
underpayments at the rate of ten (10) percent per annum from the time of the 
underpayment until payment is made. Underpayment of fees by the company may 
also subject the company to penalties for noncompliance with this franchise. After 
reviewing the company's response to the audit findings, the city shall make an initial 
determination as to whether the company shall also be required to pay a penalty for 
noncompliance. The amount of the penalty, if any, shall not exceed ten (10) percent 
of the total underpayment. The city council shall make the final determination of 
whether a penalty shall be required, and the amount of same.  

(e) If any of the records to be provided by company or to be made available by company 
are considered by the company to be proprietary in nature or if such records are 
confidential under federal, state or local law, upon request by the company such 
information shall be treated by the city as confidential, and shall be made available 
only to those persons who must have access to perform their duties on behalf of the 
city, including but not limited to the finance director, the city attorney, and the council 
members. City shall promptly notify company of any requests for public disclosure of 
such records under Chapter 552, Texas Government Code, and company shall have 
the sole responsibility to assert its claims regarding the proprietary or confidential 
nature of such records.  

Section 11. - Reservation of rights.  



Page 9 of 13 

 

(a) The city reserves to itself the right and power at all times to exercise, in the interest 
of the public and in accordance with state law, regulation and control of company's 
rates and services to insure the rendering of efficient public service at reasonable 
rates, and the maintenance of company's property in good repair throughout the term 
of this franchise. Company shall maintain on file with the city copies of its current 
tariffs, schedules of rates and charges, customer service provisions, and line 
extension policies. Company shall notify the city of the identity of any customer of 
company that changes from a tariffed rate to a contract rate within forty-five (45) days 
of such change.  

(b) In granting this franchise, the city does not in any manner waive its regulatory or other 
rights and powers under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Texas as the same 
may be amended, nor any of its rights and powers under or by virtue of present or 
future ordinances of the city, and it is expressly provided that nothing herein shall 
impair the right of the city to fix, within constitutional and statutory limits, a reasonable 
price to be charged for natural gas, or to provide and fix a scale of prices for natural 
gas, and other charges, to be charged by company to residential consumers, 
commercial consumers, industrial consumers, or to any combination of such 
consumers, within the territorial limits of the city as same now exist or as such limits 
may be extended from time to time hereafter.  

Section 12. - Termination.  

(a) In addition to any rights set out elsewhere in this ordinance, the city reserves the right 
to terminate the franchise and all rights and privileges pertaining thereto, in the event 
that the company violates any material provision of the franchise or the company 
becomes insolvent, or is adjudged as bankrupt.  

(b) Upon failure of the company to comply with the material terms of the franchise, the 
city may by ordinance terminate the franchise in accordance with the procedures set 
forth in this section. Upon termination, all rights of the company shall immediately be 
divested without further act upon the part of the city. If the city requires the company 
to remove its facilities from the public rights-of-way, the company shall forthwith 
remove its structures or property from the public rights-of-way and restore it to the 
approximate original condition. Upon failure to do so, the city may perform the work 
and collect the cost thereof from the company. The cost thereof shall be a lien upon 
all facilities and property of the company.  

(c) Procedures for termination. 

(i) The city shall give written notice to the company of the existence of a material 
violation or failure to comply with the franchise. Company shall have a period of 
thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice from the city in which to cease such 
violation and comply with the terms and provisions hereof. In the event company 
fails to cease such violation or to otherwise comply with the terms hereof, then 
company's franchise is subject to termination under the following provisions. 
Provided, however, that, if the company commences work or other efforts to cure 
such violations within thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice and shall 
thereafter prosecute such curative work with reasonable diligence until such 



Page 10 of 13 

 

curative work is completed, then such violations shall cease to exist, and the 
franchise will not be terminated.  

(ii) Termination shall be declared only by a written decision of the city council after 
an appropriate public proceeding whereby the company is afforded the full 
opportunity to be heard and to respond to any such notice of violation or failure 
to comply. The company shall be provided at least ten (10) days prior written 
notice of any public hearing concerning the termination of the franchise. In 
addition, ten (10) day notice by publication shall be given of the date, time and 
place of any public hearing to interested members of the public, which notice shall 
be paid for by the company.  

(iii) The city, after full public hearing, and upon finding a material violation or failure 
to comply, may in its discretion terminate the franchise or excuse the violation or 
failure to comply upon a showing by the company of mitigating circumstances or 
upon a showing of good cause of said violation or failure to comply as may be 
determined by the city council. The failure of the company to comply with the 
terms of this franchise after due notice and hearing and the providing of adequate 
time for company to comply with said terms, shall entitle the city to compel 
compliance by suit in any court of competent jurisdiction and upon culmination of 
the suit, if the company still fails to comply with the terms of the franchise, the city 
may compel compliance upon penalty of forfeiture thereof, with the city having an 
option to purchase company's property located in the city at a reasonable fair 
value should forfeiture occur.  

(d) In the event the city purchases company's property under penalty of forfeiture and 
the city and company cannot agree upon the reasonable fair value of the property, 
then the reasonable fair value of the company's property shall be established by a 
majority vote of three appraisers with one appraiser selected by company, one 
appraiser selected by city, and one appraiser selected by the other two appraisers. If 
the two appraisers are unable to agree upon the third appraiser, then the third 
appraiser shall be selected by order of a court of competent jurisdiction. The company 
further agrees that if for any reason the company fails to pay the franchise fee as 
provided in this franchise within thirty (30) days following written notice from the city 
that company has failed to make such payment, such failure shall be sufficient to 
permit the city to forfeit the franchise without court action.  

Section 13. - Renegotiation.  

(a) Should technological, market-driven, regulatory, or similar changes occur in the 
natural gas industry which create classes or categories of usage different from those 
enumerated in section 1 of this ordinance, or should company alter the means, 
methods, or types of uses of the public rights-of-way in the city, or should the city 
reasonably believe that the franchise fee provision should be amended in order to not 
impair the city's ability to receive an adequate franchise fee pursuant to this 
ordinance, then the city may initiate the renegotiation of the franchise fee provision of 
this ordinance.  

(b) If, during the term of the franchise granted hereunder, the nature of competition in the 
provision of gas utility services in the city changes to the extent that company 



Page 11 of 13 

 

reasonably believes that the franchise fee provisions of this ordinance cause the 
company to be placed at a competitive disadvantage in the conduct of its business 
within the city, then the company may request the renegotiation of the franchise fee 
provisions of this ordinance.  

(c) Should either the city or the company request a change in the franchise fee provision 
of this ordinance, both parties agree to enter into a good faith negotiation. "Good 
faith," for the purpose of this ordinance, shall mean an objective, diligent, timely, and 
responsible discourse on the issue(s) involved and a resolute attempt to settle said 
issue(s). Should, as a result of renegotiation, city and company agree to a change in 
a provision of this ordinance, the change shall become effective upon passage of an 
ordinance by the city in accordance with the City Charter and acceptance of the 
amendment by the company. Both parties agree that passage and acceptance will 
be a mandatory act following negotiation and agreement. Company agrees to provide 
any and all information requested by city to assist in a determination of any changes 
in conditions, practices, or services provided by company through the use of the 
public rights-of-way of the city.  

Section 14. - Regulatory expenses.  

Company agrees that city may, at any time during the term of this franchise, 
employ at the expense of company expert assistance and advice in determining fair, just, 
and reasonable rates to be charged by company to its consumers in the city, and in 
determining the extent to which company is complying with the terms and conditions of 
this ordinance. Company agrees to pay reasonable expenses in connection therewith, or 
reimburse city for the same, which expense company shall be entitled to recover through 
its rates and tariffs.  

Section 15. - Acceptance.  

In order to accept this franchise, company must file its written acceptance of this 
franchise ordinance within forty-five (45) days after its final adoption by the city, in a form 
acceptable to the City Attorney’s office. If this franchise ordinance is not accepted by 
company within forty-five (45) days, the franchise ordinance shall be rendered null and 
void.  

Section 16. - Assignment or transfer.  

Company may not assign or transfer this franchise, and the rights granted thereby, 
to any entity without the prior consent and approval of the city given by written resolution, 
which consent and approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

Section 17. Notices. 

Every notice, order, petition, documents or other direction or communication to be 
served upon the City or the Company shall be deemed sufficiently given if sent by 
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested.  Every such communication to the 
Company shall be sent to: 

 



Page 12 of 13 

 

SiEnergy, L.P. 
June M. Dively, Chief Executive Officer  
3 Lakeway Centre Court, Suite 110 
Lakeway, TX 78734 

Every such communication to the City or the City Council shall be sent to the:  
 

Mayor, City of Rosenberg 
2110 4th Street 
P.O. Box 32 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471 
 

With copies to:  
 
City Manager 
2110 4th Street 
P.O. Box 32 
Rosenberg, Texas 77471 

 

Section 18. Severability. 

If any provision, section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this Franchise 
is for any reason held to be unconstitutional, void, or invalid or for any reason 
unenforceable, the validity of the remaining portions of this Franchise shall not be affected 
thereby, it being the intent the City of Rosenberg, in adopting this Franchise, that no 
portion hereof or provision hereof shall become inoperative or fail by reason of any 
unconstitutionality or invalidity of any other portion, provision or regulation and, to this 
end, all provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 

Section 19. Repeal. 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in force when the provisions of this Ordinance 
becomes effective which are inconsistent or in conflict with the terms and provisions 
contained in this Ordinance are hereby repealed only to the extent of such conflict.   

Section 20.  Governmental Function. 

All of the regulations and activities required by this Franchise are hereby 
declared to be governmental and for the health, safety and welfare of the general public. 

Section 21.  Effective date.  

This franchise shall be effective sixty days after its adoption on its third reading 
within thirty days of its first reading, and further conditional upon receipt by the city of 
company's acceptance, as provided in section 15 herein, and upon all other conditions 
as provided by the City Charter, as applicable. 

  
 



Page 13 of 13 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of six (6) “ayes” in favor and zero (0) “noes” 

against on this first reading in full compliance with the provisions of Section 3.10 and 

Section 12.03 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the 17th day of March 2015. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of ________ “ayes” in favor and ________ 

“noes” against on this second reading in full compliance with the provisions of Section 

3.10 and Section 12.03 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the ________ day of 

________________ 2015. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a vote of _______ “ayes” in favor and _______ 

“noes” against on this third and final reading in full compliance with the provisions of 

Section 3.10 and Section 12.03 of the Charter of the City of Rosenberg on the _______ 

day of ________________ 2015. 

 

ATTEST:     APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
             
George Hyde, City Attorney 
Denton Navarro Rocha Bernal Hyde & Zech, P.C. 



 

  Page 1 

Sec. 12.03. - Procedure for passing franchise ordinances.  

The City of Rosenberg shall have the power by ordinance to grant any franchise or right mentioned in 
the preceding sections hereof, which ordinance shall not be passed finally until its third and final reading, 
said ordinances shall be read at three separate regular meetings of the city council of the City of Rosenberg, 
the last of which shall take place not less than thirty days from the first. No ordinance granting a franchise 
shall pass any reading except by a vote of the majority of the city council, and such ordinance shall not take 
effect until sixty days after its adoption on its third and final reading; provided, however, that if at any time 
before such ordinance shall finally take effect, a petition shall be presented to the city council signed by not 
less than twenty percent of the voters voting at the last regular municipal election but in no event less than 
one hundred fifty of the bona fide qualified voters of the city, then the city council shall submit the question 
of the granting of said franchise to a vote of the qualified voters of the City of Rosenberg at the next 
succeeding regular municipal election to be held in said city; provided that notice thereof shall be published 
over a period of at least twenty-one days in a newspaper of general circulation published in the City of 
Rosenberg, prior to the holding of said election. Ballots shall be used, briefly describing the franchise to be 
voted on and the terms thereof and containing the words, "For the granting of a franchise," and, "Against 
the granting of a franchise." The votes shall be canvassed by the city council, and should it result in a 
majority of those voting thereon casting their votes "For the granting of a franchise," then by order entered 
in its minutes, the city council shall so declare and said franchise shall at once take effect. But should a 
majority of such votes be cast "Against the granting of a franchise," as ascertained by the city council, then 
said city council by order entered in its minutes shall so declare and such franchise shall not take effect. In 
case a franchise is refused by the city council, then the matter may be submitted to the qualified voters on 
petition, as hereinbefore provided, and a failure to finally pass on an application within twelve months after 
the filing of such application, shall be construed as a refusal. The city council in passing an ordinance 
granting a franchise may provide therein that it shall not take effect until the same shall have been submitted 
to and approved by a majority of the qualified voters voting thereon at a regular municipal election. All 
expenses of publication shall be borne by the applicant for the franchise, who shall make a deposit in 
advance to cover the estimated cost of publication, to be determined by the city manager.  

(Ord. No. 60-4, § 21, 9-6-60; Ord. No. 85-8, § 21, 6-18-85)  

sherrin
Rectangle

reneel
Text Box
CITY OF ROSENBERG CODE OF ORDINANCES EXCERPTPART I - THE CHARTERARTICLE XII. - FRANCHISES AND PUBLIC UTILITIES



KMTP
Meter

Station

Century
Asphalt

Plant

£¤90A

öõ529

@A1640

RUBY

WALNUT

D

BLUME

H

BAKER

VERA CRUZ

WA LGER

WE
ST

TEXAS

GULF

DYER

M

G

WI
LL

OW

ELM

H

OA
K

REINHARD

BAMORE

WILBURN

M

DYE R

L

J

JAMES

K

I

DALLAS

L

ALLEN

GEORGE

FROST

ALLEN
JAM E S

ALLEN

FROST
WEST

CANDLER

SAN
ANTONIO

JUNCTION
SANTA

FE
HARRISBURG

DAM ASCUS

E

MOORE BAR

KROESCHE

MATAMOROS

H

VERA CRUZ

BLACKWOOD

PRAIRIE

RUDE

EASY
MATAMOROS

JEFFERSON

WASHINGTON

HUNTINGTON

GRUNWALD
HEIGHTS

MEBANE

BROOKS

MAGNOLIA
SOUTHGATE

KLARE

36TH DIVISIONMEMORIAL HWY

SCOTT

WA
LS

H

JUNKER

MUEGGE

CE
CI

L
RO

BI
NO

W
IT

Z

¬«36

1 Inch = 1,200 Feet

1:14,400

SíEnergy Gas Distribution Pipeline
City of Rosenberg, Texas

Scale:

or

0 600 1,200
Feet

Pipeline
Interstate
US Highway
State Highway/FM
Public Road
Private Road
Rosenberg City Limits
Rosenberg ETJ

This product is for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable 
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of geographic features.

Created by: City of Rosenberg GIS - Cory Vardaman
Date Created: March 09, 2015
Original Size: 11" x 17"
K:\GIS\MAPS\Utilities\2015\SiEnergy_Pipeline_11x17_2015Mar09.mxd

Å

Û

N

S

EW

The pipeline location depicted is based off GIS data from the
Railroad Commission of Texas (RRC).  The data has been
cross checked with information provided by SiEnergy to

insure that it shows the approximate location and layout of
the pipeline (appropriate to the map scale).



Page 10 of 12 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * MARCH 17, 2015
***DRAFT***

Executive Summary: Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) requests are being 
accepted by Fort Bend County Community Development for the HUD program year 2015.  Staff 
is requesting City Council’s approval to pursue the construction and completion of water line 
infrastructure improvements to serve the north side of Rosenberg.  This proposed project will be 
Phase III of a water infrastructure project originally approved by CDBG for funding in 2005 to 
improve potable water service to the north side of Rosenberg.  This rehabilitation project will offer 
relief of a long-standing deficiency in the City’s infrastructure. The project must be located within 
a designated area that meets the low to moderate income level criteria based on the 2010 
Census data.

The application will include a request for CDBG funding for approximately $300,000.00. The 
application will indicate a proposed local match of 10% for construction contingency and the 
City will pay for engineering. If the application is approved for funding, the local matching funds 
would be included in a future budget. Requests must be submitted no later than March 20, 2015. 
Staff recommends approval of the project application submission as proposed in Resolution No. 
R-1936.

Key Discussion Points: John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services read the Executive 
Summary. The general consensus of Council was that this is a worthwhile improvement project.

Action: Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor Grigar to approve Resolution 
No. R-1936, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute and submit an application to 
the Community Development Block Grant Fund for North Rosenberg Water Distribution 
Improvements - Phase III for approximately $300,000.00. The motion carried by a unanimous vote
of those present.

5. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON A FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE 2015-10, AN ORDINANCE 
GRANTING TO SIENERGY, L.P., A FRANCHISE TO FURNISH AND SUPPLY GAS TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC 
IN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, FORT BEND COUNTY, TEXAS, FOR THE TRANSPORTING, DELIVERY, SALE, 
AND DISTRIBUTION OF GAS IN, OUT OF, AND THROUGH SAID MUNICIPALITY FOR ALL PURPOSES; 
PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT OF A FEE OR CHARGE FOR THE USE OF THE STREETS, ALLEYS, AND 
PUBLIC WAYS; REQUIRING COMPLIANCE WITH ALL REGULATORY ORDINANCES OF THE CITY; AND 
PROVIDING FOR ALL OTHER PROVISIONS RELATED TO THE SUBJECT MATTER HEREOF. 
Executive Summary: It was recently determined that SiEnergy, L.P., is providing natural gas service 
to areas that are now located within a portion of the Rosenberg city limits. Therefore, SiEnergy, 
L.P., is required to obtain a franchise agreement from the City. In accordance with Article XII of 
the City Charter, the City Attorney has prepared Ordinance No. 2015-10 which will grant said 
franchise to furnish and supply gas to the general public.

Article XII, Section 12.03 of the City Charter identifies specific procedures for approval of franchise 
ordinances which are summarized below:

� Ordinances shall not be passed finally until its third and final reading
� Ordinances shall be read at three separate regular meetings of the City Council, the last 

of which shall take place not less than thirty days from the first
� No ordinance granting a franchise shall pass any reading except by a vote of the majority 

of the City Council
� Ordinances shall not take effect until sixty days after its adoption on its third and final 

reading
� Any time before the ordinance shall finally take effect, a petition can be presented to the 

City Council signed by not less than twenty percent of the voters voting at the last regular 
municipal election, but in no event less than one hundred fifty bona fide qualified voters, 
requiring the City Council submit the question of granting said franchise to a vote of the 
qualified voters of the City

SiEnergy, L.P., has reviewed the Ordinance and has no objections to any of the terms.  Staff 
recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2015-10 as presented.

reneel
Rectangle



Page 11 of 12 * REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES * MARCH 17, 2015
***DRAFT***

Key Discussion Points: John Maresh read the Executive Summary and gave an overview of the 
item.

Action: Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor McConathy to approve the 
first reading of Ordinance 2015-10, an Ordinance granting to SiEnergy, L.P., a franchise to furnish 
and supply gas to the general public in the City of Rosenberg, Fort Bend County, Texas, for the 
transporting, delivery, sale, and distribution of gas in, out of, and through said Municipality for all 
purposes; providing for the payment of a fee or charge for the use of the streets, alleys, and 
public ways; requiring compliance with all regulatory ordinances of the City; and providing for all 
other provisions related to the subject matter hereof. The motion carried by a unanimous vote of 
those present.

6. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1940, A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY ENGINEER TO EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY, THE ANNUAL REPORT FOR THE CITY 
OF ROSENBERG’S STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN UNDER TPDES GENERAL PERMIT NO. 
TXR040272 TO REGULATE STORM WATER DISCHARGES FOR SMALL MUNICIPAL SEPARATE SEWER 
SYSTEMS (MS4) UNDER TPDES PHASE II MS4 GENERAL PERMIT (TXR040272). 
Executive Summary: The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) originally adopted 
the General Permit TXR040000 for the regulation of storm water discharges.  Authorized by the 
Clean Water Act, Phase I regulations were in place for cities with a population in excess of 
100,000.  The Phase II General Permit for smaller cities located in Urbanized Areas was approved 
in November 2007.

The majority of the City of Rosenberg (City) lies within the Houston Urbanized Area as originally 
determined by the 2000 Census; therefore, the City has been identified as a Small Municipal 
Separate Sewer System (MS4), and complies with the requirements of the Clean Water Act by 
filing the General Permit.

The City submitted the Notice of Intent and the Storm Water Management Plan to the TCEQ in 
February 2008.  For the past six (6) years, staff presented the Annual Report for the year, and 
authorized the City Engineer to execute the report and file it.

This is the seventh annual report.  This is the first report filed under the revised General Permit 
issued by the TCEQ.  

The revised General Permit requires that the City submit an Annual Report of activities for the 
reporting period of August 13, 2013 to December 31, 2014.  This Agenda item will allow staff to 
update City Council on the status of the Permit and review the activities for this year.  The Annual 
Report has been included in the agenda packet as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. R-1940.  

Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1940 which accepts the Annual Report and 
authorizes the City Engineer to execute the Annual Report under TPDES General Permit No. 
TXR040272 to regulate storm water discharges.

Key Discussion Points: Charles Kalkomey, City Engineer gave an overview of the Item.

Action: Councilor Benton made a motion, seconded by Councilor McConathy to approve
Resolution No. R-1940, a Resolution authorizing the City Engineer to execute, for and on behalf of 
the City, the Annual Report for the City of Rosenberg’s Storm Water Management Plan under 
TPDES General Permit No. TXR040272 to regulate storm water discharges for Small Municipal 
Separate Sewer Systems (MS4) under TPDES Phase II MS4 General Permit (TXR040272). The motion 
carried by a unanimous vote of those present.

7. CONSIDERATION OF AND ACTION ON RESOLUTION NO. R-1943, A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF A 
PROPOSED SENIOR HOUSING DEVELOPMENT BY CAMPANILE AT SEABOURNE CREEK LP. 
Executive Summary: As discussed at the February 24, 2015 City Council Workshop Meeting, Les 
Kilday of Campanile at Seabourne Creek LP, has proposed a senior, multi-family development, 
Campanile at Seabourne Creek, to be located off of Reese Road between I-69 and FM 2218.  A
vicinity map is included in the agenda packet for reference.  The property consists of 

reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 07, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

6 
Resolution No. R-1945 - Awarding Bid No. 2015-08 for Tree Trimming 
Services  

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1945, a Resolution awarding Bid No. 2015-08 for Tree 
Trimming Services; and, authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the 
City, a General Services Contract related thereto and all necessary documentation regarding same. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[ X] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[ X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:    

101-5022-530-6240 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Bid Summary Form 
2. Proposal  
3. Resolution No. R-1945 
4. Bid No. 2015-08 – Bid Documents and Technical Specifications  
5. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 01-27-15 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[X] Director of Public Works 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On Wednesday, March 18, 2015, bids were received and opened for Bid No. 2015-08 for the Tree 
Trimming Services Contract in Council District No. 4.  The City received three (3) bids, the lowest from Bio 
Landscape and Maintenance, Inc., in the amount of $19,250.00.  The prices that Bio Landscape and 
Maintenance, Inc., submitted were compared to previous tree trimming done by various vendors for the 
City and found to be favorable.  References were checked and found to be acceptable.   
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1945 which will award Bid No. 2015-08 and provide 
authorization for the City Manager to negotiate and execute all required documents necessary to facilitate 
the Agreement.  Should City Council award Bid No. 2015-08 as recommended, the proposal will be 
attached to Resolution No. R-1945 to serve as Exhibit “A”. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
BID NO. 

 
COMPANY 

 
TOTAL BASE 

BID 

 
CALENDAR 

DAYS 
 

1.  
 

Bio Landscape & Maintenance 
9570 S. Sam Houston Parkway West 
Houston, Texas  77071 
 

$19,250 May 1, thru 
September 30, 

2015 

2.  
 

Arbor Care Inc. 
336 McFarland 
Houston, Texas  77060 
 

$34,452 
 

May 1, thru 
September 30, 

2015 
 

3.  
 

Shawnee Trees 
3330 Schlipf 
Katy, Texas  77493 
 

$47,975 
 

May 1, thru 
September 30, 

2015 
 
 

 
BID SUMMARY 
Bid No. 2015-08 

Tree Trimming Services Contract – District 4 



















 
RESOLUTION NO. R-1945 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AWARDING BID NO. 2015-08 FOR TREE 
TRIMMING SERVICES CONTRACT; AND, AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF 
OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, APPROPRIATE 
DOCUMENTS AND/OR AGREEMENTS REGARDING SAME. 

 
*  *  *  *  * 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 

Section 1. The approval and award of Bid No. 2015-08 to 

_________________________________, in the amount of $____________ for a Tree 

Trimming Services Contract in Council District No. 4. 

Section 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to negotiate and execute 

any documentation necessary to facilitate said project. 

Section 3.   A copy of the Proposal is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made 

a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015.  

ATTEST:      APPROVED: 

 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, TRMC, City Secretary  Vincent M. Morales, Jr., Mayor 
 

































































PAGE 2 of 6 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 27, 2015

Key discussion points:
� Councilor Benton gave a brief overview of the item.
� Scott Tschirhart, City Attorney, advised of several options to consider in order to make 

non-compliance more enforceable.
� After discussion by Council, the following recommendations were made:

O Modify definition of junk vehicle to make it more strict and consistent with State 
Transportation Code.

O Reduce 30 days inoperable requirement (on private property) to 15 days.
O Declare a violation of the ordinance as a Class C Misdemeanor.
O Clean up “public view” in Section 14-113 to “visible from a public street” or the 

like.
O Remove Occupied Premise vs. Unoccupied Premise language.
O Include a provision regarding appellate process in Section 14-117 to offset 

finality of disposal of junk vehicle.
O Modify language in Section 14-118 to define that disposal of junk vehicle would 

occur at owner’s expense.
Questions/Comments:

Tonya Palmer, Building Official, addressed the following questions:
Q: What issues are you having to enforce this?
A: There are two components required for definition of junk vehicle: (1) expired inspection 
sticker or registration, and (2) it must be wrecked, dismantled, or inoperable. In many cases, 
someone complains, but upon contact with the property owner, it is proven to be operable 
and so the case is then closed.
Q: Who is the burden of proof on to determine if the vehicle has remained inoperable for 
more than 72 hours?
A: Burden of proof would fall on Code Enforcement, starting with the date of the first 
contact as a result of a complaint being filed.
Q: When the state changes the registration and inspection to one tag, how will this 
ordinance be affected?
A: That is why we need to make it comply with the current Texas Transportation Code
and/or change the restrictions on the definition of a junk vehicle to make it more 
enforceable.
Q: Would reducing 30 days inoperable to 15 days make a difference as well?
A: It would help as far as the time period to enforce it, and get a faster resolution.
� The general consensus of Council was for the City Attorney to a draft ordinance in 

redline fashion, including the suggestions for Council to review at the Regular Council 
Meeting on February 17, 2015.

� No action was taken on the item.

2. REVIEW AND DISCUSS THE FY2015 STREET RIGHT-OF-WAY TREE TRIMMING CONTRACT, AND TAKE 
ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: This item has been included on the Workshop Agenda to offer City Council 
the opportunity to discuss the FY2015 Street Right-of-Way Tree Trimming Contract. Prior to 
FY2010, the Public Works Department budget included sufficient funding to enter into an 
annual tree trimming contract that would generally cover a complete Council District. This 
allowed the City to trim trees throughout the entire City over a four year period.  Prior to the 
FY2010 budget reductions, Council District 4 was the next in line for tree trimming.  

Staff anticipates relatively few changes to the program that was provided until FY2010.  The 
street and tree list will be updated to reflect the current City Council District boundaries, which 
have changed since 2010.

Staff recommends obtaining bids for the FY2015 Street Right-of-Way Tree Trimming Contract as 
described above. The bid proposal would be placed on a future City Council meeting Agenda 
for consideration and award.

reneel
Rectangle



PAGE 3 of 6 * CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING MINUTES * JANUARY 27, 2015

Key discussion points:
� John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services read the Executive Summary

regarding the FY2015 Street Right-Of-Way tree trimming contract.

Questions/Comments:
C: A lot of street lights are hindered by the overgrowth of tree limbs. This would be a valuable 
program to keep our streets well lit. Current procedure is reactive to complaints versus 
proactive to avoid complaints, non-compliance, and liability.
Q: Has there been talk about waste removal and recycling of tree limbs?
A: We will have to discuss this with the contractor, and see if we would have a space to store a 
stockpile for residents to use for their fireplaces if they desire.
Q: Since five months is enough time for this contractor to address the trees in a given district,
then could a second district be taken care of in the same year?
A: That is possible, but we would still need to discuss this with the contractors to determine the 
amount of time needed and analyze the available funding.
Q: Is the clearance of 12’ and 15’ feet in the technical specifications established by the 
Uniform Traffic Code, or is that a clearance that we set?
A: There is a minimum clearance amount, but we are trying to go a little bit higher to elongate 
the effectiveness of the program.

� The general consensus of Council was to go out for bid, but not ask the contractor to 
provide wood and debris for public consumption, as most companies recycle the 
product internally through mulch or firewood in order to keep their costs down, resulting 
in a lower bid.

� No action was taken on the item.

3. REVIEW AND DISCUSS PROPOSED TRAFFIC CALMING SPEED HUMP INSTALLATION AND REMOVAL
POLICY AND PROCEDURES, AND TAKE ACTION AS NECESSARY TO DIRECT STAFF. 
Executive Summary: This item has been added to the Agenda to allow City Council the 
opportunity to review and discuss the proposed speed hump installation and removal policy 
and procedures.

Based on previous direction from City Council, staff has prepared policies and procedures 
regarding installation and removal of speed humps. Key points of the policy include:

� Speed hump installation request process
� Criteria to determine if a street is eligible for consideration of speed hump installation
� Notification/evidence of support criteria for property owners along segments of streets 

under consideration
� Speed hump location criteria
� Funding criteria
� Speed hump removal request process
� Design  standards, construction and maintenance criteria
� Standardized forms

The policy includes a step-by-step procedure that defines the process beginning with the initial 
request from a citizen, all the way through the review and final determination that may, or may 
not, support the installation of speed humps based on criteria that will be applied equally to all 
requests.     

Should City Council direct staff to move forward, the Speed Hump Policies and Procedures will 
be placed on a future City Council Agenda for action.  

Key discussion points:
� John Maresh, Assistant City Manager of Public Services presented the proposed Traffic 

Calming Speed Hump Installation and Removal Policy and Procedures.
� After discussion by Council, the following changes were requested:

o Add or modify the form to require both the renter and the landlord to sign the 
form.

reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 07, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

7 
Resolution No. R-1946 – Amended and Restated Agreement Relating to 
the Temporary Assignment of Rights and Obligations under Water 
Supply Contract 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration and action on Resolution No. R-1946, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
negotiate and execute, for and on behalf of the City, an Amended and Restated Agreement Relating to the 
Temporary Assignment of Rights and Obligations under Water Supply Contract, by and between the City 
and the Gulf Coast Water Authority. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[X] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:    

Revenue 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[X] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Resolution No. R-1946  
2. Langford Correspondence – 03-11-15  
3. Resolution No. R-1749 – 02-04-14 
4. Resolution No. R-1617 – 02-19-13 
5. Resolution No. R-1479 – 05-01-12 
6. Resolution No. R-1326 – 06-07-11 
7. Resolution No. R-1311 – 04-19-11 
8. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 02-04-14 
9. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 02-19-13 
10. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 05-01-12 
11. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 06-07-11 
12. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 04-19-11 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   
 
 
 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Beginning in 2011, City Council has annually approved a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute an Agreement to assign a portion of the City’s contracted Brazos River Authority (BRA) raw 
surface water supply to the Gulf Coast Water Authority (GCWA) at the same rate paid to the BRA. The 
assignment is subject to BRA consent on an annual basis.    
 
The City’s contracted allocation of BRA raw surface water is four thousand five hundred (4,500) acre feet 
annually. The Agreement under consideration provides for consent to assign the full four thousand five 
hundred (4,500) acre feet on an annual basis, for the remainder of the BRA contract term which expires 
August 31, 2050. Section 6 of the Agreement allows either party to terminate the Agreement on December 
31 of any year, provided a one-hundred twenty (120) day prior written notice is given to the other party. 
This provision is important as the City will retain the option to change its course regarding use of the BRA 



contracted water when the Brazosport Water Authority (BWA) surface water supply project begins to 
deliver water.       
 
Per the Agreement, GCWA is required to pay or reimburse the City for the assigned water at the same 
rate charged by the BRA. For FY2015 the BRA rate is $69.50/acre foot for a total of $312,750.00. By 
assigning the raw surface water allocation to GCWA, the City will be able to recoup this full amount. These 
dollars will be placed back into the Subsidence (GRP) Fund to help cover expenses for the City’s 
alternative water supply internal capital projects currently under design/construction and the BWA Water 
Supply Agreement which are all necessary to comply with the Fort Bend Subsidence District unfunded 
mandate to reduce groundwater withdrawals by thirty percent (30%) in 2016. 
 
The Agreement has been reviewed by Attorney Patrick Lindner, serving as Special Counsel regarding 
water related projects. Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1946, with the Agreement attached 
as Exhibit “A”, as presented. If approved by City Council, the formal Consent Agreement for year 2015 will 
be placed on a future Agenda for consideration, subject to BRA consent.  
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1946 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
NEGOTIATE AND EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AN AMENDED AND RESTATED AGREEMENT 
RELATING TO THE TEMPORARY ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHTS AND 
OBLIGATIONS UNDER WATER SUPPLY CONTRACT, BY AND 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND GULF COAST 
WATER AUTHORITY. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 

WHEREAS, the City has received a request for the assignment of certain Brazos 
River Authority water allocations from the Gulf Coast Water Authority due to additional 
needs; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City approved Resolution No. R-1311 on April 19, 2011, 

Resolution No. R-1326 on June 07, 2011, Resolution No. R-1479 on May 01, 2012, 
Resolution No. R-1617 on February 19, 2013, and Resolution No. R-1749 on February 
02, 2014, authorizing assignment of a portion of the City’s allocation of Brazos River 
Authority water supply; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City currently has a surplus allocation of surface water available 

from the Brazos River Authority for year 2015 and future years; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to negotiate and execute an 

Amended and Restated Agreement Relating to the Temporary Assignment of Rights 

and Obligations under Water Supply Contract (Agreement), by and between the City of 

Rosenberg, Texas, and Gulf Coast Water Authority.   

Section 2. A copy of such Agreement is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 

made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 
 



Amended and Restated Agreement 
Relating to the Temporary Assignment of Rights and Obligations 

under Water Supply Contract 
 
This Amended and Restated Agreement Relating to Temporary Assignment of Rights and 
Obligations under Water Supply Contract (the “Agreement”) is entered into effective as of 
the ____ day of _____, 2015 (the “Effective Date”), between the City of Rosenberg, Texas 
(the “City”), a Home Rule City located in Ft. Bend County, Texas, and the Gulf Coast 
Water Authority (“GCWA”), a Texas conservation and reclamation district located in 
Galveston County, Texas. 
 

RECITALS 
 
The City and GCWA previously entered into an Agreement Relating to the Temporary 
Assignment of Rights and Obligations under Water Supply Contract on the 1st day of May, 
2011.  Said prior agreement expired December 31, 2014.  Both parties desire to renew 
and continue said agreement subject to the terms set forth herein in this Agreement. 
 
City has entered into a “System Water Availability Agreement” with the Brazos River 
Authority (the "BRA Contract"), a true and correct copy of which has been delivered to 
GCWA and by reference is incorporated into this Agreement for all purposes.  
 
City has determined that portions of the water supply under the BRA Contract is currently 
in excess of the City's water supply needs.  
 
GCWA is willing to use and pay for the water available to City under the BRA Contract 
that is temporarily in excess of the City's needs.  
 

AGREEMENT 
 
The City and GCWA agree as follows:  
 
1. This agreement is subject to:  
 
a. the City and GCWA obtaining and maintaining any and all required consents and 
approvals from the Brazos River Authority, including but not limited to the initial consent 
for the year 2015 and consent for each annual period thereafter during the term of this 
Agreement, if required by the BRA thereafter. City and GCWA agree to cooperate with 
the other in obtaining such consents and approvals, but GCWA shall have the primary 
burden of obtaining and maintaining such consents. If such consents and approvals for 
each subsequent year are not obtained by November 1st preceding the start of the next 
calendar year, either party may partially suspend this Agreement as to such year by 
written notice of intent to partially cancel delivered at least thirty days before the 
intended partial cancellation date.  It is contemplated that additional terms that have 
been negotiated between the BRA and GCWA will be added by amendment to the BRA 
Contract after assignment.  The GCWA has requested and the BRA has agreed in 

reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1946



principle to the following terms: 

1.  water made available may be used for industrial use in addition to municipal 
use;  

2.  water made available may be used in the San Jacinto-Brazos Coastal Basin 
in accordance with and to the extent permitted by BRA's Certificate of 
Adjudication No. 12-5167; and 

3.  GCWA Briscoe and Juliff Pump Stations will be added as diversion points in 
addition to GCWA American Pump Station.  

The final language and form of the amendment shall be subject to BRA's discretion.  

Any amendment to the BRA Contract that GCWA and BRA may agree to shall be in effect 
only so long as this Agreement remains in effect.   

 
b. GCWA obtaining any other federal 'and state regulatory approvals required for GCWA 
to divert and use the water made available to GCWA under this Agreement.  
 
2. During the term of this Agreement, City assigns to GCWA the City's right to receive 
water from BRA under the BRA Contract up to the following amounts for each year ending 
Aug. 31 this Agreement remains in effect as shown on Exhibit A hereto. 
 
3. During the term of this Agreement, GCWA assumes City's obligations under the BRA 
Contract proportionate to the volume of water that GCWA is allowed to use under this 
Agreement.  
 
4. GCWA will make the following payments under this Agreement for years in which BRA 
consents to assignment as provided by Section 1.a. above:  
 

a. Pay, or reimburse City, as appropriate, amounts due to the BRA under the BRA 
Contract for the volume of water that GCWA is allowed to use under this 
Agreement and such payments shall be made to the City for payment to the BRA.  
 
b. Pay City a $1,000.00 lump sum annual payment in the first month of each 
calendar year that this Agreement is effective to allow GCWA to receive water 
under the BRA Contract, as consideration for the rights assigned under this 
Agreement, such payment being due without demand or invoice.  
 
c. Pay City, within thirty calendar days of demand, any expenses incurred by City 
in obtaining the consents required by BRA, filing water use reports with BRA for 
water used by GCWA under this Agreement and curing any breach of the BRA 
Contract relating in whole or in part to actions, or failure to act, of the GCWA under 
this Agreement  

 



5. City represents that it is currently not in default under the BRA Contract and has not 
received any notice of default under the BRA Contract. City and GCWA agree to 
immediately transmit to each other any notice of default received from BRA relating to the 
BRA Contract. Subject to Section 7 below, if City or GCWA receives a notice of default 
that is based, in whole or in part, relating to an alleged breach of the BRA Contract based 
upon the actions, or failure to act, of either party, the non - defaulting party may terminate 
this Agreement upon thirty days written notice to the defaulting party.  
 
6. This Agreement shall terminate at midnight on December 31, of any year hereafter, if 
either party provides one hundred and twenty (120) days prior written notice of 
termination; otherwise, this Agreement will remain in effect for the term of the BRA 
Contract. To the extent GCWA has incurred any obligation to BRA or to City under this 
Agreement that is not fully satisfied as of the date of termination, the applicable portions 
of this Agreement shall survive such termination until GCWA satisfies the obligation.  
 
7. If City or GCWA asserts that either has breached this Agreement, or the BRA Contract, 
the party asserting the breach shall give notice of the alleged breach to the other party 
and the other party has ten business days to cure the alleged breach, if any.  
 
8. General Provisions:  
 
8.1, Force Majeure. If either party is rendered unable, by Force Majeure, to carry out any 
of its obligations under this Agreement, it is agreed that upon that party's giving written 
notice of the Force Majeure to the other party as soon as possible after the occurrence of 
the Force Majeure, the obligations of the party giving the notice, to the extent it is affected 
by Force Majeure and to the extent that due diligence is being used to resume 
performance, will be suspended for the duration of the Force Majeure. The term "Force 
Majeure" as used in this Agreement includes, but is not limited to, acts of God, acts of the 
public enemy, epidemics, explosions, breakage or damage to machinery, pipelines, and 
any other inabilities of either party not within the control of the party claiming the inability, 
which by exercise of due diligence and care the party could not have avoided.  
 
8.2. Assignability. Neither party may assign this Agreement without the prior written 
consent of the other party.  
 
8.3. Notice. All notices required under this Agreement must be in writing and sent by 
United States mail, private mail or courier service, by facsimile or be delivered in person. 
All notices must be sent or delivered to the following addresses or as the City or the 
GCWA may hereafter designate by written notice:  
 

If to the City:  
 

City of Rosenberg 
Attn: City Manager  
PO Box 32 
2110 Fourth Street 



Rosenberg, Texas 77471  
 
If to the GCWA:  
 

Gulf Coast Water Authority  
Attn: General Manager  
3630 FM 1765  
Texas City, Texas 77591  

 
8.4 Waiver. The failure of a party to insist upon strict performance of any provision of this 
Agreement will not constitute a waiver of or estoppel against the party asserting the right 
to require that performance in the future, nor will a waiver or estoppel in any one instance 
constitute a waiver or estoppel with respect to a future breach.  
 
8.5. Parties in interest. This Agreement is for the sole and exclusive benefit of the City 
and the GCWA and will not be construed to confer any benefit or right upon any other 
person.  
 
8.6. Severability. If a court finds or rules that any part of this Agreement is invalid or 
unlawful, the remainder of the Agreement continues to be binding on the parties.  
 
8.7. Law Governing and Venue. Texas law governs this Agreement and any lawsuit on 
this Agreement must be filed in a court that has jurisdiction in Fort Bend County, Texas.  
 
8.8. Mandatory Mediation. Prior to either party filing suit, the parties will submit to non-
binding mediation in Fort Bend County, Texas. The complaining party will notify the non-
complaining party of its demand hereunder and notice will be delivered by certified mail, 
return receipt requested, or receipted delivery to the address set forth above. If the 
mediation is not conducted and completed within 80 business days of the non - 
complaining party's actual receipt of such notice, this Section is deemed void and is of no 
force or effect. The parties agree (1) to work in good faith to select a mutually agreeable 
mediator, date, time and place and (2) to conduct the mediation negotiations in good faith. 
Unless agreed to the contrary in a writing signed by both, the parties agree to share 
equally in the cost of any mediation or mediator's fees, but otherwise bear their own 
respective mediation expenses, including legal fees. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if it 
is necessary for a party to seek emergency relief of an extraordinary nature, pre -suit 
mediation need not be conducted.  
 
8.9 Entire Agreement. This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the City 
and the GCWA and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or contracts, either 
written or oral. This Agreement may be amended only by written instrument signed by 
both parties.  
 
8.10 Counterpart Originals. This Agreement may be executed in as many counterparts 
as may be required; and it shall not be necessary that the signatures of, or on behalf of, 
each party, or that the signatures of all persons required to bind any party, appear on 



each counterpart; but it shall be sufficient that the signature of, or on behalf of, each party, 
or that the signatures of the persons required to bind any party, appear on one or more 
of the counterparts. All counterparts shall collectively constitute a single agreement, 
Signatures provided by a confirmed telecopy shall be accepted as originals.  
 
 
 
  



CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS  
 
 
By: _________________________ 
Robert Gracia, City Manager 
 
_________________________ 
Date  
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________ 
Linda Cernosek, City Secretary  
 
 
 
GULF COAST WATER AUTHORITY 
 
 
By: _______________________ 
Ivan Langford, General Manager  
 
 
_________________________ 
Date 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________ 
Renee Dondonay, Admin Assist. 
  



EXHIBIT A 
 

ACRE_FEET PER YEAR 
 

Year Ending Aug. 31  Amount in Acre-Feet 
 
2015                                                        4,500 
2016                                                        4,500 
2017                                                        4,500 
2018                                                        4,500 
2019                                                        4,500 
2020                                                        4,500 
2021                                                        4,500 
2022                                                        4,500 
2023                                                        4,500 
2024                                                        4,500 
2025                                                        4,500 
2026                                                        4,500 
2027                                                        4,500 
2028                                                        4,500 
2029                                                        4,500 
2030                                                        4,500 
2031                                                        4,500 
2032                                                        4,500 
2033                                                        4,500 
2034                                                        4,500 
2035                                                        4,500 
2036                                                        4,500 
2037                                                        4,500 
2038                                                        4,500 
2039                                                        4,500 
2040                                                        4,500 
2041                                                        4,500 
2042                                                        4,500 
2043                                                        4,500 
2045                                                        4,500 
2046                                                        4,500 
2047                                                        4,500 
2048                                                        4,500 
2049                                                        4,500 
2050                                                        4,500 

 











































reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 07, 2015 
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

8 
Resolution No. R-1947 - Waiving Option to Cancel Water Supply 
Agreement with Brazosport Water Authority 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1947, a Resolution relating to the Water Supply 
Agreement, by and between the City and the Brazosport Water Authority. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[   ] One-time 
[X] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[   ] Yes  [   ] No  [X] N/A 

Source of Funds:    

 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

 
1. Resolution No. R-1947 
2. Timetable – Brazosport Water Authority Water Supply System Regional Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 
3. Resolution No. R-1919 – 02-03-15 
4. Resolution No. R-1884 – 12-02-14 
5. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 02-03-15 
6. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 12-02-14 
 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[   ] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

On December 02, 2014, City Council authorized the Mayor to execute a Water Supply Agreement 
(Agreement) with the Brazosport Water Authority (BWA) as required by the amended Groundwater 
Reduction Plan (GRP). The Agreement provides a mechanism allowing for compliance with the Fort Bend 
Subsidence District  unfunded mandate  to reduce groundwater withdrawals by 30% beginning October 01, 
2016, by constructing a pipeline supplying treated surface water to the City. Subsequently on February 03, 
2015, City Council authorized the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement, allowing the City 
to exercise the option to acquire an additional 2.7 million gallons of treated surface water per day. 
 
Section 1.1 of the Agreement includes a provision that allows the City to terminate said Agreement if BWA 
was unable to secure the issuance of bonds necessary to finance the delivery system by March 31, 2015. 
Included in the packet is a timeline prepared by BWA’s Financial Advisor identifying the various steps and 
target dates necessary to secure the bond funds. According to the timeline, the funds are scheduled to be 
delivered on May 27, 2015. Since this date will be past March 31, 2015, BWA has requested written 
assurance the City does not intend to terminate the Agreement. BWA staff has confirmed they are on 
schedule and still anticipate delivery of the funds on, or about, May 27, 2015.    
 
Resolution No. R-1947 was prepared by Attorney Patrick Lindner, serving as Special Counsel regarding 
water related issues. Staff does recommend approval of Resolution No. R-1947 as presented.  
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1947 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, RELATING TO THE WATER SUPPLY 
AGREEMENT, BY AND BETWEEN WITH CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, AND THE BRAZOSPORT WATER AUTHORITY. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
  

WHEREAS, the City Council previously approved a Water Supply Agreement 
(Agreement) with the Brazosport Water Authority; and,  

 
WHEREAS, said Agreement provided the City of Rosenberg the option of 

terminating the Agreement if bonds for the project were not issued by March 31, 2015; 
and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Brazosport Water Authority did not satisfy this milestone despite 

diligent efforts and through no fault on its part; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the best interest of the City and its 

citizens not to exercise the option to terminate the Agreement; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Rosenberg hereby waives and 

relinquishes its option to terminate the Water Supply Agreement with Brazosport Water 

Authority as provided in Section 1.1 of said Agreement. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 
 
 



BRAZOSPORT WATER AUTHORITY
Water Supply System Regional Revenue Bonds, Series 2015

FFIINNAANNCCIINNGG SSCCHHEEDDUULLEE

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5 6 7
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 8 9 10 11 12 13 14
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 15 16 17 18 19 20 21
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 22 23 24 25 26 27 28
28 29 30 31 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29 30 31

S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 1 2 1 2 3 4 5 6 1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 28 29 30 26 27 28 29 30 31

31

Dec-14 Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15

Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15

Completion Date Event Responsibility

Tuesday, February 24, 2015 Substantial Approval of Transaction by Participationg Customers FWG
Friday, March 06, 2015 1st Draft of POS Circulated FA
Friday, March 13, 2015 Comments due on 1st Draft of POS FWG

Tuesday, March 17, 2015 2nd Draft of POS Distributed FA
Tuesday, March 24, 2015 Comments Due Back on 2nd Draft of POS FWG

BWA Board Meeting
Friday, March 27, 2015 3rd Draft of POS Distributed FA
Friday, April 03, 2015 Comments Due Back on 3rd Draft of POS FWG

Need Audits from all Participating Customers
Monday, April 06, 2015 ) sometime this week: Meet with Standard & Poor's Rating Service FWG
Friday, April 10, 2015 ) for New Rating on Regional System Bonds FWG
Friday, April 17, 2015 Receive Rating From Standard & Poor's FA

Monday, April 20, 2015 POS is Posted for the Sale FA
Tuesday, April 28, 2015 Pricing for Bonds - Morning FA

Board Meeting to Approve Issuance - Evening BWA
Wednesday, May 27, 2015 Closing. Funds Delivered FA,BC,BWA

Symbol Key

FWG Finance Working Group ................................................... Includes the BWA, BC, UW,
UWC, ENG & FA

BWA Authority Personnel........................................................... - -
ENG Project Engineer .............................................................. CDM Smith
FA Financial Advisor ............................................................. First Southwest Company
BC Bond Counsel ................................................................... Andrews Kurth LLP
UW Underwriter ...................................................................... TBD
UWC Underwriter’s Counsel ...................................................... TBD





























































































































reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



reneel
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 07, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

9 
Resolution No. R-1951 - Engineering Services Proposal for Water Plant 
No. 8 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1951, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, an Engineering Services Proposal for engineering related to Water 
Plant No. 8, by and between the City and Jones and Carter, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $586,000.00. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[X] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:    

520-0000-600-7030 (CP1512) 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[X] District 4 
[   ] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: 
 MUD #:  184 (Stonecreek 

Estates) 

1. Resolution No. R-1951 
2. Project Location Map 
3. GRP Project Schedule 
4. FY2015 CIP Summary 
5. Resolution No. R-1801 – 06-17-14 
6. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 06-17-14 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[X] City Engineer  
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The construction of Water Plant No. 8 is necessary in order to take delivery of the treated surface water 
that will be provided by the Brazosport Water Authority to meet the Fort Bend Subsidence District (District) 
unfunded mandate to reduce groundwater withdrawal by 30% beginning October 01, 2016. The water will 
be stored and pumped into the City’s water distribution system from this facility. Water Plant No. 8 will be 
located within the boundaries of Fort Bend County Municipal Utility District No. 184 (MUD No. 184) located 
along A. Meyer Road, between Burdett Road and Benton Road. MUD No. 184 previously agreed to convey 
a 3-acre water plant site to the City. This project is a component of the Amended Groundwater Reduction 
Plan (GRP) which has been approved by the District. The Alternate Water Project is also included in the 
FY2015 Capital Improvements Program approved by City Council on June 17, 2014 (Resolution No. R-
1801).  
 
An Engineering Services Proposal for Water Plant No. 8 from Jones and Carter, Inc., is attached as Exhibit 
“A” to Resolution No. R-1951 for City Council’s consideration. The base amount for design and 
construction phase services is $440,000.00. Additional services for topographic and boundary surveys, 
construction staking, construction management, field inspections, geotechnical investigation and other 
reimbursable expenses total $146,000.00, for an estimated total of $586,000.00.  
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1951 as presented. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1951 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, AN ENGINEERING SERVICES PROPOSAL FOR 
ENGINEERING RELATED TO WATER PLANT NO. 8, BY AND 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND JONES AND 
CARTER, INC., IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $586,000.00. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Rosenberg hereby authorizes the 

City Manager to execute an Engineering Services Proposal (Proposal), by and between 

the City of Rosenberg, Texas, and Jones and Carter, Inc., for engineering, land 

surveying and other reimbursable services related to Water Plant No. 8, in an amount 

not to exceed $586,000.00. 

 Section 2. A copy of said Proposal is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made 

a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 
 
 



reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1951













johnm
Callout
FM 2977

johnm
Callout
Ricefield Road

johnm
Callout
A. Meyer Road

johnm
Callout
Burdett Road

johnm
Callout
Benton Road

johnm
Callout
Proposed Water Plant No. 8 - General Location

johnm
Callout
Reading Road

johnm
Callout
Fire Station No. 3



johnm
Rectangle







johnm
Rectangle



cynthias
Rectangle



cynthias
Rectangle



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
April 07, 2015  
 

ITEM # ITEM TITLE 

10 
Resolution No. R-1952 – Engineering Services Proposal for Chloramine 
Conversions at Certain Water Plants 

ITEM/MOTION 

Consideration of and action on Resolution No. R-1952, a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to 
execute, for and on behalf of the City, an Engineering Services Proposal for chloramine conversions at 
Water Plant Nos. 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7, by and between the City and Jones and Carter, Inc., in an amount 
not to exceed $300,000.00.  

FINANCIAL SUMMARY ELECTION DISTRICT 

Annualized Dollars: 

[X] One-time 
[   ] Recurring 
[   ] N/A 

Budgeted: 

[X] Yes  [   ] No  [   ] N/A 

Source of Funds:    

520-0000-600-7030 (CP1513) 

[   ] District 1 
[   ] District 2 
[   ] District 3 
[   ] District 4 
[X] City-wide 
[   ] N/A 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  MUD #:  N/A 

1. Resolution No. R-1952 
2. FY2015 CIP Summary 
3. GRP Project Schedule 
4. Resolution No. R-1801 – 06-17-14 
5. City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt – 06-17-14 

 

APPROVALS 

Submitted by:   

 

 
John Maresh 
Assistant City Manager of 
Public Services 

Reviewed by:   

[X] Exec. Dir. of Administrative Services   
[   ] Asst. City Manager of Public Services  
[   ] City Attorney     
[X] City Engineer 
[   ] (Other) 
 

Approved for Submittal 
to City Council: 
   
 
Robert Gracia 
City Manager 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The City of Rosenberg currently uses a free chlorine disinfection system at its existing ground water plant 
sites. In order to effectively blend the chloramine-treated surface water from the Brazosport Water 
Authority (BWA), it is necessary to convert the existing free chlorine disinfection system to a chloramine 
disinfection system. This project is also a component of the Amended Groundwater Reduction Plan (GRP) 
which has been approved by the Fort Bend Subsidence District in order to reduce groundwater withdrawal 
by 30% beginning October 01, 2016. The Alternate Water Project is included in the FY2015 Capital 
Improvements Program approved by City Council on June 17, 2014 (Resolution No. R-1801). 
 
The Engineering Services Proposal from Jones and Carter, Inc., attached as Exhibit “A” to Resolution No. 
R-1952, provides for the design and construction phase engineering of this conversion process.  The base 
amount for this Project is $225,000.00.  Additional services for surveys, field inspections and other 
reimbursable expenses are estimated at $75,000.00, for a total amount not to exceed $300,000.00. It 
should also be noted as a part of the preliminary design phase, options for converting the gas chlorine to 
chlorine bleach will be provided to staff for consideration before the final design phase begins. Secondly, 
the installation of tank mixers is not included as a part of this project. The cost to install a mixer at every 
tank is estimated at $500,000. Instead, staff proposes to complete the chloramine conversion and review 
the need for mixers at individual tanks, if water quality issues are encountered.     
 
Staff recommends approval of Resolution No. R-1952 as presented. 
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-1952 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE, FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, 
TEXAS, AN ENGINEERING SERVICES PROPOSAL FOR 
CHLORAMINE CONVERSIONS AT WATER PLANT NOS. 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 
AND 7, BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF ROSENBERG, TEXAS, AND 
JONES AND CARTER, INC., IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$300,000.00. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROSENBERG: 
 
 Section 1. The City Council of the City of Rosenberg hereby authorizes the 

City Manager to execute an Engineering Services Proposal (Proposal) for chloramine 

conversions at Water Plant Nos. 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7, by and between the City of 

Rosenberg, Texas, and Jones and Carter, Inc., in an amount not to exceed 

$300,000.00. 

 Section 2. A copy of said Proposal is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and made 

a part hereof for all purposes. 

 PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this _____ day of ___________ 2015. 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
 
              
Linda Cernosek, CITY SECRETARY   Vincent M. Morales, Jr., MAYOR 
 
 



reneel
Text Box
Exhibit "A" to Resolution No. R-1952















johnm
Rectangle





johnm
Rectangle



cynthias
Rectangle



cynthias
Rectangle



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 11 
 

Hold Executive Session to consult with City 
Attorney regarding pending litigation, namely 
Imperial Arts v. Rosenberg pursuant to Section 
551.071 of the Texas Government Code. 
 



 
 
 
 
 

ITEM 12 
 

Adjourn Executive Session, reconvene into 
Regular Session, and take action as 
necessary as a result of Executive Session. 



 

 
 
 

 
ITEM 13 

 
Announcements. 

 



 
 
 
 

 
ITEM 14 

 
Adjournment. 

 


	Regular City Council Meeting Agenda - 04-07-15
	- 1 - Presentation of Willie D. McQueen, Jr. Employee of the Quarter Award
	- 2 - Presentation of Certificate of Appreciation to Randy Weisheimer
	- 3 - Presentation of Certificate of Appreciation to City of Rosenberg Committee Members
	- 4 - Presentation of Rosenberg Image Committee Beautification and Renovation Awards
	- 5 - Presentation of Proclamation - American Cancer Society Relay for Life Day
	-- General Comments from the Audience
	-- Comments from the Audience for Regular and Consent Agenda Items
	1 - Review of Consent Agenda
	A - Minutes
	City Council Meeting Minutes - 03-17-15
	City Council Workshop Meeting Minutes - 03-24-15

	B - Resolution No. R-1949 - Support of SB No. 581 for TSTC  Campus in Fort Bend County
	Resolution No. R-1949
	Texas Senate Bill No. 581 - Filed by Senator Lois Kolkhorst

	C - FY2015 Street Overlay and Reconstruction Project List
	FY2015 Priority Street Overlay and Reconstruction Project List - 03-24-15
	FY2015 Priority Street Overlay and Reconstruction Location Map
	2014 Street Paving Project - Remaining Work
	City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 03-24-15

	D - Resolution No. R-1953 - General Warranty Deed Acceptance - 5187 Bryan Road
	Resolution No. R-1953

	E -  Final Plat of The Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Four
	Final Plat of The Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Four
	Developer's Conceptual Plan, revised Exhibit "B" Brazos Town Center - 01-20-15
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 01-21-15
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 11-19-14

	F - Final Plat of The Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Five
	Final Plat of The Reserve at Brazos Town Center Section Five
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 01-21-15
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 10-15-14

	G - Final Plat of The Townhomes at Brazos Town Center
	Final Plat of The Townhomes at Brazos Town Center
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 01-21-15
	Planning Commission Meeting Minute Excerpt - 10-15-14

	H - Resolution No. R-1954 - Right-of-Way Deed Acceptance - Louise Street and Avenue N
	Resolution No. R-1954

	2 - Resolution No. R-1948 - Opposing Legislative Revenue Cap on Property Taxes
	Resolution No. R-1948
	Texas Senate Bill No. 182
	Sample Correspondence to Texas Representatives

	3 - Municipal Utility District Operations and Dissolutions Discussion
	MUD Overview - 2015

	4 - Municipal Utility District No. 218 Support
	House Bill No. 4126
	Location Map
	Draft Correspondence

	5 - Ordinance No. 2015-10 - Granting a Gas Franchise to SiEnergy, L.P.
	Ordinance No. 2015-10
	Charter Excerpt - Article XII, Section 12.03
	SiEnergy Distribution System Map
	City Council Meeting Draft Minute Excerpt - 03-17-15

	6 - Resolution  No. R-1945 - Awarding Bid No. 2015-08 for Tree Trimming Services
	Bid Summary Form
	Proposal
	Resolution No. R-1945
	Bid No. 2015-08 - Bid Documents and Technical Specifications
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 01-27-15

	7 - Resolution No. R-1946 - Amended and Restated Agreement Relating to Temporary Assignment of Rights and Obligations Under Water Supply Contract
	Resolution No. R-1946
	Langford Correspondence - 03-11-15
	Resolution No. R-1749 - 02-04-14
	Resolution No. R-1617 - 02-19-13
	Resolution No. R-1479 - 05-01-12
	Resolution No. R-1326 - 06-07-11
	Resolution No. R-1311 - 04-19-11
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 02-04-14
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 02-19-13
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 05-01-12
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 06-07-11
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 04-19-11

	8 - Resolution No. R-1947 - Waiving Option to Cancel Water Supply Agreement with Brazosport Water Authority
	Resolution No. R-1947
	Timetable - Brazosport Water Authority Water Supply System Regional Revenue Bonds, Series 2015
	Resolution No. R-1919 - 02-03-15
	Resolution No. R-1884 - 12-02-14
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 02-03-15
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 12-02-14

	9 - Resolution No. R-1951 - Engineering Services Proposal for Water Plant No. 8
	Resolution No. R-1951
	Project Location Map
	GRP Project Schedule
	FY2015 CIP Summary
	Resolution No. R-1801 - 06-17-14
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 06-17-14

	10 - Resolution No. R-1952 - Engineering Services Proposal for Chloramine Conversions at Certain Water Plants
	Resolution No. R-1952
	FY2015 CIP Summary
	GRP Project Schedule
	Resolution No. R-1801 - 06-17-14
	City Council Meeting Minute Excerpt - 06-17-14

	11 - Hold Executive Session
	12 - Adjourn Executive Session
	13 - Announcements
	14 - Adjournment



